
City of South Pasadena Page 1 

  CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA 
CULTURAL HERITAGE COMMISSION  

 
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
THURSDAY, MAY 16, 2024 AT 6:30 P.M. 

 
AMEDEE O. “DICK” RICHARDS JR. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1424 MISSION STREET, SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030  

 

South Pasadena Cultural Heritage Commission Statement of Civility 
As your appointed governing board we will treat each other, members of the public, and 
city employees with patience, civility and courtesy as a model of the same behavior we 
wish to reflect in South Pasadena for the conduct of all city business and community 
participation. The decisions made tonight will be for the benefit of the South Pasadena 
community and not for personal gain. 

NOTICE ON PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & ACCESSIBILITY 
 
The South Pasadena Cultural Heritage Commission Meeting will be conducted in-
person from the Amedee O. “Dick” Richards, Jr. Council Chambers, located at 1424 
Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA 91030. 
 
The Meeting will be available: 
  
• In Person – Council Chambers, 1424 Mission Street, South Pasadena  
• Via Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82268359053  Meeting ID: 822 6835 9053 

 
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, 
members of the public can observe the meeting via Zoom in one of the two methods 
below. 
  
1. Go to the Zoom website, https://zoom.us/join and enter the Zoom Meeting 
information; or  
2. Click on the following unique Zoom meeting link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82268359053 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82268359053
https://zoom.us/join
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82268359053


Regular Meeting Agenda    South Pasadena Cultural Heritage Commission May 16, 2024 

City of South Pasadena Page 2 

CALL TO ORDER:  Chair    Conrado Lopez 
 
ROLL CALL: Chair   Conrado Lopez 
 Vice-Chair   Kristin Morrish 

Commissioner William Cross 
Commissioner Jeremy Ding 
Commissioner Scott Severson 

 
COUNCIL LIAISON:          Mayor Pro Tem  Jack Donovan 
    
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Majority vote of the Commission to proceed with Commission business. 

 
DISCLOSURE OF SITE VISITS AND EX-PARTE CONTACTS 
Disclosure by Commissioners of site visits and ex-parte contact for items on the agenda. 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES (Public Comments are limited to 3 minutes)  
The Cultural Heritage Commission welcomes public input. If you would like to comment 
on an agenda item, members of the public may participate by one of the following 
options: 
 
Option 1:  
Participate in-person at the Council Chambers, 1424 Mission Street, South Pasadena 

 
Option 2: 
Participants will be able to “raise their hand” using the Zoom icon during the meeting, 
and they will have their microphone un-muted during comment portions of the agenda 
to speak for up to 3 minutes per item. 
 
Option 3: 
Email public comment(s) to PlanningComments@southpasadenaca.gov.  
Public Comments received in writing will not be read aloud at the meeting, but will be 
part of the meeting record. Written public comments will be uploaded online for public 
viewing under Additional Documents. There is no word limit on emailed Public 
Comment(s). Please make sure to indicate: 

1) Name (optional), and 
2) Agenda item you are submitting public comment on, and 
3) Submit by no later than 12:00 p.m., on the day of the Cultural Heritage Commission 

meeting. 
 
NOTE: Pursuant to State law, the Cultural Heritage Commission may not discuss or take 
action on issues not on the meeting agenda, except that members of the Cultural 
Heritage Commission or staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising public testimony rights (Government Code Section 
54954.2). Staff may be asked to follow up on such items.  

 
 

mailto:PlanningComments@southpasadenaca.gov


Regular Meeting Agenda    South Pasadena Cultural Heritage Commission May 16, 2024 

City of South Pasadena Page 3 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

 
1. Public Comment – General (Non-Agenda Items) 

 

PRESENTATION 

 
2. Commission Analysis Revisit – City Manager’s Office 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
3. 1635 Lyndon Street, Project No. 2578-COA/DRX – A request for a Certificate of 

Appropriateness (COA) to demolish an existing single-family dwelling located at 1635 
Lyndon Street (APN: 5320-003-013). In accordance with the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA), the subject property does not qualify for consideration as a 
historical resource (Section 15064.5(a) of the CEQA Guidelines). The project qualifies 
for a Categorial Exemption under Section 15303, Class 3 (New Construction or 
Conversion of Small Structures). 
 
Recommendation: 
Continue this item to the June 20, 2024 Cultural Heritage Commission meeting date. 
 

4. 1017 Magnolia Street, Project No. COA24-0003 – A request for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness (COA) to construct a 528 square-foot first story addition, a new 269 
square-foot second story addition, and a 274 square-foot covered porch to an existing 
1,300 square-foot one-story single-family dwelling at 1017 Magnolia Street (APN: 
5315-013-027). In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), 
the project qualifies for a Categorical Exemption under Section 15301, Class 1 
(Existing Facilities) and Section 15331, Class 31 (Historical Resource 
Restoration/Rehabilitation). 
 
Recommendation: 
Finding the project exempt from CEQA pursuant to Sections 15301 and 15331. 
Approve the Certificate of Appropriateness, subject to the conditions of approval. 
 

5. 1617 Spruce Street, Project No. COA24-0005 – A request for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness (COA) for a 469 square-foot second-story addition to the rear of an 
existing two-story single-family dwelling at 1617 Spruce St. (APN: 5320-009-019). In 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the project qualifies 
for a Categorical Exemption under Section 15301, Class 1 (Existing Facilities) and 
Section 15331, Class 31 (Historical Resource Restoration/Rehabilitation). 
 
Recommendation: 
Finding the project exempt from CEQA pursuant to Sections 15301 and 15331. 
Approve the Certificate of Appropriateness, subject to the conditions of approval. 
 



Regular Meeting Agenda    South Pasadena Cultural Heritage Commission May 16, 2024 

City of South Pasadena Page 4 

6. 1209 Indiana Avenue, Project No. LMR23-0001 – A request for a Landmark Historic 
Designation for a single-family dwelling located at 1209 Indiana Avenue (APN: 5314-
010-061). In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the 
project qualifies for a Categorical Exemption under Section 15308, Class 8 (Actions 
Taken by Regulatory Agencies for Protection of the Environment). 
 
Recommendation: 
Review and recommend approval of the Landmark Historic Designation to the City 
Council. 
 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
7. 1209 Indiana Avenue – Mills Act Request 

 
Recommendation: 
Form a subcommittee to review the Mills Act request. 
 

8. 2024 Annual Commission Report 
 

Recommendation: 
Discuss and approve 2024 Annual Commission Report. 
 

 
ADMINISTRATION 

9. Comments from City Council Liaison 

10. Comments from Commissioners  

11. Comments from Subcommittees 

12. Comments from Staff 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

  
13. Adjourn to the Regular Cultural Heritage Commission meeting scheduled for 

June 20, 2024 at 6:30 PM. 



Regular Meeting Agenda    South Pasadena Cultural Heritage Commission May 16, 2024 

City of South Pasadena Page 5 

 
 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO AGENDA DOCUMENTS AND BROADCASTING OF MEETINGS 
Cultural Heritage Commission meeting agenda packets are available online at the City 
website: https://www.southpasadenaca.gov/government/boards-commissions/cultural-
heritage-commission/cultural-heritage-commission-agendas 
 
 
 
 

 ACCOMMODATIONS 

 The City of South Pasadena wishes to make all of its public meetings accessible 
to the public. If special assistance is needed to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the City Clerk's Division at (626) 403-7230. Upon request, this agenda will be 
made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities. 
Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will assist staff in assuring that 
reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting (28 CFR 
35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 

I declare under penalty of perjury that I posted this notice of agenda on the bulletin 
board in the courtyard of City Hall at 1414 Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA 91030, 
and on the City’s website as required by law. 
 

5/9/2024 

  
 
 

 

 Date  Braulio Madrid, Associate Planner  
 

https://www.southpasadenaca.gov/government/boards-commissions/cultural-heritage-commission/cultural-heritage-commission-agendas
https://www.southpasadenaca.gov/government/boards-commissions/cultural-heritage-commission/cultural-heritage-commission-agendas


 

Community Development 
Department  

Memo 
 

DATE:  May 9, 2024 

TO:   Cultural Heritage Commission (CHC) 

FROM:  Angelica Frausto-Lupo, Community Development Director 
Matt Chang, Planning Manager 
 

PREPARED BY: Braulio M. Madrid, Associate Planner 

RE:  Item 3. Project No. 2578-COA/DRX located at 1635 Lyndon Street 
(APN: 5320-003-013) 

 

This item was continued from the regularly scheduled May 16, 2024, CHC meeting. 
The applicant is pending minor application submittal items.   

Staff is recommending continuing this item to the next regularly scheduled CHC 
meeting on June 20, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Cultural Heritage Commission 
Agenda Report ITEM NO. 

DATE: May 16, 2024 

FROM: Angelica Frausto-Lupo, Community Development Director 
Matt Chang, Planning Manager 

PREPARED BY: Robert (Dean) Flores, Senior Planner 

SUBJECT: Project No. COA24-0003 – A request for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness (COA) to construct a 528 square-foot first 
story addition, a new 269 square-foot second story addition, 
and a 274 square-foot covered porch to an existing 1,300 
square-foot one-story single-family dwelling at 1017 Magnolia 
Street (APN: 5315-013-027). In accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the project qualifies for a 
Categorical Exemption under Section 15301, Class 1 (Existing 
Facilities) and Section 15331, Class 31 (Historical Resource 
Restoration/Rehabilitation). 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Cultural Heritage Commission: 

1. Finding the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
pursuant to Sections 15301 and 15331 of the CEQA Guidelines.

2. Approve Project No. COA24-0003 subject to the conditions of approval
(Attachment 1).

BACKGROUND 

Project Timeline 

On December 4, 2023, the applicant submitted an application for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness to for first- and second-story additions to an existing single-family 
residence. On March 7, 2024, the project application was deemed complete.  

Site Characteristics 

4



Cultural Heritage Commission   1017 Magnolia Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0003 
 

Page 2 of 10 

The subject property is a rectangular-shaped 8,511 square-foot lot located on the 
southerly side of Magnolia Street between Meridian Avenue and Fairview Avenue. The 
subject property is located int the Residential High Density zoning district, or RH Zone, 
and is surrounded by one- and two-story single-family or multi-family residential uses. 
Neighborhood images are included on page A-1B of the architectural plans 
(Attachment 3).  
 
The subject site is currently developed with an existing 1,300 square-foot single-story 
single-family dwelling, and a 231 square-foot detached garage. The subject site is 
included in the City’s Inventory of Historic Resources, listed as an addition to the North 
of Mission District (5D1). The district is comprised of approximately 22 contributing 
properties built between 1895 and 1924. It is characterized as single-family residences 
designed in the early Craftsman bungalow style. 
 

Image 1: Street View of the Property 

 
 
The single-family residence (see Image 1 above) was built in 1904 in Craftsman-
Bungalow style. Character-defining features include the horizontal wood siding, bay 
windows, arched front porch, double hung wood windows, decorative window mullion 
divides, exposed wood rafters, and exposed brick foundation stem walls.  



Cultural Heritage Commission   1017 Magnolia Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0003 
 

Page 3 of 10 

 
Since being built, the property has undergone a few alterations. According to building 
permit records: 
 

• In 1925, a permit was issued for the detached garage, 
• In 1970, a permit was issued for a re-roof and the installation of composition 

shingles, 
• In 2007, a permit was issued for a rear porch but was never finaled and is 

considered unpermitted.  
 
Building permit records are included as Attachment 2.   
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness to construct a 
528 square-foot first story addition, a new 269 square-foot second story addition, and a 
274 square-foot covered porch (to replace the existing unpermitted porch) to an existing 
1,300 square-foot one-story single-family dwelling. When complete, the property will 
include a total of 2,097 square feet. The additions will allow for a new office, one new 
bedroom, and one bathroom, for a total of four (4) bedrooms and four (4) baths. The 
architectural plans and proposed materials are included as Attachment 3.  
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS  
 
General Plan Consistency  
 
The General Plan (2040) land use designation of the project is High Density 
Neighborhood, which allows for single-family units to continue to exist along with 
multifamily units at a density up to 45 units per acre. The proposed project, therefore, 
complies with the following General Plan goals, policies, and/or actions: 
 

Goal 3: Preserve and enhance the distinctive residential neighborhoods; provide 
housing opportunities for all; reinvest in downtown corridors and neighborhood 
centers; and ensure that new development contributes its fair share towards the 
provision of affordable housing, adequate parks, schools, and other public 
facilities. 
 
Policy P3.4: Conserve South Pasadena’s character and scale, including its 
traditional urban design form, while creating places of enduring quality that are 
uniquely fit to their time and place. 

 
Zoning Code Compliance 
 
The subject property is zoned Residential High Density (RH), which is intended for 
multifamily uses, but existing single-family homes are permitted to continue to exist. The 
existing land use and density of the project site complies with the South Pasadena 



Cultural Heritage Commission   1017 Magnolia Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0003 
 

Page 4 of 10 

Municipal Code (SPMC) Division 36.220. The purpose of the Residential Design Review 
process is to ensure that the proposed site layout and building design are suitable and 
compatible with the City’s design standards and guidelines. Pursuant to Section 
36.220.050 Development of Small Nonconforming Residential Parcels, the subject lot is 
deemed nonconforming, because it is less than 10,000 square-feet in size. Residential 
Development Standards from SPMC Sections 36.220.040 and 36.220.050 were applied 
to the proposed project. The table below lists the project’s conformance with applicable 
development standards. 
 

Table 2: Residential Development Standards Compliance 
 

Standard Requirement Existing Proposed 

Lot Coverage 
50% 

(4,256 SF max. 
allowed) 

22.2% 
1,886 SF  

31.9% 
2,717 SF  

Building Height 45 ft. max. 20 ft. 25 ft. (second-story 
addition)  

Off-Street 
Parking 2-Car garage 1-car garage 1-car garage1 

Front Setback 15 ft.  33 ft.  Unchanged  

First Story Side 
Setback 8 ft. 3 ft. 

(nonconforming) 

5 ft. (allowed to 
continue 

nonconforming 
setback as long as 

the addition does not 
encroach any further 

into setback) 

Second Story 
Stepbacks 

5 ft. minimum from 
front of house and 3 
ft. minimum on both 

sides 

N/A 

Front: Greater than 5 
ft. 

Sides: 9’-9 ½” on 
east side; 27’-3 ½” on 

west side  
Rear Setback 20 ft. Greater than 20 ft. 48’-5” 

 

 
1 The property is within ½-mile of the Metro A Line and is thereby exempt from proving additional parking 
due to State Assembly Bill (AB) 2097. 



Cultural Heritage Commission   1017 Magnolia Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0003 
 

Page 5 of 10 

Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
 
The proposed first and second floor additions require a Certificate of Appropriateness 
review and approval from the Cultural Heritage Commission as the addition is larger 
than 200 square feet. The subject property has been identified as a contributor to an 
eligible historic district by the City of South Pasadena. As such, an addition should be 
visually subordinate, or secondary, to the original structure.  
 
The proposed project includes a 528 square-foot first story addition, a new 269 square-
foot second story addition, and a 274 square-foot covered porch which will replace the 
existing unpermitted porch. All proposed work is concentrated in the middle and rear of 
the existing structure and maintains the character of the existing one-story structure. 
There are no proposed changes to the front elevation. The second-story addition will 
have a very limited visibility from the public right-of-way along Magnolia Street. The 
second story addition is carefully differentiated from the existing structure in that it is 
articulated from the first floor to clearly distinguish between the existing and new. The 
new addition also incorporates design elements such as the horizontal siding, double 
hung windows, exposed roof rafters, and bay window. The proposed elevations can be 
found on Image 2. 
 

Image 2: Proposed West Elevation 

 
 
FINDINGS 
 
Required Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) Findings 
 
In order to approve a Certificate of Appropriateness, the Cultural Heritage Commission 
shall first find that the design and layout of the proposed addition complies with the 
findings as stipulated in the South Pasadena Municipal Code.  
 
Mandatory Findings  



Cultural Heritage Commission   1017 Magnolia Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0003 
 

Page 6 of 10 

 
The Cultural Heritage Commission shall make all the required findings listed below.  
 

1. The project is consistent with the goals and policies of the General Plan.  
 
The project is consistent with the goals and policies of the General Plan for 
preservation, rehabilitation, and use of historic resources in the City. The existing 
home, built in 1904, is listed on the City of South Pasadena’s Historic Inventory 
List as a potential contributor to the eligible North of Mission District. The 
proposed project has been designed to retain and preserve the character-
defining features of the house. 
 

2. The project is consistent with the goals and policies of Article IVH – 
Cultural Heritage Ordinance – of Chapter 2 of the South Pasadena 
Municipal Code.  
 
The project is consistent with the goals and policies of the Cultural Heritage 
Ordinance. The project implements the goals of the Cultural Heritage Ordinance 
by encouraging and perpetuating the long-term, viable use of the cultural 
resource. The project preserves the architectural and aesthetic features of the 
historic home consistent in a manner that is generally consistent with the 
Secretary of Interior’s Standards.   
 

3. The project is consistent with the applicable criteria identified in 
subsection (e)(8) of this section which the commission applies to 
alterations, demolitions, and relocation requests.  
 
The project, including the residence’s addition, is consistent with the City of 
South Pasadena’s Design Guidelines; the following are most relevant to the 
proposed modifications and addition to the property:  
 
1. “Additions should be located at the rear or secondary sides of a historic 

building, set back from the primary facades, and should be limited in size and 
scale in relation to the existing structure. Additions should have limited 
visibility from the street.” (p. 36) 

2. “New additions should be compatible in mass and scale with the 
neighborhood, and should be visually subordinate to the original building.” (p. 
37) 

3. “Dividing the building mass into smaller separate structures can break up the 
perceived mass of a building.” (p. 38) 

4. “Additions should be placed at the building rear and set back from the front to 
minimize the visual impact on the historic structure from the public right-of-
way so that the original proportions and character remain prominent.” (p. 39) 



Cultural Heritage Commission   1017 Magnolia Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0003 
 

Page 7 of 10 

5. “Façade treatments for new additions should be consistent with the existing 
building and its architectural style. Details and elements not found on the 
existing structure or inconsistent with the style should be avoided.” (p. 46) 

 
The project is consistent with the standards in the Secretary of Interior’s 
Standards of Rehabilitation, as shown in Table 3.  

 
Table 3: Consistency with Secretary of Interior Standards 

 
Standard Recommendation 

Standard 1: A property will be used as it was 
historically or be given a new use that requires 
minimal change to its distinctive materials, features, 
spaces, and spatial relationships.  

Consistent. 

Standard 2: The historic character of a property will 
be retained and preserved. The removal of distinctive 
materials or alteration of features, spaces, and spatial 
relationships that characterize a property will be 
avoided. 

Consistent.  

Standard 3: Each property will be recognized as a 
physical record of its time, place, and use. Changes 
that create a false sense of historical development, 
such as adding conjectural features or elements from 
other historic properties, will not be undertaken. 

Consistent.  

Standard 4: Changes to a property that have 
acquired historic significance will be retained and 
preserved. 

Consistent.  

Standard 5: Distinctive materials, features, finishes, 
and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterize a property will be 
preserved. 

Consistent.  

Standard 6: Deteriorated historic features will be 
repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of 
deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive 
feature, the new feature will match the old in design, 
color, texture, and, where possible, materials. 
Replacement of missing features will be substantiated 
by documentary and physical evidence. 

Not applicable. 

Standard 7: Chemical or physical treatments, if 
appropriate, will be undertaken using the gentlest 
means possible. Treatments that cause damage to 
historic materials will not be used. 

Not applicable.  



Cultural Heritage Commission   1017 Magnolia Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0003 
 

Page 8 of 10 

Standard Recommendation 

Standard 8: Archeological resources will be protected 
and preserved in place. If such resources must be 
disturbed, mitigation measures will be undertaken. 

Not applicable.  

Standard 9: New additions, exterior alterations, or 
related new construction shall not destroy historic 
materials that characterize the property, the new work 
shall be differentiated from the old and shall be 
compatible with the massing, size, scale, and 
architectural features to protect the historic integrity of 
the property and its environment. 
 

Consistent.   

Standard 10: New additions and adjacent or related 
new construction shall be undertaken in such a 
manner that if removed in the future, the essential 
form and integrity of the historic property and its 
environment would be unimpaired. 

Consistent.  

 
Project Specific Findings for a Certificate of Appropriateness 
 

Finding 2. The project is appropriate to the size, massing, and design 
context of the historic neighborhood; 

 
The project is appropriate to the size, massing and design context of the historic 
residence and the surrounding district, which is comprised of a mixture of one 
and two-story residential buildings. The second-story addition is located to the 
middle and rear of the structure and incorporates compatible building materials, 
finishes, and detailing as the historic property. Therefore, the proposed addition 
would be harmonious and compatible with surrounding homes and the 
neighborhood.  
 
Finding 3. In the case of an addition or enlargement, the project provides 
clear distinction between the new and historic elements of the cultural 
resource or improvement; 
 
The new addition is located at the middle and rear of the home. The new addition 
on the first floor is setback an additional two feet on the easterly side of the home 
from the existing home’s side yard setback. The second-story is setback an 
additional 4 feet from the first floor. To provide clear distinction between the new 
and historic elements, proposal utilizes hardie board siding rather than wood 
siding which is the material used on the existing home.  
 



Cultural Heritage Commission   1017 Magnolia Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0003 
 

Page 9 of 10 

Finding 5. The project adds substantial new living space while preserving 
the single story [architectural style or building type] character of the 
streetscape; 
 
The project will add substantial new living space while preserving the character 
of the historic district. The proposed additions will provide an addition bedroom, 
bathroom, and office space and is designed to limit the overall scale and massing 
of the existing structure. The proposed addition will not modify the façade along 
Magnolia Street.   

 
ENVIORNMENTAL ANALYSIS 
 
This project qualifies for a categorical exemption from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) analysis based on State CEQA Guidelines Section 15301, Class 1 
(Existing Facilities) and Section 15331, Class 31 (Historical Resource 
Restoration/Rehabilitation).  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Cultural Heritage Commission: 
 

1. Finding the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to Sections 15301 and 15331 of the CEQA Guidelines. 
 

2. Approve Project No. COA24-0003 subject to the conditions of approval 
(Attachment 1). 

 
ALTERNATIVES TO CONSIDER 
 
The Cultural Heritage Commission has the following options available;  
 

1. The Cultural Heritage Commission can Approve the project as is or with modified 
condition(s) added or removed and provide findings; or 

2. The Cultural Heritage Commission can Continue the project, providing the 
applicant with clear recommendations to revise the proposal; or  

3. The Cultural Heritage Commission can Deny the project.  
 
PUBLIC NOTICING 
 
A Public Hearing Notice was published on May 3, 2024, in the South Pasadena Review. 
Hearing notices were sent to all properties within a 300-foot radius on May 2, 2024.  In 
addition, the public was made aware that this item was to be considered at a public 
hearing by virtue of its inclusion on the legally publicly noticed agenda, posting of the 
same agenda and reports on the City’s website. 
 



Cultural Heritage Commission   1017 Magnolia Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0003 
 

Page 10 of 10 

NEXT STEPS 
 
If the Cultural Heritage Commission approves the project, a 15-day appeal period will 
commence in which any person affected by the decision may appeal the decision for a 
public hearing by the City Council. Should there be no appeals during this 15-day 
period, the applicant may proceed through the Plan Check Process with the Planning 
Division to review the construction plans to ensure that all conditions are satisfied prior 
to submittal with the Building Division.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Conditions of Approval 
2. Building Permits 
3. Architectural Plans 
4. Renderings 
5. Project Narrative 



ATTACHMENT 1 
Conditions of Approval 

  



Conditions of Approval  
1017 Magnolia Street | COA24-0003 Page 1 of 7 

 

 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Certificate of Appropriateness 

Project No. COA24-0003 
1017 Magnolia Street (APN: 5315-013-027) 

 
 

DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PLANNING DIVISION:  

P1. This approval and all rights hereunder shall terminate within 18 months of the effective date of their approval 
by the Cultural Heritage Commission unless otherwise conditioned and/or unless action is taken to secure 
Building Permits and maintain active Building Permits with the Building Division beginning with the submittal 
of the plans for Plan Check review.  

P2. Approval by the Cultural Heritage Commission does not constitute a building permit or authorization to 
begin any construction.  An appropriate permit issued by the South Pasadena Building Division must be 
obtained prior to construction, enlargement, relocation, conversion or demolition of any building or structure 
on any of the properties involved with the Certificate of Appropriateness. 

P3. All other requirements of any law, ordinance, or regulation of the State of California, City of South Pasadena, 
and any other government entity shall be complied with. 

P4. Compliance with and execution of all conditions listed herein shall be necessary prior to obtaining any 
occupancy inspection clearance and/or prior to obtaining any occupancy clearance. 

P5. The applicant and each successor in interest to the property which is the subject of this project approval, 
shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of South Pasadena and its agents, officers and 
employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or its agents, officers or employees to 
attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City, City Council or Commission/Board concerning this 
approval. In the event of any claim or lawsuit, the applicant and/or successor shall submit a deposit in such 
amount as the City reasonably determines necessary to protect the City from exposure to fees, costs or 
liability with respect to such claim or lawsuit. 

P6. The construction site and the surrounding area shall be kept free of all loose materials resembling trash 
and debris in excess of that material used for immediate construction purposes.  Such excess may include, 
but is not limited to: the accumulation of debris, garbage, lumber, scrap metal, concrete, asphalt, piles of 
earth, salvage materials, abandoned or discarded furniture, appliances or other household fixtures. 

P7. The hours of construction shall be limited to the following:  8:00 am and 7:00 pm Monday through Friday, 
9:00 am and 7:00 pm Saturday, and construction on Sundays limited to 10:00 am to 6:00 pm.   

P8. A construction sign with contact information for the contractor shall be posted on-site during construction.  

 

Note:  As a convenience to the applicant, the development requirements from applicable 
Departments/Agencies are listed herein.  These requirements list what the applicant will be required to 
comply with in order to receive a Building Permit, a Certificate of Occupancy, or other Department-
issued entitlement. 



Conditions of Approval  
1017 Magnolia Street | COA24-0003 Page 2 of 7 

 

BUILDING DIVISION 

B1. The second sheet of building plans is to list all conditions of approval and to include a copy of the Planning 
Decision letter. This information shall be incorporated into the plans prior to the first submittal for plan check. 

B2. Plans prepared in compliance with the code in effect shall be submitted to Building Division for review 
prior permit issuance 

B3. School Developmental Fees shall be paid to the School District prior to the issuance of the building 
permit. 

B4. Park Impact Fee to be paid at the time of permit issuance. 

B5. Per Chapter 16A of the City of South Pasadena Municipal Code, Growth fee to be paid at the time of permit 
issuance. 

B6. In accordance with paragraph 5538(b) of the California Business and Professions Code, plans are to be 
prepared and stamped by a licensed architect. 

B7. Structural calculations prepared under the direction of an architect, civil engineer or structural engineer 
shall be provided. 

B8. A drainage plan shall be approved prior to issuance of the building permit. The drainage plan shall indicate 
how all storm drainage is carried to the public way or drainage structure approved to receive storm water. 

B9. Preliminary MS4 Project Application (MS4-1 FORM) completed by Engineer of Record shall be copied on 
the first sheet of Building Plans and on the first sheet of Grading Plans. The form can be found at the 
following link 
https://www.dropbox.com/s/4xkjyn5fhggpotk/Accessibility%20Upgrade%20Summary%20Form.pdf?dl=0 

B10. Foundation inspection will not be made until setback of the addition has been surveyed and the setbacks 
determined to be in accordance with the approved plans by a land surveyor licensed by the State of 
California. THIS NOTE IS TO BE PLACED ON THE FOUNDATION PLAN IN A PROMINENT LOCATION. 

B11. Project shall comply with the CalGreen Residential mandatory requirements. 

B12. Fire resistance rating requirements for exterior walls and Maximum area of exterior wall openings and 
degree of open protection based on fire separation distance of 0 to 5 feet for dwellings and accessory 
buildings shall comply with Table R302.1(1) or with Table R302.1(2) as applicable. 

B13. All fire sprinkler hangers must be designed, and their location approved by an engineer or an architect. 
Calculations must be provided indicating that the hangers are designed to carry the tributary weight of the 
water filled pipe plus a 250-pound point load. A plan indication this information must be stamped by the 
engineer or the architect and submitted for approval prior to issuance of the building permit. 

B14. Separate permit is required for Fire Sprinklers. 

FIRE DEPARTMENT:   

FD1. Required Code References: Current South Pasadena Municipal Code (SPMC); Current California Fire 
Code (CFC); Current California Building Code and NFPA standards.  

FD2. Fire Sprinklers are required.  Submit plans to City for approval.  

https://www.dropbox.com/s/4xkjyn5fhggpotk/Accessibility%20Upgrade%20Summary%20Form.pdf?dl=0


Conditions of Approval  
1017 Magnolia Street | COA24-0003 Page 3 of 7 

 

FD3.  (CFC 903.1) General. Automatic Sprinkler systems shall comply with this section. 

FD4.  (CFC 903.2) Where Required. Approved automatic sprinkler systems in new buildings and structures shall 
be provided in the locations described in Sections 903.2.1 through 903.2.12. 

FD5. (CFC 903.2.8) Group R.  An automatic sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 903.3 shall be 
provided throughout all buildings with a Group R fire area.  

FD6. Fire sprinklers shall not be able to shut off unless the domestic line to the property is shut off.  There shall 
be no other means to turn off water to the sprinkler system.  Ensure this sprinkler system is installed by an 
approved C-16 licensed company.  Please provide a drawing of the sprinkler system to the Fire Department 
prior to beginning of work.  

FD7. (CFC 903.3.5)  Water Supplies.  Water supplies for automatic sprinkler systems shall comply with this 
section and the standards referenced in Section 903.3.1.  The potable water supply shall be protected 
against backflow in accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 13114.7.  

FD8. (CFC 507.1)  Required water supply.  An approved water supply capable of supplying the required fire flow 
for fire protection shall be provided to premises upon which facilities, buildings or portions of buildings are 
hereafter constructed or moved into or within the jurisdiction.  

FD9. (CFC 507.3)  Fire flow.  Fire flow requirements for buildings or portions of buildings and facilities shall be 
determined by an approved method or Appendix B.  

FD10. 507.4 Water Supply Test.  The fire code official shall be notified prior to the water supply test.  Water supply 
tests shall be witnessed by the fire code official or approved documentation of the test shall be provided to 
the fire code official prior to final approval of the water supply system.  

FD11. 903.2.11.9 Additions and Alterations.  All existing buildings and structures, regardless of the type of 
construction, type of occupancy or area, shall be provided with an automatic sprinkler system conforming 
to Section 903.3 and this code upon the occurrence of any of the following conditions: 

1) An addition of over 750 square feet to any building or structure which creates a fire area large 
enough that if the existing building or structure plus proposed work were being built new today, an 
automatic sprinkler system would be required under this code. 

FD12. New and existing building shall have approved address numbers, building numbers or approved building 
identification placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting the 
property. These numbers shall contrast with their background. Where required by the fire code official, 
address numbers shall be provided in additional approved locations to facilitate emergency response.  
Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters. Numbers shall be a minimum of 4 inches 
(101.6 mm) high with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 inch (12.7 mm). Where access is by means of a private 
road and the building cannot be view from the public way, a monument, pole or other sign or means shall 
be used to identify the structure. Address numbers shall be maintained. 

FD13. Notwithstanding anything else in this code, or any other code incorporated, herein, by reference any new 
roof shall be of Class “A” roof material.  

FD14. Exception: Any re-roofing shall provide Class A roof material for the entire roof when the aggregated 
reroofing for the same building during any consecutive twelve months exceeds fifty percent of the existing 
roof. (14.4 SPMC).  

FD15. Groups R-2, R-2.1, R-3, R-3.1, and R-4.  Single or multiple-station smoke alarms shall be installed and 
maintained in Groups R-2, R-2.1, R-3, R-3.1 and R-4 regardless of occupant load at all of the following 



Conditions of Approval  
1017 Magnolia Street | COA24-0003 Page 4 of 7 

 

locations: 

1) On the Ceiling or wall outside of each separate sleeping area in the immediate vicinity of bedrooms; 

2) In each room used for sleeping purposes. 

3) In each story within a dwelling unit, including basements but not including crawl spaces and 
uninhabitable attics. In dwellings or dwelling units with split levels and without an intervening door 
between the adjacent levels, a smoke alarm installed on the upper level shall suffice for the adjacent 
lower level provided that the lower level is less than one full story below the upper level. 

FD16. Where more than one smoke alarm is required to be installed within an individual dwelling unit or sleeping 
unit in Group R-1, R-2, R-3, R-3.1, or R-4, the smoke alarms shall be interconnected in such a manner that 
the activation of one alarm will activate all of the alarms in the individual unit.  The alarm shall be clearly 
audible in all bedrooms over background noise levels with all intervening doors closed (CFC 907.2.11.3). 

FD17. Carbon monoxide alarms combined with smoke alarms shall comply with Section 420.4, all applicable 
standards, and requirements for listing and approval by the Office of the State Fire Marshal, for smoke 
alarms. (CBC 420.4.3.1).  

FD18. (CFC 903.2.18) Group U private garages and carports accessory to Group R-3 occupancies. Carports 
with habitable space above and attached garages, accessory to Group R-3 occupancies, shall be 
protected by residential fire sprinklers in accordance with this section. Residential fire sprinklers shall be 
connected to, and installed in accordance with, and automatic residential fire sprinkler system that 
complies with Section R313 of the California Residential Code or with NFPA 13D. Fire sprinklers shall be 
residential sprinklers or quick-response sprinklers, designed to provide a minimum density of 0.05 /ft2 
(2.04 mm/min) over the area of the garage and/or carport, but not to exceed two sprinklers for hydraulic 
calculation purposes. Garage doors shall not be considered obstructions with respect to sprinkler 
placement. 

FD19. Garage Separation. Separations shall comply with the following: 

1) The private garage shall be separated from the dwelling unit and its attic area by means of a 
minimum ½ inch (12.7 mm) gypsum board applied to the garage side. Garages beneath habitable 
rooms shall be separate from all habitable rooms above by not less than a 5/8 inch (15.9mm) 
Type X gypsum board or equivalent. Door openings between a private garage and the dwelling 
unit shall be equipped with either solid wood doors or solid or honeycomb core steel doors not 
less than 1 3/8 inches (34.9 mm) thick, or doors in compliance with Section 715.4.3. Openings 
from a private garage directly into a room used for sleeping purposes shall not be permitted. Doors 
shall be self-closing and self-latching. 

2) Ducts in a private garage and ducts penetrating the walls or ceilings separating the dwelling unit 
from the garage shall be constructed of a minimum 0.019 inch (0.48 mm) sheet steel and shall 
have no openings into the garage. 

3) A separation is not required between a Group R-3 and U carport, provided the carport is entirely 
open on two or more sides and there are not enclosed areas above. 

FD20. Buildings under construction shall meet the condition of “Chapter 33 Fire Safety During Construction and 
Demolition” of the 2022 California Fire Code. Structures under construction, alteration or demolition, shall 
be provided with no less than one 2A10BC fire extinguisher as follows: 

1) At each stairway on all floor levels where combustible materials have accumulated. 

2) In every storage and construction shed. 

3) Where special hazards exist included, but not limited to, storage and use of combustible and 
flammable liquids.  



Conditions of Approval  
1017 Magnolia Street | COA24-0003 Page 5 of 7 

 

FD21. A set of plans must remain on the job site at all times. Appointments for inspectors should be made at 
least two days in advance of required inspection by calling the Fire Department at (626) 403-7304.  

FD22. The City of South Pasadena Fire Department reserves the right to change or otherwise modify 
requirements based upon receiving additional project information or other unforeseen circumstances. 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

PW1. The applicant shall obtain City approval for any modifications or revisions to the approval of this project.  
Deviations not identified on the plans may not be approved by the City, potentially resulting for the project 
to be redesigned/resubmitted.  

PW2. The applicant shall pay all applicable City fees including Public Works Department plan review fee and 
permit fees per the current adopted Master Fee Schedule, which can be found on the City’s website. This 
includes all costs incurred by the Public Works Department for the use of professional services or 
consultants in the review, investigation, and/or plan check of the public improvement plans. The applicant 
shall provide receipts of all applicable fees paid prior to submitting plans for review. The applicant shall 
identify all on-site existing City easements. Any conflict with and/or presence of existing easements must 
be addressed. A Title Report, with effective date within the last 60 days, may be required to verify presence 
of easements.  The applicant shall show all easements (if any) per the Title Report to the satisfaction of the 
Public Works Department. 

PW3. The applicant shall show the existing grade, location, and dimensions of all existing and proposed 
conditions within the public right-of-way including, but not limited to curb and gutter, sidewalk, driveway, 
traffic striping, signage, utilities, storm drain facilities, trees, and all other features.   

PW4. Magnolia Street shall be photographed and video recorded before the start of construction and after 
construction for assessing the damage caused to the street by construction related activity. The applicant 
will be responsible to restore the public right-of-way to its original condition and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer. These video recordings and photographs shall be submitted to the City before the project 
approval and immediately upon completion of the project.  

PW5. Prior to issuance of a permit, the applicant shall perform a video inspection of the existing sewer lateral for 
obstructions and remove any obstructions observed. Provide a copy of the inspection video of the cleared 
pipe for review. 

PW6. The applicant shall replace all broken, damaged, or out-of-grade sidewalk and driveway approaches, and 
repaint all curb markings along the perimeter of the property to the satisfaction of the City Engineer 
regardless of when or how such condition originally occurred per SPMC Section 31.54. All improvements 
within the public right-of-way shall conform to the current Standard Specifications for Public Works 
Construction (SSPWC) and Standard Plans for Public Works Construction (SPPWC). 

1) The applicant shall install new 4” thick sidewalk with maximum cross slope of 2% conforming to the 
current Standard Plans for Public Works Construction (SPPWC) Std Plan 112-2. Concrete shall be 
class 520-C-2500 and shall conform to the current Standard Specifications for Public Works 
Construction (SSPWC). 

2) The applicant shall remove and replace the existing driveway approach with/install a new driveway 
approach conforming to the current Standard Plans for Public Works Construction (SPPWC) Std 
Plan 110-2, Type B. Concrete shall be class 520-C-2500 and shall conform to the current Standard 
Specifications for Public Works Construction (SSPWC). The applicant shall verify the width with 
the Planning Department and the actual limits of concrete removal with the Public Works 
Department. 



Conditions of Approval  
1017 Magnolia Street | COA24-0003 Page 6 of 7 

 

PW7. The applicant shall contact the City of South Pasadena Water Operations Manager, Victor Magana, 
VMagana@SouthPasadenaCA.gov for the fire flow test. The applicant shall submit water demand 
calculations to the City for potable water and fire (if applicable). The calculations will be used to verify the 
adequacy of the existing water meter connection for the proposed structure and Fire Department approved 
fire sprinkler system (if applicable). The applicant shall coordinate with the Water Operations Manager the 
size, location and the associated fee for the installation of a new water meter connection. 

PW8. Provide an arborist report and clear site plan of what trees are being removed.  Submit a design narrative 
with the arborist report explaining why certain trees are being removed and what alternative options were 
considered to preserve the existing trees. 

PW9. Show all existing and proposed trees, including size and species, and indicate their disposition.  If any trees 
(12” in diameter or greater and/or native trees) are to be removed, apply for a tree removal permit with the 
Public Works Department per City Ordinance No. 2328 amending Section 34.10 of SPMC.  See SPMC 
Section 34.12 for the required information and process for the trees that are proposed to be removed and/or 
impacted during construction.  Replacement trees shall be planted per SPMC Section 34.12-5.  If existing 
trees are to remain on site, the applicant shall note on the plans methods of protecting existing trees during 
construction. 

PW10. The applicant shall include the following information on the plans: 

1) Provide a 24-hour emergency contact number for the applicant and contact information of all utility 
agencies involved/impacted/potentially impacted by this project on the title sheet of the plans.   

2) The location, grade, and dimensions of all existing conditions and proposed improvements within 
the public right-of-way, including, but not limited to, curb and gutter, sidewalk, driveway, traffic 
striping, signage, trees, utilities, pavement and other features. 

3) The location of all existing utilities on adjacent street(s), as well as location and size of all existing 
or proposed services serving the property.  Show all utility points of connection (POC). 

4) Show the location and area of trench sections for any proposed sewer and water line connections 
within the public right-of-way. Provide a trench restoration detail per City standards if any new utility 
connections are proposed. 

5) A trench restoration detail per City standards for proposed utility connections. 

6) All utility poles adjacent to the properties and note to “PROTECT-IN-PLACE”. 

PW11. The applicant shall add the following notes on the plans: 

1) The applicant shall bring the existing parkway on Magnolia Street up to current standards per 
SPMC Section 31.48. 

2) The proposed building structure shall not be constructed within critical root zone area of any trees.  
For native and protected species, use the tree trunk’s diameter measured at breast height (DBH) 
(X5) as the minimum critical root mass.  For non-native and protected species, use the tree’s DBH 
(X3) as the minimum critical root mass. 

3) Any construction activity that may require roadway closures will require a traffic control plan 
prepared by a CA licensed civil or traffic engineer or a C-31 licensed contractor to be submitted for 
review.  Safe pedestrian access, including ADA and bicycle, must be maintained at all times. All 
street closures will require an encroachment permit from the Public Works Department.  Street 
closures are only allowed between 9:00 am and 3:00 pm. Whenever there will be a street closure 

mailto:VMagana@SouthPasadenaCA.gov


Conditions of Approval  
1017 Magnolia Street | COA24-0003 Page 7 of 7 

 

exceeding thirty minutes in duration, the applicant shall provide written notification about the street 
closure to all impacted businesses and resident at least 48 hours in advance of the street closure. 

4) No overnight storage of materials or equipment within the public right-of-way shall be permitted. 

5) Temporary bins (low boy), if used, shall be “roll off” style to be provided by Athens Services.  Athens 
Services has an exclusive agreement with the City for the provision of trash removal services: only 
Athens dumpsters can be used. Any dumpsters placed on the roadway shall require a protective 
barrier underneath (such as plywood) to protect the pavement.  The applicant shall obtain dumpster 
permit from the Public Works Department. 

6) The applicant shall obtain oversize/overload permits from the Public Works Department for any 
oversized equipment used during the stages of construction, including, but not limited to: 
demolition; clearing and grubbing; grading; material disposal; drilling for piles and/or caissons; 
trenching for footings; excavation for retaining walls; core sampling of soils; etc. 

7) The applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit from the Public Works Department for any work 
proposed within the public right-of-way. 

 



ATTACHMENT 2 
Building Permits 

  



























































































ATTACHMENT 3 
Architectural Plans 

  



D
A

H
L 

A
R

CH
IT

E
CT

S 
IN

C.
11

34
 E

L 
CE

N
TR

O
 S

TR
E

E
T

Date

Sheet

Drawn

A-1
Job

APD

Scale

REV.            DATE 

(6
26

) 5
64

-0
01

1 
 a

dr
ia

n@
da

hl
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
m

SO
U

TH
 P

A
SA

D
E

N
A

 C
A

 9
10

30

AS NOTED

CO
VE

R 
SH

EE
T,

 S
HE

ET
 IN

DE
X,

ST
AT

IS
TI

CS
/I

NF
O 

CA
LC

UL
AT

IO
NS

,
VI

CI
NI

TY
 M

AP
, S

IT
E 

PL
AN

2/8/2024

D
A

H
L

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S 
IN

C
.

10
17

 M
AG

NO
LI

A 
ST

.
SO

UT
H 

PA
SA

DE
NA

, C
A 

91
03

0

M
IL

ES
/L

IN
 H

OM
E

SCOPE OF WORK

1/8"=1'-0"
EXISTING SITE PLAN1

A-1

1/8"=1'-0"
PROPOSED SITE PLAN2

A-1

N.T.S.
VICINITY MAP3

A-11/8"=1'-0"
SIGHTLINE STUDY (SOUTH ELEVATION)4

A-1



D
A

H
L 

A
R

CH
IT

E
CT

S 
IN

C.
11

34
 E

L 
CE

N
TR

O
 S

TR
E

E
T

Date

Sheet

Drawn

A-1A
Job

APD

Scale

REV.            DATE 

(6
26

) 5
64

-0
01

1 
 a

dr
ia

n@
da

hl
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
m

SO
U

TH
 P

A
SA

D
E

N
A

 C
A

 9
10

30

N.T.S.

EX
IS

TI
NG

 S
IT

E 
PH

OT
OS

D
A

H
L

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S 
IN

C
.

10
17

 M
AG

NO
LI

A 
ST

.
SO

UT
H 

PA
SA

DE
NA

, C
A 

91
03

0

M
IL

ES
/L

IN
 H

OM
E

321

654

EXISTING PROPOSED

2/8/2024



D
A

H
L 

A
R

CH
IT

E
CT

S 
IN

C.
11

34
 E

L 
CE

N
TR

O
 S

TR
E

E
T

Date

Sheet

Drawn

A-1B
Job

APD

Scale

REV.            DATE 

(6
26

) 5
64

-0
01

1 
 a

dr
ia

n@
da

hl
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
m

SO
U

TH
 P

A
SA

D
E

N
A

 C
A

 9
10

30

N.T.S.

NE
IG

HB
OR

HO
OD

CO
NT

EX
T 

PH
OT

OS
D

A
H

L
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S 

IN
C

.

10
17

 M
AG

NO
LI

A 
ST

.
SO

UT
H 

PA
SA

DE
NA

, C
A 

91
03

0

M
IL

ES
/L

IN
 H

OM
E

7

8 9

10 11
2/8/2024



1/4"=1'-0"
EXISTING FLOORPLAN1

A-2

D
A

H
L 

A
R

CH
IT

E
CT

S 
IN

C.
11

34
 E

L 
CE

N
TR

O
 S

TR
E

E
T

Date

Sheet

Drawn

A-2
Job

APD

Scale

REV.            DATE 

(6
26

) 5
64

-0
01

1 
 a

dr
ia

n@
da

hl
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
m

SO
U

TH
 P

A
SA

D
E

N
A

 C
A

 9
10

30

1/4"=1'-0"

EX
IS

TI
NG

 A
ND

 P
RO

PO
SE

D
 F

LO
OR

PL
AN

S
D

A
H

L
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S 

IN
C

.

10
17

 M
AG

NO
LI

A 
ST

.
SO

UT
H 

PA
SA

DE
NA

, C
A 

91
03

0

M
IL

ES
/L

IN
 H

OM
E

1/4"=1'-0"
PROPOSED FLOORPLAN2

A-2

1/4"=1'-0"
2ND FLOOR FLOORPLAN3

A-2

2/8/2024



D
A

H
L 

A
R

CH
IT

E
CT

S 
IN

C.
11

34
 E

L 
CE

N
TR

O
 S

TR
E

E
T

Date

Sheet

Drawn

A-3
Job

APD

Scale

REV.            DATE 

(6
26

) 5
64

-0
01

1 
 a

dr
ia

n@
da

hl
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
m

SO
U

TH
 P

A
SA

D
E

N
A

 C
A

 9
10

30

1/4"=1'-0"

NO
RT

H 
AN

D 
SO

UT
H 

EL
EV

AT
IO

NS
,

DO
OR

 A
ND

 W
IN

DO
W

 S
CH

ED
UL

ES
D

A
H

L
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S 

IN
C

.

10
17

 M
AG

NO
LI

A 
ST

.
SO

UT
H 

PA
SA

DE
NA

, C
A 

91
03

0

M
IL

ES
/L

IN
 H

OM
E

1/4"=1'-0"
EXISTING NORTH ELEVATION1

A-3 1/4"=1'-0"
EXISTING SOUTH ELEVATION2

A-3

1/4"=1'-0"
PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION3

A-3 1/4"=1'-0"
PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION4

A-3

2/8/2024



D
A

H
L 

A
R

CH
IT

E
CT

S 
IN

C.
11

34
 E

L 
CE

N
TR

O
 S

TR
E

E
T

Date

Sheet

Drawn

A-4
Job

APD

Scale

REV.            DATE 

(6
26

) 5
64

-0
01

1 
 a

dr
ia

n@
da

hl
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
m

SO
U

TH
 P

A
SA

D
E

N
A

 C
A

 9
10

30

1/4"=1'-0"

W
ES

T 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

D
A

H
L

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S 
IN

C
.

10
17

 M
AG

NO
LI

A 
ST

.
SO

UT
H 

PA
SA

DE
NA

, C
A 

91
03

0

M
IL

ES
/L

IN
 H

OM
E

1/4"=1'-0"
EXISTING WEST ELEVATION1

A-4

1/4"=1'-0"
PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION2

A-4

1017 MAGNOLIA
MATERIAL BOARD

2/8/2024



D
A

H
L 

A
R

CH
IT

E
CT

S 
IN

C.
11

34
 E

L 
CE

N
TR

O
 S

TR
E

E
T

Date

Sheet

Drawn

A-5
Job

APD

Scale

REV.            DATE 

(6
26

) 5
64

-0
01

1 
 a

dr
ia

n@
da

hl
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
m

SO
U

TH
 P

A
SA

D
E

N
A

 C
A

 9
10

30

1/4"=1'-0"

EA
ST

 E
LE

VA
TI

ON

D
A

H
L

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S 
IN

C
.

10
17

 M
AG

NO
LI

A 
ST

.
SO

UT
H 

PA
SA

DE
NA

, C
A 

91
03

0

M
IL

ES
/L

IN
 H

OM
E

1/4"=1'-0"
EXISTING EAST ELEVATION1

A-5

1/4"=1'-0"
PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION2

A-5

1017 MAGNOLIA
MATERIAL BOARD

2/8/2024



D
A

H
L 

A
R

CH
IT

E
CT

S 
IN

C.
11

34
 E

L 
CE

N
TR

O
 S

TR
E

E
T

Date

Sheet

Drawn

A-6
Job

APD

Scale

REV.            DATE 

(6
26

) 5
64

-0
01

1 
 a

dr
ia

n@
da

hl
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
m

SO
U

TH
 P

A
SA

D
E

N
A

 C
A

 9
10

30

1/4"=1'-0"

EX
IS

TI
NG

 A
ND

 P
RO

PO
SE

D
RO

OF
PL

AN
S

D
A

H
L

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S 
IN

C
.

10
17

 M
AG

NO
LI

A 
ST

.
SO

UT
H 

PA
SA

DE
NA

, C
A 

91
03

0

M
IL

ES
/L

IN
 H

OM
E1/4"=1'-0"

EXISTING ROOFPLAN1
A-6

1/4"=1'-0"
PROPOSED ROOFPLAN2

A-6

2/8/2024



D
A

H
L 

A
R

CH
IT

E
CT

S 
IN

C.
11

34
 E

L 
CE

N
TR

O
 S

TR
E

E
T

Date

Sheet

Drawn

A-7
Job

APD

Scale

REV.            DATE 

(6
26

) 5
64

-0
01

1 
 a

dr
ia

n@
da

hl
ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
m

SO
U

TH
 P

A
SA

D
E

N
A

 C
A

 9
10

30

1/4"=1'-0"

SQ
. F

T.
 C

AL
CU

LA
TI

ON
S

D
A

H
L

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S 
IN

C
.

10
17

 M
AG

NO
LI

A 
ST

.
SO

UT
H 

PA
SA

DE
NA

, C
A 

91
03

0

M
IL

ES
/L

IN
 H

OM
E

1/4"=1'-0"
1ST FLOOR SQ. FT. CALCULATIONS2

A-7

1/4"=1'-0"
2ND FLOOR SQ. FT. CALCULATIONS1

A-7

2/8/2024



ATTACHMENT 4 
Renderings 

  













ATTACHMENT 5 
Project Narrative 



Dahl Architects, Inc 

1134 El Centro Street 
South Pasadena, CA  91030 
(626) 564-0011, (626) 564-1591 fax

1017 Magnolia Street CHC Project Narrative – November 29, 2023 

This project involves a single-family home that was built in 1904.  It was built in a turn of the 
century style most closely related to Queen Anne cottage or bungalow – although it is more simplified 
than typical Queen Anne homes and lacks some of the usual ornate detailing. 

We are proposing a new rear addition including a small 2nd story popup.  The total addition area 
on both floors will be 797 sq. ft. along with a 274 sq. ft. covered back porch and a small uncovered 
balcony/roofdeck above.  We are also proposing a new driveway to reactivate the garage that has no 
current access or connection to the street. 

The original massing of the home was rectangular with a steeply pitched hipped roof broken up 
by bay windows, a forward facing gable, and an inset front covered front porch entry.  Most of the 
ornamentation is on the front, with arches on two sides of the porch, decorative window mullion divides, 
and the gabled roof.  The rest of the home is mostly unadorned, with exposed rafters, narrow width 
horizontal siding, double hung wood windows, and exposed brick foundation stem walls that become 
more visible as the grade slopes down to the south (rear). 

There was a newer rear addition added some time in the last 110 years since the home was 
built that doesn’t quite fit with the original home’s style and detailing.  It breaks up the rectangular 
floorplan and the rectangular symmetry of the hipped roof.  It has a shallower pitch gabled roof that 
sticks out from the hip in the back, a different plate height and rafter spacing, and lacks some of the 
same detailing from the original home like the brick stem walls and notched rafter tails.  We are 
proposing to remove most of this and replace it with a more compatible and appropriate rear addition. 

Our proposed addition will bring the primary rectangular hipped roof all the way back throughout 
the addition by extending the rooflines and ridge.  The outline of the roof will be completely rectangular 
around the home, but the exterior walls will jog inwards to create an inset covered rear porch 
reminiscent of the original porch in the front.  The addition also features a bay window in the new 
primary bedroom in the back and the popup 2nd floor that helps to break up the large roof mass in a 
similar way to the forward-facing gable on the front of the home.  The addition will use new clad 
windows with similar trim and appearance compared to the original wood windows but will be much 
more energy efficient and long-lasting.  Similarly, we are proposing Hardie cementitious siding for the 
addition which will appear similar to the original but will be less susceptible to weathering and potential 
fire damage.  In accordance with the Secretary of the Interiors Guidelines for Alterations to Historic 
Homes, the proposed addition will be offset with jogs of about 2’ on each side and a change in siding 
from 3” exposure height on the original to 4” on the addition area. 



Cultural Heritage Commission 
Agenda Report ITEM NO. 5 

DATE: May 16, 2024 

FROM: Angelica Frausto-Lupo, Community Development Director 
Matt Chang, Planning Manager 

PREPARED BY: Tatianna Marin, Acting Assistant Planner 

SUBJECT: Project No. COA24-0005 – A request for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness (COA) for a 469 square-foot second-story 
addition to the rear of an existing two-story single-family 
dwelling at 1617 Spruce St. (APN: 5320-009-019). In 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA), the project qualifies for a Categorical Exemption 
under Section 15301, Class 1 (Existing Facilities) and Section 
15331, Class 31 (Historical Resource 
Restoration/Rehabilitation). 

Recommendation  
Staff recommends that the Cultural Heritage Commission: 

1. Finding the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
pursuant to Sections 15301 and 15331 of the CEQA Guidelines.

2. Staff recommends that the Cultural Heritage Commission approve the project,
subject to an additional review by the Cultural Heritage Commission Chair and
Conditions of Approval (Attachment 1).

Background 

Constructed in 1923, the subject site is included in the City’s Inventory of Historic 
Resources. The residence is designed with the influence of Spanish Colonial Revival 
style. The subject site is located within the Oneonta Park District as a potentially eligible 
historic district. The Oneonta Park District is a good example of a neighborhood of 
modestly-sized period revival single-family residences, with a high degree of integrity, in 
South Pasadena. Its period of significance is from 1907 to 1950, which encompasses 
the earliest residence to the latest. 66% of the buildings within the district boundary are 
contributing; therefore, the district is eligible for designation as a local historic district. 
The home in its original condition has good integrity with minimal modifications to the 
existing building shell. After its original built, the home had an interior remodel, one 
addition, as well as other minor permits that were pulled for reroofing, plumbing, 
electrical and mechanical permits. (Attachment 2 - Building Permits) 



Cultural Heritage Commission   1617 Spruce Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0005 
 

Page 2 of 10 
 

 
The subject site is located on the south side of Spruce Street. The property measures a 
total of 8,753 square feet. The property has an approximate depth of 175 feet and an 
approximate width of 50 feet. The subject site is currently developed with a two-story, 
single-family residence and an attached two-car garage.  
 

Image 1: Street View of the Property 

 
 
The Spanish Colonial Revival style is noticeable in the structures’ current condition with 
the use of; Spanish roofing tiles on a low gabled roof, iron railings, ceramic vents, and 
arched windows openings. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness to construct a 
469 square foot second story rear addition above the existing one story attached garage 
to include a new bedroom, bathroom and walk in closet, expanding the existing 2nd floor 
into the new addition.  When complete, the home will total 2,913 square-feet with four 
bedrooms. Minor interior improvements are proposed on the first floor as well, as 
illustrated in the plans. (Attachment 3 – Project Plans) 



Cultural Heritage Commission   1617 Spruce Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0005 
 

Page 3 of 10 
 

 
PROJECT ANALYSIS 
 
General Plan Consistency   
 
The General Plan land use designation of the project is Very Low Density 
Neighborhood, which allows for detached single-family units. The proposed project does 
not involve a subdivision of the existing lot; therefore, it is consistent with the General 
Plan.  
 
Development Standards 
  
The subject site is located within the Residential Estate (RE) zoning district. The 
existing land use and density of the project site complies with Section 36.220, 
Residential Zoning Districts of the South Pasadena Municipal Code (SPMC). The 
purpose of the residential design review process is to ensure that the proposed work 
and building design are suitable and compatible with the City’s design standards and 
guidelines. Pursuant to Section 36.220.050 (Development of Small Nonconforming 
Residential Parcels), the subject lot is deemed nonconforming, because it is less than 
10,000 square-feet in size. Residential development standards from SPMC Sections 
36.220.040 and 36.220.050 were applied to the proposed project. The following table 
lists the project’s conformance with applicable development standards.    
 

(RE) Residential Estate Development Standards Compliance 

Standard Requirement Existing Proposed 

Lot Coverage  
50% 

(4,376 SF max. 
allowed) 

23.5% 
2,063 SF  

Unchanged  

Floor Area Ratio 
(FAR)  

35% 
(3,063 SF max. 

allowed) 
27.9% 

2,444 SF  
33.2% 

2,913 SF 

Building Height 35 ft. 26 ft. 4 in Unchanged  

Off-Street 
Parking 2-Car (Covered) 2-car garage Unchanged 

Front Setback  
15’ (with porch) 
20’ (w/o porch) 52 ft. 7 in.  Unchanged  

Side Setback 
(East)  

10% of lot width 
(5 ft. minimum) 5 ft. Unchanged 



Cultural Heritage Commission   1617 Spruce Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0005 
 

Page 4 of 10 
 

Standard Requirement Existing Proposed 

Side Setback 
(West)  

10% of lot width 
(5 ft. minimum) 9 ft. 8.5 in. Unchanged 

Rear Setback 20 ft 46 ft. 4 in. Unchanged 
 
Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
 
The proposed addition requires a Certificate of Appropriateness with review and 
approval from the Cultural Heritage Commission as the addition is larger than the 200 
square-foot threshold for CHC review as stipulated in Section 2.65 of the SPMC. The 
subject property has been identified as a contributor to an eligible historic district in the 
South Pasadena Inventory of Historic Resources. As such, an addition should be 
visually subordinate, or secondary, to the original structure. 
 
The scope of work consists of a new rear addition above the existing attached garage 
with interior remodel to the original floor plan.  
 
DESIGN REVIEW  
 
Project Design Elements  
 
The addition is proposed at the rear of the home and is proposed above the existing 
attached garage. The new addition will incorporate materials to match the existing style 
such as new stucco and roofing material.  
 
The addition does not alter the original style of the home or modify original features, 
elements, or spaces, as illustrated in the development plans. The roof of the addition 
will match the existing clay tile roofing of the existing main house and will be matching 
the existing stucco siding.  
 
The proposed windows and doors schedule calls out wood material for the new doors 
and windows, to be consistent to the styles found in Spanish Colonial Revival homes 
(Attachment 6 – Material Brochures). 
 
In addition, the single-family home will remain compatible to the single-family residential 
tract, as the existing design style of the home will not be modified.   
 
City of South Pasadena Design Guidelines for Historic Properties  
 
As codified in the SPMC section 2.65, the City of South Pasadena Design Guidelines 
for Alteration and Additions to Historic Residences are to be assessed in the issuance 
of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA). As stated on Page 9 of the Design Guidelines 
for historic resources, the guidelines are based on the Secretary of the Interior’s 



Cultural Heritage Commission   1617 Spruce Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0005 
 

Page 5 of 10 
 

Standards for Treatment of Historic Properties, which intend to foster the preservation 
and rehabilitation of the character defining features. The standard procedure for historic 
buildings is to identify, retain, and preserve the form and detailing of the architectural 
materials and features that are important in defining the historic character of the 
structure. Additions or alterations are encouraged to be compatible with these historic 
features. The Design Guidelines includes a section focused on Mission and Colonial 
Revival styles (pages 12-13).   
 
The Spanish Colonial Revival style architecture is not a unifying featured style in the 
neighborhood, as the neighborhood tract contains a variety of architectural styles such 
as but not limited to English, Craftsman, Colonial, Tudor and Mission Revival.  
 
The materials, finishes, detailing, and size/mass of the additions, with the proposed 
work, are all compatible with the existing style and color of the home. The property will 
retain the original architectural style after the proposed addition.  
 
Findings 
 
Required Certificate of Appropriateness Findings 
 
In order to approve a Certificate of Appropriateness, the Cultural Heritage Commission 
shall first find that the design and layout of the proposed addition complies with the 
findings as stipulated in the SPMC.  
 
Mandatory Findings  
 
The Cultural Heritage Commission shall make all the required findings listed below.  
 

1. The project is consistent with the goals and policies of the General Plan.  
 
The proposed project is consistent with the General Plan, specifically with Goal 
8.0 of the Land Use Element of the General Plan by harmonizing physical 
change to preserve South Pasadena’s historic character, scale, and “small town 
atmosphere”. The area where the addition is proposed is partly visible from the 
street with minimal impact to the existing roof form. The proposed addition has 
been designed to be subordinate, contemporary, and to be treated as new 
additions without applying new interpretations to the original design. The property 
will continue to be used as a single-family residence, in addition to retaining the 
original Spanish Colonial Revival influenced design. Existing and original 
features are also maintained, therefore preserving the historic character, scale, 
and “small-town atmosphere” as to the surrounding land uses.  

 
2. The project is consistent with the goals and policies of this article.  

 
The project is consistent with the goals and policies of the Cultural Heritage 
Ordinance. The project implements the goals of the Cultural Heritage Ordinance 



Cultural Heritage Commission   1617 Spruce Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0005 
 

Page 6 of 10 
 

by encouraging and perpetuating the long-term, viable use of the cultural 
resource. The project preserves the architectural and aesthetic features of the 
historic home consistent in a manner that is generally consistent with the 
Secretary of Interior’s Standards.  
 

3. The project is consistent with the applicable criteria identified in 
subsection (e)(8) of this section which the commission applies to 
alterations, demolitions, and relocation requests.  
 
The project, including the residence’s addition, is consistent with the City of 
South Pasadena’s Design Guidelines; the following are most relevant to the 
proposed modifications and addition to the property: 
 

1. “Roofs are the most significant features that define the massing and 
proportions of historic residences in South Pasadena. Roof forms, 
pitch, overhangs at eaves, and roofing materials vary widely by 
architectural style…The original roof form should be preserved. Any 
replacement of deteriorated features or addition of small features 
should be done in the style of the original building, considering the 
original roof form and slopes.” (p. 26) 

2. “Additions should be located at the rear or secondary sides of a historic 
building, set back from the primary facades, and should be limited in 
size and scale in relation to the existing structure. Additions should 
have limited visibility from the street.” (p. 36) 

3. “New additions should be compatible in mass and scale with the 
neighborhood, and should be visually subordinate to the original 
building.” (p.37) 

4. “Additions should be placed at the building rear and set back from the 
front to minimize the visual impact on the historic structure from the 
public right-of-way so that the original proportions and character 
remain prominent.” (p. 39) 

5. “Window mullion widths, window trim, and surrounds should be 
consistent with the existing windows.” (p. 42) 

 
The proposed project is consistent with the applicable criteria identified under 
subsection (e)(8) of section 2.65 Certificate of appropriateness – Alteration and 
demolition of the South Pasadena Municipal Code. In addition to the standards in 
the Secretary of Interior’s Standards of Rehabilitation. 

 
 
 
 
 



Cultural Heritage Commission   1617 Spruce Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0005 
 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Consistency with Secretary of the Interior Standards 

Standard 

Staff’s Recommended 
Consistency 

Determination 

Standard 1: A property will be used as it was 
historically or be given a new use that requires minimal 
change to its distinctive materials, features, spaces, 
and spatial relationships 

Consistent.  

Standard 2: The historic character of a property will be 
retained and preserved. The removal of distinctive 
materials of alteration of features, spaces, and spatial 
relationships that characterize a property will be 
avoided. 

Consistent.  

Standard 3: Each property will be recognized as a 
physical record of its time, place, and use. Changes 
that create a false sense of historical development, 
such as adding conjectural features or elements from 
other historic properties, will not be undertaken. 

Consistent.  

Standard 4: Changes to a property that have acquired 
historic significance will be retained and preserved. 

Consistent.  
 

Standard 5: Distinctive materials, features, finishes, 
and construction techniques or examples of Spanish 
Colonial Revival that characterize a property will be 
preserved. 

Consistent.  

Standard 6: Deteriorated historic features will be 
repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of 
deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive 
feature, the new feature will match the old in design, 
color, texture, and, where possible, materials. 
Replacement of missing features will be substantiated 
by documentary and physical evidence. 

Consistent.  

Standard 7: Chemical or physical treatments, if 
appropriate, will be undertaken using the gentlest 
means possible. Treatments that cause damage to 
historic materials will not be used. 

Consistent.  

Standard 8: Archeological resources will be protected 
and preserved in place. If such resources must be 
disturbed, mitigation measures will be undertaken. 

Consistent, no 
archeological resources 
are known to exist on the 
site.   

Standard 9: New additions, exterior alterations, or 
related new construction shall not destroy historic 
materials that characterize the property, the new work 
shall be differentiated from the old and shall be 
compatible with the massing, size, scale, and 

The massing, size, scale 
and architectural features 
are consistent with this 
proposal; however, the 
new addition may not be 



Cultural Heritage Commission   1617 Spruce Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0005 
 

Page 8 of 10 
 

Consistency with Secretary of the Interior Standards 

Standard 

Staff’s Recommended 
Consistency 

Determination 

architectural features to protect the historic integrity of 
the property and its environment. 

differentiated enough 
from the old.  

Standard 10: New additions and adjacent or related 
new construction shall be undertaken in such a manner 
that if removed in the future, the essential form and 
integrity of the historic property and its environment 
would be unimpaired. 

Consistent.  

 
Recommended Project Specific Findings for a Certificate of Appropriateness  
(2, 5, and 6) 
 

Finding No. 2: The project is appropriate to the size, massing, and design 
context of the historic neighborhood; 
 
The project is appropriate to the size massing, and design context of the historic 
residence and the surrounding areas as the massing and style of the home will 
remain the same. The building materials, finishes, and detailing are compatible to 
the existing historical architectural design of the subject residence. Additionally, 
the neighborhood is comprised of a variety of other architectural styles. The 
proposed addition has been designed to be subordinate, contemporary, and to 
be treated as new additions without applying new interpretations to the original 
design. Therefore, the proposed addition will be harmonious and compatible with 
the surrounding potentially historic neighborhood.  

 
Finding No. 5: The project adds substantial new living space (for example: 
a second story toward the rear of a residence) while preserving the single 
story [architectural style or building type] character of the streetscape; 
 
The proposed project consists of a 469 square foot second story rear addition 
above the existing one story attached garage to include a new bedroom, 
bathroom and walk in closet, expanding the existing 2nd floor into the new 
addition. The addition is to the rear of the property and will not be visible from the 
public right-of-way.   
 
The proposed addition is consistent with the surrounding residential land uses, 
which also contain one and two-story, single-family residences and will help 
further enjoy the existing use of the property. The proposed addition will not 
modify the front facade, helping to preserve the original structure and streetscape 
in compliance with the design guidelines for historic properties.  
 



Cultural Heritage Commission   1617 Spruce Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0005 
 

Page 9 of 10 
 

Finding No. 8: The project will be compatible with the appearance of 
existing Improvements on the Site and the new work will be compatible 
with the massing, size, scale, and Character-Defining Features to protect 
the Historic Integrity of the property and its environment.  
 

 The proposed project consists of an addition to the rear of the property, above 
 the existing attached garage. As proposed, the addition is subordinate to the 
 existing home and the proposed roof line of the second-story addition will be 3 
 feet beneath the existing roof line. The addition will match the existing clay tile 
 and the existing sand finish stucco. In addition, the new second-floor addition will 
 have new windows that will also match the existing material and style of wood 
 windows. The project as proposed will maintain the character defining features of 
 Spanish Colonial Revival style.  
 
Environmental Analysis 
 
This project qualifies for a categorical exemption from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) analysis based on State CEQA Guidelines Section 15301, Class 1 
(Existing Facilities) and Section 15331, Class 31 (Historical Resource 
Restoration/Rehabilitation). 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the Cultural Heritage Commission:  

1. Finding the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to Sections 15301 and 15331 of the CEQA Guidelines.  
 

    2.  The proposed design meets many criteria of the design guidelines and staff is 
 comfortable moving this project forward recommending an approval of this 
 project. Staff has identified several areas of the project that will require 
 continued refinement.  However, these items could be addressed through a 
 condition of approval (Condition No. P4), requiring that the Cultural Heritage 
 Commission Chair review the revised architectural plans prior to the building plan 
 check process.  These items are: 
 

a. Design refinement on the proposed South elevation.  
b. Articulation for the proposed second story addition to create enough 

differentiation from the new and old construction.  

Alternatives to Consider 
 
The Cultural Heritage Commission has the following options available: 
 

1. The Cultural Heritage Commission can Approve the project as is or with modified 
condition(s) added or removed and provide findings; or 



Cultural Heritage Commission   1617 Spruce Street 
May 16, 2024 Project No. COA24-0005 
 

Page 10 of 10 
 

 
2. The Cultural Heritage Commission can Continue the project, providing the 

applicant with clear recommendations to revise the proposal; or  
 

3. The Cultural Heritage Commission can Deny the project if it finds that the project 
does not meet the City’s COA requirements.  

 
Public Noticing 
 
A Public Hearing Notice was published on May 3, 2024, in the South Pasadena Review. 
Hearing notices were sent to all properties within a 300-foot radius on May 2, 2024.  In 
addition, the public was made aware that this item was to be considered at a public 
hearing, by virtue of its inclusion on the legally publicly noticed agenda, posting of the 
same agenda and reports on the City’s website. 
 
Next Steps  
 
If the Cultural Heritage Commission approves the project, a 15-day appeal period will 
commence in which any person affected by the decision may appeal the decision for a 
public hearing by the City Council. Should there be no appeals during this 15-day 
period, the applicant may proceed through the plan check process with the Planning 
Division to review the construction plans to ensure that all conditions are satisfied prior 
to submittal with the Building Division.  
 
Attachments 
 

1. Conditions of Approval  
2. Building Permit History 
3. Project Plans  
4. Project Narrative  
5. Site Pictures  
6. Materials Brochure 

 



Attachment 1  

Conditions of Approval  



Conditions of Approval  
1617 Spruce Street | COA24-0005 Page 1 of 8 

 

 Attachment 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Certificate of Appropriateness 
Project No. COA24-0005  

1617 Spruce Street (APN: 5320-009-019) 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT 
REQUIREMENTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PLANNING DIVISION:  

P1. The following approvals are granted as described below and as shown on the development 
plans submitted to the Cultural Heritage Commission on May 16, 2024:   

Certificate of Appropriateness for: 
a. A 469 square-foot second-story addition to the rear of an existing two-story 

single-family dwelling at 1617 Spruce St. 
 

P2. This approval and all rights hereunder shall terminate within 18 months of the effective 
date of their approval by the Cultural Heritage Commission unless otherwise conditioned 
and/or unless action is taken to secure Building Permits and maintain active Building 
Permits with the Building Division beginning with the submittal of the plans for Plan Check 
review. 
 

P3. Approval by the Cultural Heritage Commission does not constitute a building permit or 
authorization to begin any construction. An appropriate permit issued by the South 
Pasadena Building Division must be obtained prior to construction, enlargement, 
relocation, conversion or demolition of any permitted or unpermitted building/structure on 
the property involved with the Certificate of Appropriateness. 

 
P4. A revised set of architectural plans shall be submitted to the Cultural Heritage Commission 

Chair for review and approval prior to the building plan check process. The revised plans 
shall address design refinement on the South Elevation and provide adequate 
differentiation on the exterior elevations. 

 
P5. All other requirements of any law, ordinance, or regulation of the State of California, City 

of South Pasadena, and any other government entity shall be complied with. 
 

Note:  As a convenience to the applicant, the development requirements from applicable Departments/Agencies 
are listed herein.  These requirements list what the applicant will be required to comply with in order to receive 
a Building Permit, a Certificate of Occupancy, or other Department-issued entitlement. 



Conditions of Approval  
1617 Spruce Street | COA24-0005 Page 2 of 8 

 

P6. Compliance with and execution of all conditions listed herein shall be necessary prior to 
obtaining any occupancy inspection clearance and/or prior to obtaining any occupancy 
clearance. 

 
P7. The applicant and each successor in interest to the property which is the subject of this 

project approval, shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of South Pasadena 
and its agents, officers and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the 
City or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of 
the City, City Council or Commission concerning this approval. In the event of any claim 
or lawsuit, the applicant and/or successor shall submit a deposit in such amount as the 
City reasonably determines necessary to protect the City from exposure to fees, costs or 
liability with respect to such claim or lawsuit. 

 
P8. Any modification to the approved plans shall require review and approval of the Planning 

Division.  
 
Notes on Construction Plans 
The contractor shall be responsible to implement and monitor compliance with the 
following conditions: 
P9. The construction site and the surrounding area, including sidewalks, parkways, gutters, 

and streets, shall be kept free of all loose materials resembling trash and debris in excess 
of that material used for immediate construction purposes at all times. Such excess may 
include but is not limited to: the accumulation of debris, garbage, lumber, scrap metal, 
concrete, asphalt, piles of earth, salvage materials, abandoned or discarded furniture, 
appliances or other household fixtures. Such debris shall be removed immediately from 
the street to prevent road hazards or public health related issues. 

P10. The hours of all construction activities shall be limited to the following:  8:00 am to 7:00 
pm, Monday through Friday, 9:00 am and 7:00 pm Saturday, and construction on Sundays 
limited to 10:00 am to 6:00 pm. 

P11. When applicable, during construction, the demolition, clearing, grading, earth moving, or 
excavation operations that cause excessive fugitive dust emissions shall be controlled by 
regular water or other dust preventive measures using the following procedures: 

a. All material excavated or graded shall be sufficiently watered to prevent excessive 
amounts of dust. Watering shall occur at least twice daily with complete coverage, 
preferable in the late morning and after work is done for the day; 

b. All material transported on-site or off-site shall be either sufficiently watered or 
securely covered to prevent excessive amounts of dust; 

c. The area disturbed by clearing, grading, earth moving, or excavation operations 
shall be minimized so as to prevent excessive amounts of dust; and 

d. Visible dust beyond the property line emanating from the project shall be prevented 
to the maximum extent feasible. 



Conditions of Approval  
1617 Spruce Street | COA24-0005 Page 3 of 8 

 

P12. All on-site landscaping, including the front yard and parkway areas, which are damaged 
during construction shall be revitalized upon completion of construction, as necessary, 
prior to final building permits. All landscaping, including the parkway, shall be maintained 
in a healthy, green, pruned, growing condition. 

 
 
BUILDING DIVISION: 
B1. The second sheet of building plans shall list all conditions of approval and to include a 

copy of the Letter of Determination from Planning. This information shall be incorporated 
into the plans prior to the first submittal for plan check. 

B2. Plans prepared in compliance with the current building code in effect shall be submitted 
to Building Division for review prior permit issuance. 

B3. School Developmental Fees shall be paid to School District prior to the issuance of the 
building permit. 

B4. Park Impact Fee to be paid at the time of permit issuance. 
B5. Per Chapter 16A of the City of South Pasadena Municipal Code, Growth fee to be paid 

at the time of permit issuance. 
B6. Structural calculations prepared under the direction of an architect, civil engineer or 

structural engineer shall be provided. 
B7. Each sheet of the plans shall be stamped and signed by a California licensed architect 

or engineer per R301.1.3.2 as adopted and amended by the City, for all dwellings of 
wood frame construction more than one story in height or with a basement located in 
Seismic Design Category D0, D1, or D2 or E. 

B8. Preliminary MS4 Project Application (MS4-1 FORM) completed by Engineer of Record 
shall be copied on the first sheet of Building Plans and on the first sheet of Grading 
Plans. The form can be found at the following link 
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/chxsvdnb9u6uuxb25ua76/SP-MS4-1-LID-
Determination-Form.pdf?rlkey=d7q43dh29lurp3ma1g4acbote&dl=0  

B9. Project shall comply with the CalGreen Residential mandatory requirements. 
B10. Fire-resistance rating requirements for exterior walls and Maximum area of exterior wall 

openings and degree of open protection based on fire separation distance of 0 to 5 feet 
for dwellings and accessory buildings shall comply with Table R302.1(1) or with Table 
R302.1(2) as applicable. 

B11. Existing garage shall be separated from the addition above per Section R302.6 of the 
Residential Code. 

B12. Proposed chimney at the first floor shall be extended 2 feet above any portion of the 
building within 10 feet of the chimney per Section R1003.9 of the Residential Code. 

B13. Exterior placement of proposed mechanical equipment shall comply with Mechanical 
Code regarding minimum required distance to a building opening. 

https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/chxsvdnb9u6uuxb25ua76/SP-MS4-1-LID-Determination-Form.pdf?rlkey=d7q43dh29lurp3ma1g4acbote&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/chxsvdnb9u6uuxb25ua76/SP-MS4-1-LID-Determination-Form.pdf?rlkey=d7q43dh29lurp3ma1g4acbote&dl=0


Conditions of Approval  
1617 Spruce Street | COA24-0005 Page 4 of 8 

 

 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT: 

PW1.   The applicant shall obtain City approval for any modifications or revisions to the approval 
of this project.  Deviations not identified on the plans may not be approved by the City, 
potentially resulting for the project to be redesigned/resubmitted.  

 
PW2.   The applicant shall pay all applicable City fees including Public Works Department plan 

review fee and permit fees per the current adopted Master Fee Schedule, which can be 
found on the City’s website. This includes all costs incurred by the Public Works 
Department for the use of professional services or consultants in the review, 
investigation, and/or plan check of the public improvement plans. The applicant shall 
provide receipts of all applicable fees paid prior to submitting plans for review. 

 
PW3.   Spruce Street shall be photographed and video recorded before the start of construction 

and after construction for assessing the damage caused to the street by construction 
related activity. The applicant will be responsible to restore the public right-of-way to its 
original condition and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. These video recordings 
and photographs shall be submitted to the City before the project approval and 
immediately upon completion of the project.  

 
PW4.   Prior to issuance of a permit, the applicant shall perform a video inspection of the existing 

sewer lateral for obstructions and remove any obstructions observed.  Provide a copy of 
the inspection video of the cleared pipe for review. 

 
PW5.  The applicant shall replace all broken, damaged, or out-of-grade sidewalk and driveway 

approaches and repaint all curb markings along the perimeter of the property to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer regardless of when or how such condition originally 
occurred per SPMC Section 31.54. All improvements within the public right-of-way shall 
conform to the current Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (SPPWC). 

 
i. The applicant shall install new 4” thick sidewalk with maximum cross slope of 

2% conforming to the current Standard Plans for Public Works Construction 
(SPPWC) Std Plan 112-2.  Concrete shall be class 520-C-2500 and shall 
conform to the current Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction 
(SSPWC). 
 

ii. The applicant shall remove and replace the existing driveway approach 
with/install a new driveway approach conforming to the current Standard Plans 
for Public Works Construction (SPPWC) Std Plan 110-2, Type B. Concrete 
shall be class 520-C-2500 and shall conform to the current Standard 
Specifications for Public Works Construction (SSPWC).  The applicant shall 
verify the width with the Planning Department and the actual limits of concrete 
removal with the Public Works Department. 

 



Conditions of Approval  
1617 Spruce Street | COA24-0005 Page 5 of 8 

 

PW6.  The applicant shall contact the City of South Pasadena Water Operations Manager, Victor 
Magana, VMagana@SouthPasadenaCA.gov for the fire flow test. The applicant shall 
submit water demand calculations to the City for potable water and fire (if applicable). 
The calculations will be used to verify the adequacy of the existing water meter 
connection for the proposed structure and Fire Department approved fire sprinkler 
system (if applicable). The applicant shall coordinate with the Water Operations Manager 
the size, location and the associated fee for the installation of a new water meter 
connection. 
 

PW7.   Provide an arborist report and clear site plan of what trees are being removed. Submit a 
design narrative with the arborist report explaining why certain trees are being removed 
and what alternative options were considered to preserve the existing trees. 

 
PW8.  Show all existing and proposed trees, including size and species, and indicate their 

disposition. If any trees (12” in diameter or greater and/or native trees) are to be 
removed, apply for a tree removal permit with the Public Works Department per City 
Ordinance No. 2328 amending Section 34.10 of SPMC. See SPMC Section 34.12 for 
the required information and process for the trees that are proposed to be removed 
and/or impacted during construction. Replacement trees shall be planted per SPMC 
Section 34.12-5. If existing trees are to remain on site, the applicant shall note on the 
plans methods of protecting existing trees during construction.  

 
PW9.  The applicant shall include the following information on the plans: 

i. The 24-hour emergency contact number for the applicant and contact information of 
all utility agencies involved/impacted/potentially impacted by this project on the title 
sheet of the plans. 

ii. The location of all existing utilities on adjacent street(s), as well as the location and 
size of all existing or proposed utilities serving the property. Show all utility points of 
connection (POC). 

iii. Show the location and area of trench sections for any proposed sewer and water line 
connections within the public right-of-way. Provide a trench restoration detail per City 
standards if any new utility connections are proposed. 

 
PW10.  The applicant shall add the following notes on the plans: 

i. The proposed building structure shall not be constructed within critical root zone area 
of any trees. For native and protected species, use the tree trunk’s diameter measured 
at breast height (DBH) (X5) as the minimum critical root mass. For non-native and 
protected species, use the tree’s DBH (X3) as the minimum critical root mass. 

ii. Any construction activity that may require roadway or lane closures where two-way 
traffic cannot be accommodated will require a traffic control plan prepared by a CA 
licensed civil or  traffic engineer or a C-31 licensed contractor to be submitted for 
review. Safe pedestrian access, including ADA and bicycle, must be maintained at all 
times. All street closures will require an encroachment permit from the Public Works 
Department. Street closures are only allowed between 9:00 am and 3:00 pm. 
Whenever there will be a street closure exceeding thirty minutes in duration, the 



Conditions of Approval  
1617 Spruce Street | COA24-0005 Page 6 of 8 

 

applicant shall provide written notification about the street closure to all impacted 
businesses and residents at least 48 hours in advance of the street closure. 

iii. No overnight storage of materials or equipment within the public right-of-way shall be 
permitted. 

iv. Temporary bins (low boy), if used, shall be “roll off” style to be provided by Athens 
Services. Athens Services has an exclusive agreement with the City for the provision 
of trash removal services: only Athens dumpsters can be used. Any dumpsters placed 
on the roadway shall require a protective barrier underneath (such as plywood) to 
protect the pavement. The applicant shall obtain dumpster permit from the Public 
Works Department. 

v. The applicant shall obtain oversize/overload permits from the Public Works 
Department for any oversized equipment used during the stages of construction, 
including, but not limited to: demolition; clearing and grubbing; grading; material 
disposal; drilling for piles and/or caissons; trenching for footings; excavation for 
retaining walls; core sampling of soils; etc. 

vi. The applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit from the Public Works Department 
for any work proposed within the public right-of-way. 

 
FIRE DEPARTMENT:   

FD1. Required Code References:  Current South Pasadena Municipal Code (SPMC); 2022 
 California Fire Code (CFC); 2022 California Building Code; Title 19 and applicable NFPA 
 fire standards. 
 
FD2. Fire Sprinklers are required per South Pasadena Municipal Code. Submit plans to City 
 for approval. 
 
FD3. Provide a Water Flow Test from City of South Pasadena Water Department at time of 
 submittal along with fire sprinkler plans. 
 
FD4. Group R.  An automatic sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 903.3 shall 
 be provide throughout all buildings with a Group R fire area. 
 
FD5. Fire sprinklers shall not be able to shut off unless the domestic line to the property is shut 
 off.  There shall be no other means to turn off water to the sprinkler system.  
 
FD6. The applicant shall provide a full set of drawing of the sprinkler system to the Fire 
 Department prior to beginning of work. 
 
FD7. Water Supplies.  Water supplies for automatic sprinkler systems shall comply with this 
 section and the standards referenced in Section 903.3.1.  The potable water supply shall 
 be protected against backflow in accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 
 13114.7. 
 



Conditions of Approval  
1617 Spruce Street | COA24-0005 Page 7 of 8 

 

FD8. Required water supply.  An approved water supply capable of supplying the required fire 
 flow for fire protection shall be provided to premises upon which facilities, buildings or 
 portions of buildings are hereafter constructed or moved into or within the jurisdiction. 
 
FD9. Fire flow requirements for buildings or portions of buildings and facilities shall be 
 determined by an approved method or Appendix B. 
FD10. The fire code official shall be notified prior to the water supply test.  Water supply tests 
 shall be witnessed by the fire code official or approved documentation of the test shall be 
 provided to the fire code official prior to final approval of the water supply system. 
 
FD11. Address Identification. New and existing buildings shall have approved address numbers, 
 building numbers or approved building identification placed in a position that is plainly 
 legible and visible from the street or road fronting the property. These numbers shall 
 contrast with their background. Where required by the fire code official, address numbers 
 shall be provided in additional approved locations to facilitate emergency response.  
 Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters. Numbers shall be a  
 minimum of 4 inches (101.6 mm) high with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 inch (12.7 mm). 
 Address numbers shall be maintained. 
 
FD12. Notwithstanding anything else in this code, or any other code incorporated, herein, by  
 reference any new roof shall be of Class “A” roof material. 
 
FD13. Groups R-2, R-2.1, R-3, R-3.1, and R-4.  Single or multiple-station smoke alarms shall be 
 installed and maintained in Groups R-2, R-2.1, R-3, R-3.1 and R-4 regardless of occupant 
 load at all of the following locations: 

i. On the Ceiling or wall outside of each separate sleeping area in the immediate 
vicinity of bedrooms; 

ii. In each room used for sleeping purposes. 
iii. In each story within a dwelling unit, including basements but not including crawl 

spaces and uninhabitable attics.  In dwellings or dwelling units with split levels 
and without an intervening door between the adjacent levels, a smoke alarm 
installed on the upper level shall suffice for the adjacent lower level provided 
that the lower level is less than one full story below the upper level. 
 

FD14. Interconnection.  Where more than one smoke alarm is required to be install within an 
 individual dwelling unit or sleeping unit in Group R-1, R-2, R-3, R-3.1, or R-4, the smoke 
 alarms shall be interconnected in such a manner that the activation of one alarm will 
 activate all of the alarms in the individual unit.  The alarm shall be clearly audible in all 
 bedrooms over background noise levels with all intervening doors closed (CFC 
 907.2.11.3). 
 
FD15. Where required for new construction, an approved carbon monoxide alarm shall be 
 installed in dwelling units and in sleeping units within which fuel-burning appliances are 
 installed; and in dwelling units that have attached garages. 
 



Conditions of Approval  
1617 Spruce Street | COA24-0005 Page 8 of 8 

 

FD16. Power Supply.  For new construction, required carbon monoxide alarms shall receive 
 their primary power from the building wiring where such wiring is served from a 
 commercial source and shall be equipped with a battery back-up.  Alarm wiring shall be 
 directly connected to the permanent building wiring without a disconnecting switch other 
 than as required for overcurrent protection.  
FD17. Interconnection.  Where more than one carbon monoxide alarm is required to be 
 installed within the dwelling unit or within a sleeping unit, the alarm shall be 
 interconnected in a manner that activation of one alarm shall activate all of the alarms in 
 the individual unit (CBC 420.4.1.2). 
 
FD18. Alarm Requirements.  Single and multiple station carbon monoxide alarms shall be 
 listed as complying with the requirements of UL 2034.  Carbon monoxide detectors shall 
 be listed as complying with the requirements of UL 2075.  Carbon monoxide alarms and 
 carbon monoxide detectors shall be installed in accordance with this code, the current  
 edition of NFPA 720 “Standard for the Installation of Carbon Monoxide (CO) Detection 
 and Warning Equipment” and the manufacturer’s installation instructions.  Other carbon 
 monoxide alarm and detection devices are recognized in NFPA 720 are also 
 acceptable.  
 
FD19. Carbon monoxide alarms combined with smoke alarms shall comply with Section 420.4, 
 all applicable standards, and requirements for listing and approval by the Office of the 
 State Fire Marshal, for smoke alarms.  (CBC 420.4.3.1). 
 
FD20. Buildings under construction shall meet the condition of “Chapter 33 Fire Safety During 
 Construction and Demolition” of the 2022 California Fire Code. Structures under 
 construction, alteration or demolition, shall be provided with no less than one 2A10BC 
 fire extinguisher as follows: 

i. At each stairway on all floor levels where combustibles materials have 
accumulated. 

ii. In every storage and construction shed. 
iii. Where special hazards exist included, but not limited to, the storage and use 

of combustible and flammable liquids. 
  

FD21. A set of plans must remain on the job site at all times.  Appointments for inspections 
 should be made at least two days in advance of required inspection by calling the Fire 
 Department at (626) 403-7304. 
 
FD22. The City of South Pasadena Fire Department reserves the right to change or otherwise 
 modify requirements based upon receiving additional project information or other 
 unforeseen circumstances. 



Attachment 2 

Building Permit History  



1617 SPRUCE STREET

Por. Lot 13, Block F, Oneonta Park Tract



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA
I JOB CARD

ADDRESS: 1617 Spruce Street
DATE; 

8/ 19/ 65

OWNER: W. A. Barnes

CONTRACTOR: Monarch

Roofings (
796 =6191) 

PERMIT NUMBER: 58661 VALUE: T 93 . O FEE: 

JOB: roof repair



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

BUILDING AND ALLIED PERMITS

LOCATION l l7 snroc, 
LOT   BLOCK  TRACT O eO/ 7 C / 

1

OWNER _ 

TRENCH I FRAME WIRING RGH. PLMB. SEWER IFIN. P FIX

DATE NUMBER CL ASSIFICATION CONTRA OR ESTIMATEDCOST

BUILDING

ELEC. WIRING

ELEC. FIXTURES

PLUMBING

SEWER

HOUSE CONN. 

Pnrm Rf12 - KM 11 - Z -: ift Pnnfhlll Reviam



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA
BUILDING AND ALLIED PERMITS

LOCATION _ N y h UcL ` 

LOT _ _ BLOCK F TRACT

OWNER

TRENCH I FRAMES-, WIR4< G I RGH. PLIAB. I SEWER FIN. PLMB. FIN. BLDG. I ELEC. FIX, 
DATE NUMBER CLASSIFICATION CONTRACTOR ESTIMATEDCOST

BUILDING O

O ELECT. WIRING

ELECT. FIXT URES 

PLUMBING

SEWER

HOUSE CONN. 

F........ -- 29 RECORD /,/ / 7 , 5 6'e // F tea- 



CITY O SOUTH PASADENA
BUIL G AND ALLIED PERMITS

LOCATION ( J

LOT BLOC TRACT

OWNER

TRENCH FRAM WIRING I RG H. PLMB. SEWER FIN PLM6. FIN. SLOG. ELEC. FIX. 

DATE I NUMBER CLASSIFICATION CONTRACTOR
ESTCIOMSATED

BUILDING 000 ' 

ELEC._ WIRING

ELEC. FIXTURES

PLUMBING

SEWER

HOUSE CONN. 



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA
BUILDING AND ALLIED PERMITS

LOCATION

JA /
7 y` P[/ CE } Q_T

LOT Fee /, i BLOCK F TRACT

OWNER

DESCRIPTION Eiye nnF T/'4JF- c,- 12'6 FAC -E / // Jd. QS ANj __ 

DATE NUMBER CLASSIFICATION CONTRACTOR PERMITFEE

PLAN CHECKING

BUILDING

TEMP POWER, 

ELEC. WIRING

ELEC. FIXTURES

PLUMBING

BEWER

HOUSE CONN. 

DRIVEWAY

FURNACE



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA ,
JOB CARD

BUILDING DEPARTMENT

LOCATION /% o / 7 Sp e!/, ST Mzs. G. G_ PQE.Pr

BUILDINGp,MD.AFL No. Z- 2 /° 7' 7

GENERAL CONTRACTOR HONE - 

ELECTRICAL

PLUMBING

ITEM DATECALLED TIME
DATE INSPECT

1) MADE ( 2) PATECLEARED INSPECTOR

TRENCHES A. m. P. M. 

FRAME P. M. 

A. M. 

VENTS & FURN. P. M. 

WIRING P. M. I / 
y

PLUMBING j/ M. P. M. 

LATH

FINAL PLUMB. 

P, M. 

A. M. P. M. 

FINAL ELECT. A. M. P. M. 

FINAL BUILD. 

A. M. 

MISC. 
P. M. A. M. 
P - M. 



ITEM DATE REMARKS



NUMBER

dSTREET 1617 Spruce St. 

APPLICATION FOR A

PLUMBING PERMIT

BUILDING BEPARTMENT CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CALIFORNIA

TELEPHONE 799 -9101 • 682 -2175

CONTRACTOR

Holman

ST. LIC, NO. 

119485
MAI L DORESS

1500 hl Centro St. 
CITY LIC. NO. 

10219

Uouth iasadena Calif. W613115
Dw NE

eaeon S; toe1 Cori). 

FHONE

682' 3644
MAIL ADDRESS

1606 Huntington Dr. : 1o. i' as. 

S fLesidence

NO. E FIXTURE

ZONE

NO EACH FIXTURE NO EACH FIXTURE

BATHTUBS ACC. SINKS WASHINGMACHINES

STALL SHOWERS

FLOOR SINKS

DDRAINS WATERHEATERS

1 LAVATORYS P`- RAPS VENTS

WATER CLOSETS GARBAGEDISPOSALS WATER PIPE

URINALS SHWASHERS

SPRINKLER

KITCHENSINKS
RY

AVS DRINKINGFOUNTAINS

TOTAL FOR ABOVE FIXTURES 0200 ea, $ 4. 00

SAND OR GREASE TRAPS @2. 50 $ 

GASPIPESYSTENI 50UTLETS 2. 50 $ 

EACH ADDITIONAL OUTLET 50 $ 

SOIL OR VENT PIPE ALTER OR REPAIR 2. 00 $ 

DILUTING TANK OR WATER SOFTENER 3. 50 $ 

BUILDING DRAIN, ALTER OR REPAIR 4. 00 $ 

SEWERS, CESSPOOLS, SEPTIC TANKS @6. 00 ea. $ 

SWIM POOL 10. 00 $ 

ADDITIONAL INSPECTION 05. 0018. $ 

INVESTIGATION FEE

OTHER

BLANKET PERMIT 3. 00 $ 

PLUMBING PERMIT 250 $ 
2. 50

WHEN PROPERLY VALIDATED, HERE, j 1 9 1 JQTAL FEE $ 
6 50

THIS FORM CONSTITUTES A PERMIT J • I U I t i'. '  H
FOR THE WORK DESCRIBED HEREON. 

I hove , v fellY recd and a ' n ed the above oppli- fio and lid the some to be Irue v d

re t. All o vi on of the " 1 and Ordinances save ' e building constr on, Will beom lid - ill wh th r. oecilied he v No r sh. be PPI yed i id. 11 of
the Labor C de f he 5 0 0l C, 

II` 
o n I IO

pelso

emllgw o p y f a y
bull ding vorhorized by thlsp mil until fino

lg- 
Tins //pealonnnhos'' been re< e ed. 

PERMANENT



INSPECTION RECORD. 



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA
1414 Mission Street • South Pasadena, California 9100

619) 799 - 9101

PLANNING & BUILDING DIVISION
PLAN CHECK APPLICATION

ncaressl J% 
Lot
INo. 

Black

I
Tract

Owns - _ -- --- _ 

Ryl3nr S
Address 

7

7 MGN S' 

eg / 4, • SPn U c 6 S( dar

City Z I. 

S 9A- 3, tDCrQA 21/ c.3v zl3j7s 26yy
Arch., Engr., - - 
Designer

Address T. I. 

Pmpo ad

City ,

r .( p•J •'• ZJ

EI P(

n} 
Constry lion

SLFt . 
StoSize t3 I Stories  I Unita 1

New  Add. K Alter.  Repair  Demolluon , 

U. B. C. Type Occ. 

Edition Z. Co et. Group

Occ. 

p
F. D. Appr. H. D. Appr. 

Loatl)+ C'C.,t. 6 k' Y 1L I Required  Required  

Grad lI  Obtained  N. A. Required  Obtained  N. A. Permll

Use Permll Des. Rev. APN

Requlretl  Requlretl L] 
No Lot

BearDpma size

VALUATION: $ ¢ 

F
PLAN CHECKING FEE 1wu

G
E

E J
TOTAL 3 To 5' ` 0

WARNING: Plan Check Fees, where no action Is taked. by the applicant in One
Hundred Eighty ( 180) Days and no Building Permit is issued, are forfeited to the
City. 

1 certify that 1 have read this application and state that the above Information Is

correct. I agree to compl y with all city and countye ordinances and stale laws real. ing to building construction, and hereby out Ize presentallve8 0l this City to solar
upon the above - mention p opeft fo a lion purDasea. 

Sig a[ ure of Appllca '
7 -` may -! 

Darr _/f-4
alling Addfe ss—,/_ C/ 

t

pf{
1 L/ /`

Ar
t] /,/] 



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

APPROVED
BY

NUMBER OF SHE



mm

bo v0
a

F*7 rri

O A G

W A

r 

p a
z 4 U

Fwd

FEgy

i -1- "1

Made in Duplicate. 

City of
No. J..7.,I _'T. --- 

Sowth Pasadena

Department of Buildings

Thts permit heeomes null and void
If work Is not commenced within

so days from Is of issue. 

South Pasadena, Cali -..-/- - -. 1923

Permission is here
granted to. ---- .----- 

j......-.•- -._._.._- 

Owner

Owner' s Address: •- ---- - ------- o. %..C. 

f1---------------------------- 
City and State ------- ..................................... Phon _es...._...

w.........._....... 

Contractor' s Name ....... 4s :..... _. ... .............. 
Contractor' s Address: --- _ ................ • - ---•- ........ •. 

City and State. ...... ...... . ..- -- --......._.__ Phones ......- °-... 

To ......... FMS:..._.. {' ... 43 ........:........._....--- 

off

On Lot /a(! f% _ _ -. ..._..._..,

q..--- ...... 

Block..h ... ............................ 

Tract..(:- _.._ t_:... 

Street and Number__._re+. f .x..._..... + . r-!` - ,- ._.... 

In accordance with Application No ...... ... ............. ....... .. .. /. -. on file la this oflice, and

subject to the provisions of the - Building Ordinances of the City of South
Pasadena. 

u. 

Estimated value, 

Fee, $.. o._ ........ 

building Inspector. 

Owner must post nspe and on jo ) 

tL. Z• y



z
0

U
W
0.. 

z
O
w

w
F

z

A

Made in Duplicate No ......... 66.11

City of South Pasadena
C7 tl

Department of Building Inspection
y A

tl k'" This permit becomes null and void - 

p, if work is not commenced within

e u $ 
90 days from date of issue. 

7
A

d
South Pasadena, Calif ------- ............ 1_. 

Permission is hereby

granted to----- ---- - ---- .... -` S., Owner
Owner' s Address- -- / J% QIiF

a City and State --------- 3d.: -
am `

5--•'•4 - -• -- -- Phones .......................... 

71  
s Contractors Name.. - C... r..  - ----------------- 

dA% 

Fy
o

m Contractor' s Address:...... : Fz- .....lof! % 4 ....... 

City ......... and State...... — ... %. B ! Phones. L,.L.......----- 

To. T.- E Q .T. a.----- oD rl 

7 ^ 
tl 

On Lot ...1 - ........................ Block

Tract..... 

Q' o
w Street and Number .... A5_l7 - - - -- °R !. cf _ 

Subject to the provisions of the Building Ordinances of the City of South Pasadena. 

ZEstimated Value, $......, 

xFee, $ z 4.... .- .... .. -- --- --- 
BUILDIN

By....... ............ .... ----- - -- - --- .....:------------ ------ --.... ......-------...- 

Owner must post Inspecion Card on job) 

Form 656. 8 - 1 - 28 Mock



CITY OF SOUI PASADENA • ELECTRICAL
1414 Mission Street • South Pasadena a California 91030 B 799 -9101

PLANNING & BUILDING DIVISION PERMIT

L

O

MJ
W

I

CL

4— 

O

A CBI

i

W

V/ 

Building / 
Jo / 7Addrou ! 

OWDH- 

NEW E %[ STING NO BfiRY. ECONN[ CT

BUILDING BUILDING CHANGE F[ SfiAL

MeilingAAdr. xi  t / 

Ciy Zip Tsl, 

to3o z/ 

Conlrefter  

Add,- /„

L••• /

7

Gy Ii TPI J . y

Sloe Li.. ciy
cl*- H 96 45"6 C-- / a lic. No. 

LICENSED CONTRACTOR' S DECLARATION

n 1DRl p h ..:. zI PYo. PCod, . d mrwlth

nn
tgl " o

IkenN le In force nitd . fAet. 

OWNER- BUILDER DECLARATION

1 Yen - w m- Wt I . n e. Nept from the Cgnln. tw'. Li— L. w for the

tdhrvin. ns

t, u owner o[ tm P. operly. w mY . mploYe.. rith wyae w their . d. rpmpen- 
lxtbn, will d. di. work.. td N. — t— k oat I. Nndnl ar o11- 1 1- . nk. 

d M. 0— ts.. m .. mml.. k mnlneun. with naenBd . w. 1... ne. wr. to — o— w• pnINL

1 11 — SPe n. dw B. e. B. a P. C. Nr th.. wron: 

Mle lhrnw

WORKERS' COMPENSATION DECLARATION

L M1f Worknin— Canwmlltbn leqOeak of ronnlOW

npf
lh• rof. a IS— 81 0, or . r

iaeo: eod.. l

P14" Nn. C• mp. nY

1 WvruIU W. feIW.  IrIdO.. 

CERTIFICATE. OF EREMPTION FROM

WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE

Thl. Nr+ip. • M - I M — 9. a U Ike wait 4 lo. nr k. Mr. d dNN.. 181001

I wk fpr w 11f w. ukiwt Im. l. I • 1 r[ Ilr 0.1 Ye pnp . Into oY the wn
U

m w N

WerkenPOompen. ntbn Va. of C111fwnl
nNOTICE TD APPLICANT; It.. fke . tvkf.. 1M'.

nCMi /
fwe. y E. — Fa. n oo. wd

t . d. A• Ax. e a.. lorNMfk rbanph Wlfkit A Db.l:.fwto. rA4 or p I.^ nor ' W.. 

I ." It, 0. 1 1 h.• e n• I Ihk . p INU. n d rule W. t the nhwe inlwnyUon
k meet. I Aqwrae.. eonu] Y wkM1 NI qe . vM .• engnxY wnAl a kw. of U6 rltyil' u M1" IMI Mvo-m•ntivoud o'm_pe.

eeyl[
av-In. F̀epe_tl puRr

SlIF— of Appll/n.

Gtw

D. I. 

M. EIn. AWdnr_ e V 7 / 
Gbt•

i/ r.' e

a.QKERTA. IRhIa zlP

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

APPLICATION FOR AN

ELECTRICAL PERMIT

IIILDINO , Hv000N . CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CALIFORNIA

TELEPHONE 799 - 9101 • DATE: 

BEECRIFTION OF WORE

3. 00 a. 

NEW E %[ STING NO BfiRY. ECONN[ CT

BUILDING BUILDING CHANGE F[ SfiAL

FEE COMFUTATNIN

FI% TUR. S RECEPTACLES SINIT114- FN. 1E.. AddltroMl
gANB OVEN GARB. OI9P. 

@ 340 6LS

Z 0 20

WATER NTR. FAN OUTLET DISH WSHR. 

W. II H. CafllaE HalDn
Up N 1650 WI U11 ro 1$ 50 W

WASHING MACHINES @ 2.00 ea. 

220 VOLT OUTLETS @ 500 ea. 

SIGN FIXTURES @ 4.00 Ita. 

AIR HEATERS OVER 1650 W @ & OD ea. 

TEMPORARY POWER POLE 4. 00 ( NOADD' L FEE) $ 

NEW SERVICE UP TO 10D AMPS 4.00

200 AMPSa yb . S.DD OG

40D AMPS BAD f

Over 400 AMPS 7. 00

Makin ond. r 2 hp Moron $ 0. 100 IS
3. 00 a. 10. 08

hp
Q 00 m Z 0 20
Momm 5. 15 hp Molm 5 0. 1088 OF

00 a . 

Moron 15 - 50 hp MO- — 100 hp
e 5. 00 a. S I W 40. 00 d. S

1 COLUMN TOTAL — _ 

INVESTIGATION FEE 5

BLANKET PERMIT 6.00 $ 

ELECTRICAL PERMIT 5. 00 S. S. 4® 
TOTAL $ / • oa

VALUATION OF
ABOVE WORK f

P. C. FEE AND - 
VALIDATION f

PERMIT FEE f

INVESTIGATION FEE f TOTAL FEE f

PROCESSED SPEC. 

BY COND. 

PERMIT C

A VALIDATION DATE

NO. 
U

INSPECTOR COfY
WHEN PROPERLY VALIDATED, THIS FORM CONSTITUTES A PERMIT

CONSTA HRS. 8 Akl - 7 PM ONLY DO THE WORK DESCRIBED HEREON. 
ORD. NO. 1582



INSPECTION RECORD INSPECTOR NOTES

GROUND WORK

ROUGH WIRING

FINISH

FIXTURES

EDISON NOTIFIED

PARTIAL OR MISC. INSPECTIONS

Underground electrical conduit diagram

FINAL ELECTRICAL INSPECTION Z



V J

rill

O

U_ 

ryJ 
i s

CL

4— 

O

A W

E

w

CITY OF SOPTH PASADENA BUILDING
1414 Mission Street • South Pasadena a California 91030 • 799 -9101

PERMITPLANNING III BUILDING DIVISION

Address

uilding
U. B. C. Type Occ. 

ddress Edition Cons4 Group

ot Bloc4 Tract Oce. F. D. APpf,  H. D. APPr.  

Loud Required Required

wn Grading YeriFermi}  Obtnined  N. A. Requirod  Obloined  N. A. 

oiling b. 
Use Permit Des. Re. APN

piJ Required  Required  

Ci. Zio TeI. No, I lot

Ciry

Proposed

Sq. Ft. No. No, Dw. 

Size D Storie Units

New  Add.  Aller.  

s

Repair  Demolition  

MCENSED CONTRACTOR' S DECLARATION

I hereby erOi the, I Ilreneed der Drovl 1* z r ClupUr urIN & elion ] 0001 0! Divle lon i of tAa BdeineY enJ Profmbne Cwle, endrm
lleenee . in 1. 11 t . 1. end Nf. t. 

y

OWNER. BUILOER DECLARATION

1 henbr eltlrm rbet 1 em p[ I. he Cpntrumr' e LI— I. w 1— IAe

1 ^ UwA imp reuon: ISn. ] WI .b. Bwe: wru and Pm) eeriev Cade.  1, v er ream xt fo earl. Nter, fm . ace. drmoluA, or
rniU

rie
ere aLa n e fAr aYxlvxnt / Ur eurh P i!! s li4na efpnrdwlAOl Ae Llirrnnrd pu w roe t NI n/ NeeL'or ilm n n I.( ererla u mCApvfer B IaommrnriAp wi<A Srrtfae OOOI VO/ P'vi. ivn p of W Bruinr n. d

ProJreeime Cade, r Ml Ae : e: t A e) rom, d Ae boeu Im hr

jptAeuninrr. `
nx iofetbn of s. r n opp oryr nnH a ( v ppee ie n n

fire to a it pewf xtol n f eti / fr Awndr d Iof( pr lisbnl rm

L.- owner M the property. m employ. x wirT rag. lheh le

xwan, IR as we ro nd ne el l n nm Imma. d o ati.. edrpr
ISer. ion. Bwnineu e d

YProlee.
ionx ('adr: rTh- r' '. rl. irrner lair

don xarA' lhimrf/ no etA ruoA him — 01"". n m"' 1 fhv! rwA i
na

wd r

pldnu rndrd D ollr edmfyle[ ul. fA ox,n rnAUiIE~ A RdAuw the n.MrnofrnU avr p tAalrthendid npN rherM .  pr— / or

Then
non rp7nedr. l

rl, u of the p Y. , em eclueively rtrer[ in ItA Ii. nerJ ron- 

Ae ro) eer_ [ Sin. TBUi Bwfnree a Pro( rnfaxe C— Irn, n' e Li a % a n n om

u I
u•Aa

uiWn o Arr r d 11- a 1 P eurApro %erdenrrifA roof mrbrl 1iir rerpw. rrawe t u e n bar I-.1

I em exempt Under Bee. . B. d P. C. for thle rtueon

mte

PLAN CHECKING FEE

BUILDING FEE

F

E S. M. I. FEE

E

S

B

O

S

Fermil

W4, w > 

WORKERS' COMPENSATION DECLARATION

1 hereby 0— 11, el 1 have n — fir of ro self- ineurc. p nfR- 

u! Workers Compenutlon Inaurenxe, . a rcr[ i Ord rope therAr. l3e. ttaflW, 
i":eer cwr. t
Piney xp. wmp. ny

Copy le fI1M  CertltiN copy ie
rilb thr city. hereby Nrnlahed. 

CERTIFICATE OF E1IKM PTION FROM
WORKERE' COMPENSATION INSURANCE

ITAIe nrfion nerd we he  gem i/ the pe u u / er ewe hundred down WWI
ar lem, l 

1 ertity thsl fn We per[ armnn. or the r. 4 { oe rbbeh W. H le lYOtd. 
1 Nnll n emyloy n rue n ee M•omervNeel U
Warkeri Compenantiun Iw ve ot Cxliforniu en
NOTICE TO APPLICANT. I(, oltrr mpkfep whir Cer[ Ifirate of Eumpeb ekwld

n A) mf t Ar Wv. krri L' omnrnmhox ro 1 he Lnbor CWe, 

mwni forupitA re A,, with n' A p r [ AU pe a , A, n be domed rrxpAN. 
C( INSTRUCr10N LENDING AGENCY

1 Aerebr fiirrn lhb here fen tre' l. 4 lending penes foe the Derformee. of lM week lot rAlrh thU permir I lowed. Isar. aW]. Cry, 

Lenderi Neme

Lender'. Add, 

1 — if r Nu I here real thle ppliralion d — t t tAe . bore Infaron Om
le rrert. 1 ee pU rich ell ei end e U . dirunc. ena eUU bee
eehui b 6uMina renp ( tier. ena hereby wthorlu -- d— d— of thle dV
N en r upon Ne oboes

nN Dreperty 1. fnepetllon purDOee/ e. ey xd. 
StpnMgrt o[ Appllvent  O. 0

IfalRng AaamM' 4 , 5

City. Eute, zp

CONST. HRS. 8 AM - 7 PM ONLY This h a building permit wben properly filled oltt, sighed nd qW* 

INSPECTOR COPY ORD. NO. 1562 dated, aNd is subiect to expiration if work tbefeunder is suspended
for7$ D dayd. 



INSPECTION RECORD • 

FOUNDATION: ( Gr. Certif. Comp. Tests, Setbacks, 
Farms, Reinf. Steel, Excavation. 

INSPECTION NOTES

FLOOR SLAB / 1STS„ GIRDERS: Mesh, Vop. Barrier, 
Blkg -, Spans, Across, Vents, Tr. Lmbr. 

MASONRY: Reinf., Mortar Jts., Grow Lifts, 

Clean - Ouh, Bolls, 

ROOF SHTG, Nailing, Diaph. Blocking, Material
Grade and Thickness, Roof Drains. 

FRAMING: Walls, Raft., Jsts„ Blocking, Bracing, 

Nailing, Backing, Diaph,, Draft Stops. 

INSULATION: Thickness, R- Values, Piping, Sound
Caulking. 

FIREWALLS: Material, Thickness, Dampers, Daors, 

Closers, Fusible Links. 

INTERIOR: LATH / DRY WALL; Nailing, Supports, 
Lops. Joint Reinf, 

EXTERIOR LATH / SIDING: Mesh, Fasteners, Laps, 

Paper, Thickness, Backing. 

FINAL INSPECTION: Finish Grading Certif., Slope
Plant., Energy Compl, Cord Posted, Pkg. Access, 
Fire Doors, Exits, Locking Devices, Landings, 
House Numbers, Weather Stripping, PIJEngr. 
Clee

SWIMMING POOL / SPA

EXCAV, REINF. SETBACKS: Radius Sit., Bonding, 
Exp. Soil, Ramp Lac., Surcharge. 

FENCE / GATES: Height, Closers, Accessibility, 
la/ cher, Smbi) ify, e6r6ncK6: - 

FRONT 6106 F aNT

FINAL INSPECTION
PLOT PLAN

MISCELLANEOUS

SPRAY PAINT BOOTH, 

RETAINING WALL: 

DUST COLLECTION SYSTEM: 

VENEER: 

RE - ROOF: 
0

SIGNISI: 

INSPECTION DATE INSP. SIGN. 

d.:. .. '. .. • . 
PLEASE PLANA I" SQ. SCALE



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA PLUMBING
1414 Mission Street a South Pasadena a California 91030 a ( 818) 799 -9101

s PERMITPLANNING & BUILDING C' L

Building r PERNKT O.: ( WORKERS COMP. EXP. 

I
PROCESSED BY: 

Address / ( SA r cc, c S
Lot Tract Trod DBfe: 6_—C2_& --] 
No. 

PLUMBING PERMIT

Owner L/ BUILDING DIVISION • CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA. CALIFORNIA

1 - I Ny O Dry e 
TELEPHONE ( 51 8) 799. 9101

Mailing

I r _ 

PERMLTTEE TO COMPLETE: 

Address DESCRIPTION OF WORK

zip

Classif. 1. S A c17. S % Uc. No. 

WORKER' S COMPENSATION DECLARATION

I hereby affirm that I have a certificate of consent to self -insure or a
Certificate, of Worker' s Compensation Insurance or a certified copy
thereof ( Sec. 3800, Lab. C.). 

Policy No. Company

CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION FROM WORKER' S
COMPENSATION INSURANCE

I certify that in the performance of the work for which this

issued, f shall not employ any person in any manner so as t( 

subject to the' Worker' s Cam ensation Laws of QpI' ore' y_ 11r. n. 

gu snoura become suDlecr ro me worwer s Lompensonon provisions or

e Labor Cade, you must forthwith comply with such provisions or this
permit shall be deemed revoked. 

CONSTRUCTION LENDING AGENCY

I hereby affirm that there is a Construction lending agency for the per- 
formance of the work for. which this permit is issued. ( Sec. 3097, Civil
Code.) 

Lenders Name

Lender' s Address

LICENSED CONTRACTOR' S DECLARATION

I hereby affirm that 1 am licensed under provisions of Chapter 9 ( com- 
mencing with Section 7000) of Division 3 of the Business and Professions
Code, and my license is in full force and effect. 

Exp. Signature of
Date Contractor

OWNER- BUILDER DECLARATION

I Mreby affirm that 1 am exempt from the Contractors License Law for
the following mown: ( Sec. 7031. 5. Business and Professions Codes) 
El 1, as owner of the Property, or my employees with wages as their

sole compensation, will do the work, and the structure is not In. 
tended er effa red for sale. ( Sec. 7044, Business & Professions Codes). 

E] I, as owner of the property, am exclusively contracting with
Itosnsed controcton to construct the project. ( Sec. 7044 Business
and Professions Code.) 
1 am asompt under Sec._., B. BP. C. for this mason_ 

Dote Owner

I certify Neat I have read this opplicafion and state that the above in- 
formafion 6 correct. I agree to comply with all. city and county or- 
dinances and state laws relotin to building cons cfion, Dnd hereby
authorize represents }fives of is city To upon the above• 

mentioned property for in on

Signature of Applican atN) 

Mailing Addres

City, Stare, Zip

INSPECTOR COPY
CONST. HRS. 8 AM - 7 PM ONLY

ORD. NO. 1582

NO. EACH FIXTURE NO. IAaH FDTURE NO. EACH FIxTums

GAS PIPE SYSTEM, 1- 5 OUTLETS 010. 00

WASH IIO

ewnrrues ACC. IM." MACHINES

S

FLOOR sINKS

INVESTIGATION FEE

sTA sNC ERS AND DRAINS

EWE ,$ E i 25. 00

LAVATORYS P - TRAFs VENTS

COLUMN TOTAL

GARBAGE

WATER CLOSETS DBPOSALS WATER PME

SPRINKLER

URINALS cNe.- A- H- 11 sTSTEM

1( ITCHSN LAUNDRY DRINKING

SINKS TRAYS FOIINTAINs

TOTAL FOR ABOVE FIXTURES a 6. 00 ea

SAND OR GRFS$ E, TP P vAbAUtfdA 015. 00

GAS PIPE SYSTEM, 1- 5 OUTLETS 010. 00

PLUMBING PERMIT FEB

12. 50SOIL 0 I MIREI L115.00

S

DILUTI ANK1
r set 

INVESTIGATION FEE

BUILDINGDI itEa. tEA% IEPA11! E 015. 00 S  

EWE ,$ E i 25. 00 y

iINSTALL; REPAIR; WATER HEATER ® 7. 50

COLUMN TOTAL 1 f

POOL2 $ 20. 00

SPA

POOL $
30.

0019 SPA
s

VALUATION: 5

PLUMBING PERMIT FEB

INVESTIGATION FEE

F PLAN CHECKING PEE

E

E BLANKET PERMIT

S PERMIT ISSUANCE FEE

10 M

TOTAL 3 Y 6

12 1;! 150

CASHIER USE

537 SAO 0 13!, 50 C

This is a building permit when prop
and is subject to expirafion if work tl



INSPECTION RECORD INSPECTOR NOTES

SEWER /PRIV. DISK SYSTEM DIAGRAM



MUFUL VETECTORS RgUIRED
CITY OF SOUTH PASA ENA

1414 Mission Street s South Pasadena a California 91030 ( 818) 799 -9101

PLANNING & BUILDING DIVISION

Y

O

U

CIO

2

O

C C

0

W

BUILDING
PERMIT

Building U. B. C. Type ( Occ. Occ. f 
Address 17 SPRUCE STREET Editio Cons +. V load Group / C' 

Lot Trec+ Tract USE Variance Appr. 

No. ZONE Required

Owne r Lot

ROBERT OMENS S1Z8

Mailing
Address 16 17 SPRUQF 5TRFFJ

ctyS. PASADENA 91030 818- 441 - 4959 VALUATION: 
Contractor BUILDING FE

V. H. QUALITY CONSTRUCTION

F

Address S. M. I. FEE

So

City Zip =

1k. 
PLAN C

h' 

LOS ANGELES 92044
E

State U . Ener
Cl—"- 372158 B 1 Ot, 

E

S

Com

fnngr 7 i Pana

Desh., 
l  

Address Tel. SPECIAL

DATE: 6 6+ 7
City Zip StateLic. No. 
Proposed PER T, Iq, VOB44

WORKERS COMP. F( P. PROCESSED BY: 
Censiractian

9 oaten1
z- 

LICENSED CONTRACTOR' S DECLAR I NSq. Ft. No. No. 

Size Stories Units I hereby affirm thol"i am licensed n r pro i o pt

commencing with Section 7000) of visio 3 of u . es d a
1 Code, license is in fu I for ff

New  Add. X Alter. E] Repairs 0 Demolition  
ess and my e , 

Exp. SignatureoF
Date f . k 7 Cantra tar /) 

WORKER' S COMPENSATION DECLARATION

I hereby affirm that I have a certificate of consent to self- insure or a
y- 

OWNER- BUILDER DE RATION

certificate of Workers Compensation Insurance or o certified copy 1 h by affirm that I om exempt fro the Contractor' s License Law
thereof ( Sec. 3800, Lab. C.)). for the ( lowing mason: ( Sec, 7031. 5. Business and Professions Codes

Policy No. R – 5 6 6 0 9 Com an Fairmont I n 5 UKY P Y
Any city county which requires a permit to construct, alter, improve, 
demolish, pal any structure, prior to its issuance also requires the
applicant for h permit to file a signed statement that he is licensed
pursuant to the isfons of the Contractor' s license Low, Chapter 9

commencing with Lion 7000) of Division 3 of the Business. and Pro - 
CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION FROM WORKER' S

COMPENSATION INSURANCECOMPENSATION

certify that in the of the work for which this is
scions Code, or th he is exempt thereirom, and the basis for the

performance

issued, I shall not employy any person in any m. nn o become alleged exemption. An iolation of Section 7031. 5 b any applicant
for

subject to the Worker' s Compensation La i ornia. 
a permit subjects the licant to a civil penalty at not mom than

five hundred dollars ($ 500
Date AF I' 
NOTICE TO APPL after mokin$ ( his Ce,, Tcate of Exemption

I, as owner of The proper or my employees with wages as their
sole compensation, will o e work, The structure is not

you should a subject to the Worker s Compensation provisions of
and

intended or offered for sale. ( 7044, Business and Professions
Hse L ode, you must forthwith comply with such provisions or this Code: The Contractor' s License Law s rrotapply to on owner ofpro- 

rl shall be deemed revoked. perry who builds or impro ves thereon an ho does not work hims Er
CONSTRUCTION LENDING AGEN

through his own employees, provided fho uch improvements are not
intended w offered for sole. If, however, th Odin or improvement

I hereby ffirm that there is a construc' a e for the er• Y 9 ncY P is sold within arse year of completion, the own lout der w11 have the
formance of the work for w permit is issued. ( Sec. 3097, Civil burden of proving that he did not build or imp for the purpose of
Code.) 

role.) 

Lender' s a I, as owner of the property, am exclusively contra in with Bcens- 
7

Le er' s Add
ed contractors to construct Tfte project. ( Sec. usiness and

Prnfes+ ieoslmd., The + s•' s.iicorsse- _lases- deasitat. bon. 

I certify that I have r s applica ' on t at the we infor• 
motion o correct 1 a ee t cam id ity and countyry rdinancea

here

owner of properly who builds or improves Nxtreon, and who cis for
such prgeds wits a contractors) licensed pursuant to } ha Con is

License low.) 
and state laws rela ng to uildi o on, and authorize

representatives of qty e r P entio d property 1 am exempt under Sec—, B. & P. C. for this reaso

for inspection purposes. 

Signature of Applicant Z' 

Mailing Address N Date Owner

City, State, Zip
Z

CONST. H RS. 8 AM - 7 PM ONLY This is a building permit when properly filled out, signed and validated, 

IMPECTOIt COPY ORD. NO. 1582 and is subject to expiration if work thereunder is suspended for 180 days. 



FOUNDATION: IGr. Certif. Camp. Test,, Setbacks, 
Farms, Reinf. Steel, Excavation. 

FLOOR SLAB / JSTS., GIRDERS, Mesh, Vop. Barrier, 
Blkg., Spons, Access, Vents, Tr. Lmbr. 

INSPECTION RECORD

tQ INSPECTION NOTES

MASONRY: Reinf., Mortar IN., Grout Lifts, 

Cleon0ah, Bolls. 

ROOF SHTG: NaiBng, Diaph. Blocking, Material
Grade and Thickness, Roof Mai — 

FRAMING: Walls, Raft., Js N., Blocking, Bracing, 
y_ cC` CNailing, Backing, Diaph,. Draft Stops. 3% 

INSULATION; Thickness, R. Vdlues, Piping, Sound ACaulking. 3/ CaitC

FIREWALLS: Material, Thickness, Dampers, Dears, 

Closers, Fusible Links. 

INTERIOR: LATH / DRY WALL: Nailing, Supports, r 

Laps, Joint Reinf. v
EXTERIOR LATH / SIDING: Mat,, Fostene., Lops, 

Paper, Thickness, Backing. 

FINAL INSPECTION: Finish Grading Ce, tif., Slope
Plans., Energy Campl. Card Posted, Pkg. Access, / 
Fire Doors, Exits, Locking Devices, Landings, / lkp. 
House Numbers, Weather Stripping, PI. / Engr. / 4 Aa
Clear. 

SWIMMING POOL / SPA

EXCAV. REINF. SETBACKS: Radius Stl., Banding, 
E. P. Soil, Ramp loc., Surcharge. 

FENCE / GATES: Height, Close., Accessibility, 
Latches, Stability. 

FINAL INSPECTION

MISCELLANEOUS

SPRAY PAINT BOOTH: 

RETAINING WALL: 

DUST COLLECTION SYSTEM: 

VENEER: 

RE- ROOF: 

SIGNS); 

INSPECTION DATEINSPECTION DATE INSP. SIGN. 

7

5-1A

lN Pf / / PnThc A' JI^ PX / S /'/ v4 / vT I+ P ' f 1 L1

56TBACKS : 

FROM

PLOT

PLAI_ 
N

BBIIDDBB PPRROONNTT

STREET

PLEASE PLAN A L" SQ. SCALE

2r3. 7feZ - 6w, 

24r: 

ice3 = ,

S
bsy 2

0 %1Yr0RZ



Y

I.. L

O

U_ 
J

m

O

W

Q

14

CITY OF SOUTH PAS4DENA BUILDING
1414 Mission Street a South Pasadena e California 91030' e ( 818) 799 -9101

PERMITPLANNING & BUILDING DIVISION

Building ,'
T

Address 161 - PK Oc e - 5  
U. B. C. py
Edition Ors

Type J 
Conn[ 

Occ. 

Load

Occ. ) 

Grouper 3
Lot Tract Tract USE Variance Appr. 

No.. ZONE R —``` Req uire_d

OwnerPO` g,—=1e tFJ/ yFiv S° 
jSaeSQ /. IfCa Gp O • TA6 8 lL

7Mai1in9 /
6/ 7  R1P0e_lt, ss

City Z' /

03J
T?'

j r —f 9s VALUATION: $ O V

ConTrector/ -- - 

E . 
E

S

BUILDING FEE

Addis, 

6, 
S. M. I. FEE

WUIH PASADENA
City

7 < 
Zip

7
Te I 

O
PLAN ECKING FEE

State Lic- 
y l— 

ClassiL /.. J CityLic. Na. Z,r EnergyCompl ee
Penahy. 

VING & SAFDes goner gr. V", 1Fr Af C° 

Address

b / 7 ,/ v cf 
Tel

i— y 1
SPE l qQ1JATE: 

City / 
Zi

O3J StateLic. No. s3
Proposed - PERMIT N WORKERS COMP. - P. PROCESSED BY: 
C- 0— ti— 1/a(w Cxee 5 OQ 884 Date: 

S = zr

LICENSED CONTRACTO ' ECL

J -hereb affirm that 1 am licensedrrider p s br 9y Chap
commencing with Section 7000) of D vial n 3 e u ' ess and Pro - 

Fessions Code, and my license is in full f rc nd

sq. Ft. No. 
Size Stories No. , ® nits U /"- 

New  Add. Alter.  Repairs Imo, Demolition
Exp. Sgnature of
Date Contractor

WORKER' S COMPENSATION DECLARATION

herebyI hereby affirm that I have a certificate of consent to self- insure or a OWN CLAR fON  - 

certificate of Worker' s Compensation Insurance or a certified copy I h by affirm that I am exemppt f m the Contractor' s License Law
for the lowing ( Sec. 703 Business Professions Codesthereof ( Sec. 0, L

r 

Policy No Company'++. r, 

reason: . 5. and

Any city aunty which requires permit b construct, alter, improre, 
demolish, o pair any structure, prior to ifs issuance oho requires the
oppiimnf ( or h permit to file a signed statement that he is licensed
pursuant to the isions of the Contractors License Law, Chapter 9

commencing with cfion 7000) of Division 3 of the Business and Pro- 
CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION FROM WORKER' S

COMPENSATION INSURANCE

t certify ' the performance of the work for which this permit ish salons Code, or th he is exempt therefrom and the basis for the
alleged exemption. A

is

of Section 7631. 5 6y any applicantissued, 11 shall no to any person any manner so as to become
subject to the Workers ensation Laws of California. for o permit sub' ects the pliconf Po o civil penalty of not more than

five hundred do an ($ 50
Date Applkan

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: ! 1 after making r"cole of Exemption I, as owner of the prope or my employees with wages as their
you should became subject b the Works, s Compe n provisions of

the Labor Code, you must forthwith comply with such provisions or this

sole compensation, will the work, and the structure is not
Intended or offered for sale. ( . 7044, Business and Professions
Code: The Contractor' s License Law s not apply to an owner ofpro- permB shall be deemed revoked. perty who builds or improves thereon a who does not work himself or

RUCTION LENDING AGENCY
throuuggh his own employees, provided th such improvements are not
intarrded or offered for sale. If, however, buifdrn99 or improvementI hereby affirm Bsat t a construction lending agency for the per- 

formance of the work for w i is permit is issued. ( Sec. 3097, Civil b sold within one year of completion, the ow r- builder wrfl have theburden of proving that he did not build or imp ve for the purpose ofCode.) - - - 
sole.) 

Lender' s Name 1, as owner of the property, am exclusively cant cting with licens- 
to the ( Sec 7 BusinessLender' s Address_ ed contractors construct project. and

prefanienc Cedes - The 4anh- 4er' s Iiaeroe l,ow 411001, m

I certify that I have read this application and state that the above info, 
owner of properly who builds or improves thereon, and who tracts for
such pralech with a controctor( s) licensed pursuant fo the C s

motion is correct. I agree to co ly with all city and county ordinances
and state laws relatin to bu' g struction, and hereby authorize
r resentafives of th' i to er ' n ve- mentioned propertyPrinspection

Licenae Law. J
am exem t under Sec. B. C. for phis ep

purpo t 1 L 1 J- 
PA7Y

11

Signature of Applicant
r ' 

Date

Date S1wilp ` 4dMailing Address

City, State, Zip
9 , 37 k

CONST. HRS. 8 AM - 7 PM ONLY Ais is a buildi permit when properly filled out, signed and volido/ ed, 
INSPECTOR COPY ORD. NO. 1582 and issubje expiration if work thereunder is suspended for 180 days. 



INSPECTION RECORD

FOUNDATIONS ( Gr. Certif. camp. Tests, Setbacks, 
Forms, Reinf. Steel, Excavation. 

INSPECTION NOTES

FLOOR SLABOSTS., GIRDERS: Mesh, Vap. 
Blkg., Spans, Access, Venls, Tr- Lmbr. 

Z „ Qr ` J p ! y O f - 

MASONRY: Reinf., Mortar Its., Graut Lihs, 
CleomOuls, Bolts. 

yL e' iPeer

ROOF SHTG: Nailing, Diaph. Blocking, Material
G,.& and Thickness, Roof Drains. 

FRAMING: Walls, Raft., Jsh., Blocking, Bracing. 
Nailing, Backing, Diaphr. Draft Stops. 

INSULATION; Thickness, R. Vdlues, Piping, Sound
Caulking. 

FIREWALLS. Material, Thickness, Dampers, Doors, 

Closers, Fusible Links. - 

INTERIORs. LATHJDRY WALL: Nailing, Supports, 
Lops, Joint Reinf. 

EXTERIOR LATH / SIDING, Mesh, Fasteners, Laps, 

Pope,, Thickness, Barking. 

FINAL INSPECTION. Finish Grading Certif„ Slope
Plant., Energy Compl. Card Posted, Pkg. Access, 
Fire Doom, Exits, Locking Devices, Landings, 
House Numbers, Weather Stripping, PI. / Engr. 
Clec,. 

SWIMMING POOL / SPA - 

EXCAV. REINF. SETBACKS: Radius Sri., Bonding, 
Esp. Soil, Romp Loc., Surcharge. 

FENCE / GATES: Height, Closers, Accersibility,- 
Latches, Stability: - serencsce: 

FRONT 8, 06 A N

FINAL INSPECTION
PLOT PLAN

MISCELLANEOUS

SPRAY PAINT BOOTH, 

RETAINING WALL: 

DUST COLLECTION SYSTEM: 

VENEERS

RE- ROOF: 

SIGNISf: 

INSPECTION DATE INSP. SIGN. 

STREET- 

PLEASE PLAN A 1" SQ. SCALE



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA MECHANICAL
1414 Mission Street • South Pasadena • California 91030 • ( 818) 799 -9101

PERMITPLANNING & BUILDING DIVISION

Address' LA / t, rt ls yjj
Lot act Tract

No. 

Owner

S

Mailing
ado er. & 17 s011ut -ems S

c7Ti- L i2 -It iuc

X4 ni 81 o mow- 
city zip Tel. a13

state Lit. Na. ciy

GlossifC o f J 7/ ( Lic No. 

Iry WORKER' S COMPENSATION DECLARATION

OI hereby affirm that I have a certiPicote of consent to self- insure or a
certificate of Worker' s Compensation Insurance or a certified copy

t/hereof22(Sec. 3800, Lcb. C.). 
Foiccy lVt{ Cf -- D2, f97e—OfG Compan t 10** 

U
CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION FROM WORKER' S - 

COMPENSATION INSURANCE

I certify that in the performance of the coo ich this permit is

issued, I shall not employY any person' manner so as To become

Jr subject to the Worker' s Com n Laws of California. 

W Date Appplicant
NOTICE TO AP NT: If, after making this Certificate of Exemption
you should ome subject to the Worker s Compensation provisions of
NFe L ode, you must forthwith comply with such provisions or this
pe rt shat, be deemed revoked. 

OCONSTRUCTION LENDING AGENCY
I hereby affirm that there is a construction lending agency for per- 

formance of the work for which this permit is its 7, Civil
Code.) 

Lender' s Name

a) Lend ress

E LICENSED CONTRACTOR' S DECLARATION

I hereby affirm that I am licensed under provisions of Chapter 9 ( com- 
Lmencing with Section 7000) of Division 3 of th usine s and Profe ions

Code, and my license is' full force and a t. 

Exp. Sig nature of
QDore ` Confrac} or

OWNER- BUILDER DECLARATION  

I hereby ofirm that I am ex from the Cantracror' syyfIrryysfE6Fe ter

the following reason: ( Sec. 7037. 5. Business a rector sssions Codes) 
I, as owner of the properly, or m y.. e with wages as their
ole compensation, will do rk, . nd the IF ciur. Is not IIF- 

Mnded or of Z far sal
c. 7044, Business & Professions Codes). 

I, as owner of property, am exclusivelyy writrosting with
Ilcanssd ctis to construct the prol. st. ( Sec. 7044 Business

exempt under Sec -, B. BP. C. for this mason_ 

own., 

I certify that I have read this application and state that the above in- 
farmation is correct . ,. agree to comply with all city and county or- 
dinances and state laws relati g to buildin construction, and hereby
authorize re presenrotives qFf thi enter upon the above - 

mentioned property for in cti o rp

Signature of Applic Date A— n

Moiling Address

City, State, Zip Z

INSPECTOR COPY
CONS). HRS. 8 AM - 7 PM ONLY

ORD. NO. 1582

PERMIT NO.: I WORKERS COMP, EXP. I PROCESSED BY:_. f /(- 

1.2-- J /— F7 1 Date: 
APPLICATION FOR A

HEATING. VENTILATING, AIR- 

CONDITIONING OR REFRIGERATION

PERMIT

9911. 21111 QUOTMENT • CITY OF & Big% FASACEMA. CALIFORNIA

PERMITTEE TO COMPLETE: 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK

HEATING 0-AIR CONDITIONING  POOL

REFRIGERATION  VENTILATION  SPA

DESCRIBE WORN

TO BE DONE

F4sry/ Sfi. i A+ s 7A tG [ iy£ 3 Tnwl . yo47.. 1IS

rdeQ en a. NTrrAL aru usTi z s s1 7- 

ad '., 1G d 4; v 7, 

fsrriu .. arA vs - 
NO. OF HEATING APP4ANCES IINCL. VENTS, 

INSTALLED. ALTERED. REPLACED. REPAIRED OR RELOCATED

W

JI c? a` Kvrz Aolr1_ . « ar. f

F 71799 && W f%% 
M rr

rr

S

UUTH PASMENA

T. 

D O

GAS LIN ! Jim.ftl
NCMF RE 6 N RE ALLED DR REPLACED

aUANTIBI II INCL, ACTUAL H. P. 

C. 64

Eo so

ea uP

VALUATION: 1

PERMIT FE

Z 919 O
F INVESTIGATION FEE

E PLAN CHECKING FEE

E

ENERGYCOMPL. FEE

S ISSUANCE PEE

O O a

TOTAL
OO

1Z  • : i;,. lu

i. j l l I v • i 10 L. 

This is a building permit when properly frfled out, signed and validoted, 
and is subject to expiration if work thereunder is suspended for 180 days. 



INSPECTION RECORD INSPECTOR NOTES



V. H. QUALITY CONSTRUCTION

2206 LEMOYNE STREET

LOS ANGELES CA 90026

213 - 666 - 2044 LIC. 372158

TO BUILDING & SAFTY

1414 MISSION STREET

S. PASADENA CA 91030

ATT. MR. RANDOLPH

Due to the October Earth quake the existing fire place of

the Residence 1617 Spruce street S. Pasadena the chimney

received damage. Therefore the contractor removed part of the

chimney for safty. 
The flue is closed with a 4 " concrete slab & # 3 rebars. 

At the inside of the fire box, and 6 " from the front of the

fire box, a Brick wall is installed for safty. Therefore the

existing fire place is not for use at any time. 

Very truly

Heinz Schinn

C n ctor

NOV 2 3' 987

BUILDING DEPT. 



i 

f j` 4 r
1

I

i i_ iI

c, 

i 

f j` 4 r
1

I



CITY OF SOUTH PASA
1414 Mission Street a South Pasadena a California 91030 e

PLANNING & BUILDING DIVISION

Building
Address

Lot Traci + Trard

No. 

Owner

Moiling
Address

City
I

Zip Tel. 

Contnxior

IAA- S D J- 

C1l RiS
Address

6 7 y  — 1A11) ZWAJ r
City L' TEI. 

CW1, V0 &- 9/ 7b9
State Lic. No. S/ 13Q City

ClassiF. C _ 10 •/ Lk. No. 

WORKER' S COMPENSATION DECLARATION

OI hereby affirm that I have a certificate of consent to self- insure or a
certificate of Worker' s Compensation Insurance or a certified copy
thereof ( Sec. 3800, Lab. C.). 

Policy No. Company

U
CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION FROM WORKER' S

COMPENSATION INSURANCE
I cent' that in the performance of the work for which this permit is

issued, shall not empl any person in any ma r o as to become
J subject ro e or er' o nsation Laws of It nio. 

100 Dote Appplicant
NOTICE APP A after mokinq this Certificate of Exemption
you sllou d beta subject to the Worker s Compensation provisions of

Me Labor Code, you must forthwith comply with such provisions or this
P, shall be deemed revoked. 

I— CONSTRUCTION LENDING AGENCY

OI hereby affirm that there is a construction lending agency for the per- 
formonce of The work for which this permit is issued. ( Sec. 3097, Civil
Code.) 

C^ Lender' s Name

CW
Lenders Address

C
LICENSED CONTRACTOR' S DECLARATION

thereby affirm that I om licensed under provisions of Chapter 9 (tom- 
L mencing with Section 7000) of Division 3 of the Business and Professions

Code, and y lice a is in full force and effect. 

Exp. Signature of
Dote Contractor

OWNER - BUILDER DECLARATION

I hereby affirm that l em axem t from the Controcsor' s License Law far
the following reasons fSec. 7031. 5. Business and Professions Codes) 

I, as owner of the property, or my employees with Wages a. their
sale compensation, will do the work, and the structure Is not In- 

tended er offered for sale. f5ec. 7044, Business & Professions Codes). 

I, as owner of the property, am excluslwly contracting with
licensed contractors to construct the project, ( Sec. 7044 Business
and Professions Code.) 
I am exempt under Sec._., B. BP.C. for this reason_ 

Date Owner

I certify that I have read this Opp licOrion and state that the above in. 
formation is correct. I agree to comply with all city and county or. 
dinances and state laws relating to building construction, and hereby
authorize representatives of this city to nter po the above
mentioned property for i n purpos

Signature of Applicon are

Mailing Add- 2

City, State, Zip vrr.o

CONST. HRS. 8 AM - 7 PM ONLY
INSPECTOR COPY ORD. NO. 1582

nENA ELECTRICAL
818) 799 -9101

PERMIT

PER004.. 
WORKERS COMP. EXF. PROCESSED BY: 

ExP, pj- I D. te: q_ 2 _eL
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

APPLICATION FOR AN

ELECTRICAL PERMIT

BUILDING CIVIeION CITY OF SOUTH PASAOeNA. CALIFORNIA

PERMITTEE TO COMPLETE: 

New I I/ E % I. TIN6I NO int" J RECONNECT

WATIR HTRI
FAJOUTLET) 

DISH WSHR. I } @3. 00u
Op

Es 7. 50 ; 

T 5. 00 $ 

010. 00 ; 

AIRAIR H{` II AIFE Y @ 5. 00 ;Y @ 5. 00 ; 

TEMP Y OWE P  10. 00 ; 

NEWS O' A - @ 10. 00 ; 

200 AMPS _ @ 1250 E

400 AMPS @ 25. 00 ; 

Over 400 AMPS @ 50. OD $ 

MARS a. a. r 2 RP I; ' mow o°:. ° °.° Its ; 
111

COMER Taro —) II. ; 

POOL OR 520. 00 I
POOL $

30. 00 II $ SPA & SPA

VALUATION: $ 6 Q
PERMIT FEE - 

INVESTIGATION FEE

F PLAN CHECKING FEE

E
ENERGYCOMPL. FEE

E BLANKET PERMIT

S ELECTRICAL PERMIT

Jo a o

TOTAL

6

12 ... jb, 90

i 2
SS ff II _ i ti ! ii 0 0 • cws it? if SE ' 

9. 02. 87

This is a building permit when property filled out, signed and validated, 
and is subject to expiration if work thereunder is suspended for 180 days. 

New I I/ E % I. TIN6I NO int" J RECONNECT

WATIR HTRI
FAJOUTLET) 

DISH WSHR. I } @3. 00u
Op

Es 7. 50 ; 

T 5. 00 $ 

010. 00 ; 

AIRAIR H{` II AIFE Y @ 5. 00 ;Y @ 5. 00 ; 

TEMP Y OWE P  10. 00 ; 

NEWS O' A - @ 10. 00 ; 

200 AMPS _ @ 1250 E

400 AMPS @ 25. 00 ; 

Over 400 AMPS @ 50. OD $ 

MARS a. a. r 2 RP I; ' mow o°:. ° °.° Its ; 
111

COMER Taro —) II. ; 

POOL OR 520. 00 I
POOL $

30. 00 II $ SPA & SPA

VALUATION: $ 6 Q
PERMIT FEE - 

INVESTIGATION FEE

F PLAN CHECKING FEE

E
ENERGYCOMPL. FEE

E BLANKET PERMIT

S ELECTRICAL PERMIT

Jo a o

TOTAL

6

12 ... jb, 90

i 2
SS ff II _ i ti ! ii 0 0 • cws it? if SE ' 

9. 02. 87

This is a building permit when property filled out, signed and validated, 
and is subject to expiration if work thereunder is suspended for 180 days. 

COMER Taro —) II. ; 

POOL OR 520. 00 I
POOL $

30. 00 II $ SPA & SPA

VALUATION: $ 6 Q
PERMIT FEE - 

INVESTIGATION FEE

F PLAN CHECKING FEE

E
ENERGYCOMPL. FEE

E BLANKET PERMIT

S ELECTRICAL PERMIT

Jo a o

TOTAL

6

12 ... jb, 90

i 2
SS ff II _ i ti ! ii 0 0 • cws it? if SE ' 

9. 02. 87

This is a building permit when property filled out, signed and validated, 
and is subject to expiration if work thereunder is suspended for 180 days. 

12 ... jb, 90

i 2
SS ff II _ i ti ! ii 0 0 • cws it? if SE ' 

9. 02. 87

This is a building permit when property filled out, signed and validated, 
and is subject to expiration if work thereunder is suspended for 180 days. 



INSPECTION RECORD INSPECTOR NOTES

Underground electrical conduit diagram



City of South Pasadena MECHANICAL PERMIT APPLICATION. PIL

snrNt 1414 Mission Street
Each Furnace„ VC condenser, heater, boiler or

c o
South Pasadena, CA 91030

OWNER- B1 ILDER DECLARATiO\ 
vented decorative appliance (includes duct work) 35. 40

1Office Hrs: 7:30 am to 5: 00 pm, M-i h - Up to 100, 000 Btu s

7: 30 am to 4: 00 pm, Friday I hereby affirm under penalty of pcquw that I am exempt from the Contractors Over 100, 000 Btu but not over 500, 000 Btu S

Phone Number (626) A03. 7220 License Lawfor the fallowing reason ( Section W31 5 orthe Business and Over 500,000 Rtu ....... , S . 

te rEs t • Insp. Request ( 626) 403- 7226
Professions Code, Air inlets and outlets served by hestlAC system S

I. as owner of the property, or my employees w7di wages as their sole installation, relocation. or replacement at appli

SITE ADDRESS

1617C   Spruce Street
coin nsatton, wi. l do the work, and the structure is not intended or offered forpe ease vents not Included in another permit S

V sale { Section 7014 of the Business and Professions Code. installation or alteration of air handling units

ASSFSSOR PARCEL NURnIER - - i, as owner of the property, am exclusively contracting withlicensed including ducts) all to and including " 

BOOK PAGE PARCEL
contractors to construct the project ( Section 7044 of the Business and 2000 cfm S

rF., ;. ,,,...•,:..,:_
r.,-_ .. r. _.._ ._ 

ADDITFOIVAi. fNFORMAT10NcLEGALDLSCRIPTtON
Professions Code , Instapalian or alteration of air handling units " 

D I am exempt under Section Business and Professions including duets) over 20,00 cfm but not over
Code for the N lowing reason. 10,000cfm

ottrNER' S NAME

Bob Omens Signature: Gate Installation or alteration or air handling units

including ducts) over 10, 000 cfm ." S

STREET ADORES' 

1617 Spruce Street 1,10ENSEDCOh"fRACTOR' SDECLARiT10\ i usperstiveceolersetherthen portable MmI_ - T_, 

i hereby affirm that I am licensed tinder provisions of chapter9 (commencing Ventilation
fir which serve •single register S i, 

CITYSTATE ZIPCODE S.  

CA 91 3  with Scotian 7000 Rof Division3 of the Blueness and Professions Code, and Ventilation systems not part of AC system Pasadena  
my

license is in full force and effect. ' Commercial kitchen hoods S__ ' PHONE- 

NUMBER Date' 
Spray

booths S . 626-

441-4959 Slgnainre __ _. - product
aonvcyinp systerts S PIUNCtPALDESlGNEItSNAME

WCENSENO' WORMS ' COMPENSATION DECLARATION Fire dampersI

I hereby affirm under penalty of perjury one or the following declarations: Alteration
of existing duct systems S STREET

ADDRESS' J I have and will maintain a cClfillCata of consent to self - insure for workers' - S compensation, 

as provided for by Section 3700 of the Labor Code, for the S _— 
CITY

fsrATE CODE performance of the wort for which tM5 unit is Pepermit issued, I

have and will maintain workers' compensation insurance, as required by S
PRONE

h'UAIBER " F

Section

3700 of the Lobar Code, for the performanceof the work for which this S
permit

is issued. W wotkers compensation insurance carrier and policy. number
am listed in the left column orthis application, Subtotale; ....... . ... ... .. . 3 _ All Temperatures

ControlledI certify that in the performance of the work for which this permit is Plan Checking
Fee -. ,., . S issued, I

shall not employ any person in any manner so as to become subject to Additional Man
Checking Fee S PHONE NUP

IBER the workers'. compensation laws of California, and1 agree that if I should Plan Maintenance
FeeS, 18) 8$

2- 1478 become subject to the workers' compensation provisions oC Section 37Wof the Pemud issuance Fee „ BL-,2023-. 051.1, S CONTRACTOR' S

NAAIE All Tem

eratures Controlled labortodee1
shall forthwith comply with those provisions. Total Permit Fee, 13,74042444 p .Signature' 

Date. 4/ 20/ 2023 STREETADDRESS ' 9720

TOPANGA

CANYON PLACEC. AdiNcy
CITY ISTATE

ZiPCODE CHATSWORTHI CA1 _ 

91311 LICENSE CLASS
yLICENSE

NUMBER .

EXPIRATIONDATE W- w C2065872211!30/ 24I that information given is PHONE NUMBER »..,- 
cotrecl. I agree to comply with all federal and state laws and city ordinances 818) 

882-1 478 relating to lmilding construction, a nd1l athu ' e or rib, ci Io wORKER' SI;

OMPENSATION INSURANCE COMPANY NAME enter Uter'!
I!>>]ill i Ifor the purpose EVEREST PREMIER

INSURANCE COMPANY ofMaking tns coons.., WORKER' S COMP

INSURANCE POLICYt+tUrlBGR E7C!'IRA710N DATE rdemC' 7600023943231 J' 01101 /

2024 Signature bate. 4/ 20/ 2023



Attachment 3 

Project Plans  



SP
R

U
C

E 
ST

R
EE

T
SP

R
U

C
E 

ST
R

EE
T

EXISTING &
PROPOSED
SITE PLANS

A-1.01EXISTING SITE PLAN:
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

PROPOSED ROOF AND SITE PLAN:
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE 50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE 175'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE 175'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE 50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHIMNEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAY TILE MANSARD ROOF TO BE DEMOLISHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALLS BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CONC. PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' CMU WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 5' W.I. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	CLAY TILE ROOFCLAY TILE ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	ASPHALT ROOF'GASPHALT ROOF'G

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	CONC. DRIVEWAYCONC. DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	GRASSGRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	PLANTERPLANTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CONC. PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	GRASSGRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  12" DIA. JACARANCA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	CONC. PORCH/STEPSCONC. PORCH/STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	CONC. PORCH AND STEPSCONC. PORCH AND STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	HEDGEHEDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW EAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	8" DIA. ORANGE TREE ON 8" DIA. ORANGE TREE ON ADJACENT PROPERTY TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	AND NEW CONDENSERSAND NEW CONDENSERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HATCHING INDICATES AREA OF ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1621 SPRUCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1611 SPRUCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	2 STORY UNIT AT ADJACENT PROP2 STORY UNIT AT ADJACENT PROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	2 STORY UNIT, MULTIFAMILY STRUCTURE2 STORY UNIT, MULTIFAMILY STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE 50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE 175'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE 175'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE 50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHIMNEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAY TILE MANSARD ROOF TO BE DEMOLISHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALLS BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CONC. PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' CMU WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 5' W.I. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	CLAY TILE ROOFCLAY TILE ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	CONC. DRIVEWAYCONC. DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	GRASSGRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	PLANTERPLANTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CONC. PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	GRASSGRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
  12" DIA. JACARANCA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	CONC. PORCH/STEPSCONC. PORCH/STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	CONC. PORCH AND STEPSCONC. PORCH AND STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	HEDGEHEDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N) RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW EAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 2 PC CLAY TILE ROOFING TO MATCH (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	8" DIA. ORANGE TREE ON 8" DIA. ORANGE TREE ON ADJACENT PROPERTY TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	AND NEW CONDENSERSAND NEW CONDENSERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HATCHING INDICATES AREA OF ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1621 SPRUCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1621 SPRUCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	ONE STORY UNIT AT ADJACENT ONE STORY UNIT AT ADJACENT PROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1611 SPRUCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	2 STORY UNIT AT ADJACENT PROP2 STORY UNIT AT ADJACENT PROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGSINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	2 STORY UNIT, MULTIFAMILY STRUCTURE2 STORY UNIT, MULTIFAMILY STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Noted

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-4-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet        of

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Number

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Drawing Started:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pre-Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Issued For

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD File No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bulletin

AutoCAD SHX Text
Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Issued:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, California 91030

AutoCAD SHX Text
111 Peterson Ave.

AutoCAD SHX Text
fenske@pacbell.net

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL.:  (626) 429-1021

AutoCAD SHX Text
jim fenske architecture

AutoCAD SHX Text
As instruments of service, all designs, ideas and information mation shown on these drawings are and shall remain the   property of Jim Fenske No part thereof shall be copied, disclosed to others, or used in connection with any work or project for which they have been prepared and developed without the written consent of Jim Fenske. Visual contact with these drawings shall constitute conclusive evidence of  acceptance of these restrictions.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-25524

AutoCAD SHX Text
______

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
jf

AutoCAD SHX Text
OMENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1617 Spruce St.

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, Ca.

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Robert and Kim

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
plan'g review

AutoCAD SHX Text
Parking Spaces: 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
Spruce St.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Vicinity Map

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
Marengo Ave.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fair Oaks Ave.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Huntington Blvd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set Backs

AutoCAD SHX Text
Front Yard Set Back:  46'-4" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rear Yard Set Back:  52'-7" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Side Yard Set Back:  West (9'-8") 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max Ht. of Building:  22'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Total:             2,063 s.f.

AutoCAD SHX Text
New Lot Coverage: 2,063/8,750=23.6%%%  

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project Data

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Site Area:

AutoCAD SHX Text
 8,750 s.f.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAR = 2913/8,750 = 34%%%       35%%% MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot Coverage

AutoCAD SHX Text
Second Floor:   1489 s.f.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
Total:         2913 s.f.

AutoCAD SHX Text
First Floor:     1494 s.f. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Total:          2444 s.f.

AutoCAD SHX Text
First Floor:     1494 s.f. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Site Area:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Site Area:

AutoCAD SHX Text
First Floor:     

AutoCAD SHX Text
Porches:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed:       

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Floor Area:

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.A.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
90  s.f.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1494 s.f.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8,750 s.f.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Exisitng & Demo Floor Plans 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
Number of Stories:   TWO (2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Type of Construction:    V-N

AutoCAD SHX Text
Occupancy:  House is R3 ;  Garage is U-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sprinklers:    None Required

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sections

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed Exterior Elevation

AutoCAD SHX Text
Assessor's  Parcel No. 5320-009-019

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Exterior Elevations 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Legal Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-6.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-6.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Door and Window Schedules

AutoCAD SHX Text
323-257-8727

AutoCAD SHX Text
"The intent of the drawings and the specifications is to remodel and add to an existing residence in accordance with Title 24, California Administrative Code. Should any conditions develop not covered by the contract documents wherein the finished work will not comply with said Title 24, California Administrative Code, a change order detailing and specifying the required work shall be submited to and approved by the Architect and/or City of South Pasadena before proceeding with the work"

AutoCAD SHX Text
New Roof Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text
626-399-2174

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sites/Title Sheet/Sheet Index/

AutoCAD SHX Text
Intent of Documents

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Jim Fenske 

AutoCAD SHX Text
So Pasadena,   CA  

AutoCAD SHX Text
111 Peterson Ave.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1617 Spruce St.

AutoCAD SHX Text
So Pasadena, Ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
Robert Omens

AutoCAD SHX Text
Architect:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Building Owner:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Site Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Landscape Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-10.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scope of Work

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDITION OF A 451 SF SECOND STORY OVER AN EXISTING ONE STORY GARAGE AT THE REAR OF AN EXISTING SINGLE FAMILY TWO STORY HOME;  REMODEL ONE BATHROOM AND ADD ONE BATHROOM; REMODEL EXISTING KITCHEN; PROVIDE UPDATED FINISHES THROUGHOUT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed Floor Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-4.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR/MATERIAL BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Elevations

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-3.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Second Floor:   1020 s.f. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(- Stair:         70) s.f. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(- Stair:         70) s.f. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Garage:     

AutoCAD SHX Text
 479 s.f.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Side Yard Set Back:  East (5'-2") 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning:  Residential Estate 



2 1
SCALE: 3" = 1'-0" SCALE: 3" = 1'-0"

Stationary
Stationary

Stationary
HeadA

3
C
3B

3
Jamb

Sill

49
16"

(116)

11
2"

(3
9)

15
16"

(33)

21
2"

(6
3)

19 16
"

(4
0)1" (2
5)3
8"

(1
0)

25 16
"

(5
9)

35 16
"

(8
4)

Ro
ug

h 
Op

en
in

g
Un

it 
Di

m
en

sio
n

Un
ob

st
ru

ct
ed

Gl
as

s

49 16
"

(1
16

)

1"
(25)
3

8"
(10)

17
16"

(36)

15 16
"

(3
3)

25
16"

(59)
35

16"
(84)

21
2"

(63)

Rough Opening
Unit Dimension

Unobstructed
Glass

19
16"

(40)

49
16"

(116)

1" (2
5)

3
8"

(1
0)

2" (5
1)

15
16"

(33)

31
8"

(8
0)

41
8"

(1
05

)

Ro
ug

h 
Op

en
in

g
Un

it 
Di

m
en

sio
n

Un
ob

st
ru

ct
ed

Gl
as

s

19 16
"

(4
0)

33 16
"

(8
1)

3SCALE: 3" = 1'-0"

DOOR & WINDOW
SCHED'S, DETAILS

A-1.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FRENCH DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOWS BY "ANDERSON" OR EQUAL; 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DBL. GL., CLR. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/-

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAMB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/-

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: ALL ACTIVE LEAFS TO RECV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCREENS TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:  DOORS ARE TO BE FULL DIMENSIONED, NO NOMINALLY DIMENSIONED DOORS; FRAMES SIZES ARE IN ADDITION TO SIZE OF DOORS; DOORS BY "T.M. COBB" OR EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRESHOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOOR SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOOR ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Transition strip to be selected by Architect upon selection of carpet

AutoCAD SHX Text
THICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/-

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
U-

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/-

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAMB

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR ENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
108-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-8"    

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/4"    

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE EXTERIOR GLASS DOOR 1 LT

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMP'D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
С

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WD. PANEL DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE CASEMENT W / 10 LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
00-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLL UP SECTIONAL OVERHEAD DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-0"    

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUM. ROLL UP GARAGE DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY CLOPAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHGC

AutoCAD SHX Text
U-VALUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHGC

AutoCAD SHX Text
.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/4"    

AutoCAD SHX Text
00

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE CASEMENT W / 10 LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE CASEMENT W / 10 LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FXD W / 1 LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE CASEMENT W / 10 LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE CASEMENT W / 10 LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE CASEMENT W / 10 LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE CASEMENT W / 10 LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE CASEMENT W / 10 LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
FXD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
https://www.andersenwindows.com/for-professionals/documents/product-details/?#f:product-series=[A-Series]&f:product-type-window=[Casement]

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY "CLOPAY"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WD

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WNDO HEADER DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW SILL DETAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WNDO JAMB DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Noted

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-4-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet        of

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Number

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Drawing Started:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pre-Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Issued For

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD File No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bulletin

AutoCAD SHX Text
Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Issued:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, California 91030

AutoCAD SHX Text
111 Peterson Ave.

AutoCAD SHX Text
fenske@pacbell.net

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL.:  (626) 429-1021

AutoCAD SHX Text
jim fenske architecture

AutoCAD SHX Text
As instruments of service, all designs, ideas and information mation shown on these drawings are and shall remain the   property of Jim Fenske No part thereof shall be copied, disclosed to others, or used in connection with any work or project for which they have been prepared and developed without the written consent of Jim Fenske. Visual contact with these drawings shall constitute conclusive evidence of  acceptance of these restrictions.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-25524

AutoCAD SHX Text
______

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
jf

AutoCAD SHX Text
OMENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1617 Spruce St.

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, Ca.

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Robert and Kim

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
plan'g review



EAST
ELEVATIONS

A-6.1

PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION:
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

EXISTING EAST ELEVATION:
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
RELOCATE (E) CONDENSER TO HERE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND FINISH STUCCO TO MATCH (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Noted

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-4-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet        of

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Number

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Drawing Started:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pre-Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Issued For

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD File No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bulletin

AutoCAD SHX Text
Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Issued:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, California 91030

AutoCAD SHX Text
111 Peterson Ave.

AutoCAD SHX Text
fenske@pacbell.net

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL.:  (626) 429-1021

AutoCAD SHX Text
jim fenske architecture

AutoCAD SHX Text
As instruments of service, all designs, ideas and information mation shown on these drawings are and shall remain the   property of Jim Fenske No part thereof shall be copied, disclosed to others, or used in connection with any work or project for which they have been prepared and developed without the written consent of Jim Fenske. Visual contact with these drawings shall constitute conclusive evidence of  acceptance of these restrictions.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-25524

AutoCAD SHX Text
______

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
jf

AutoCAD SHX Text
OMENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1617 Spruce St.

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, Ca.

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Robert and Kim

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
plan'g review



EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

FIRST FLOOR PLANS

A-3
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFRIG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKTOP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATHRM 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRYER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 Treads @ 11" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16 Risers @ 7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFRIG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATHRM 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITTING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRYER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
GYM

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESK/SHELVES/STOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAU

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 Treads @ 11" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16 Risers @ 7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
108-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Noted

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-4-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet        of

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Number

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Drawing Started:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pre-Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Issued For

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD File No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bulletin

AutoCAD SHX Text
Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Issued:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, California 91030

AutoCAD SHX Text
111 Peterson Ave.

AutoCAD SHX Text
fenske@pacbell.net

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL.:  (626) 429-1021

AutoCAD SHX Text
jim fenske architecture

AutoCAD SHX Text
As instruments of service, all designs, ideas and information mation shown on these drawings are and shall remain the   property of Jim Fenske No part thereof shall be copied, disclosed to others, or used in connection with any work or project for which they have been prepared and developed without the written consent of Jim Fenske. Visual contact with these drawings shall constitute conclusive evidence of  acceptance of these restrictions.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-25524

AutoCAD SHX Text
______

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
jf

AutoCAD SHX Text
OMENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1617 Spruce St.

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, Ca.

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Robert and Kim

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
plan'g review



2

1
43 A-9.1

PROPOSED
FLOOR PLAN
ALT #1

A-4

LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
204

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
203

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATHRM 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
201

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
202

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATHRM 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
208

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
206

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATHRM 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
205

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
209

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 Treads @ 11" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16 Risers @ 7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
209-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
208-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOILET

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKYLT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
204

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
203

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATHRM 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
201

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
202

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATHRM 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
205

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
206

AutoCAD SHX Text
VANITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 Treads @ 11" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16 Risers @ 7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DN

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Noted

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-4-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet        of

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Number

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Drawing Started:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pre-Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Issued For

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD File No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bulletin

AutoCAD SHX Text
Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Issued:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, California 91030

AutoCAD SHX Text
111 Peterson Ave.

AutoCAD SHX Text
fenske@pacbell.net

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL.:  (626) 429-1021

AutoCAD SHX Text
jim fenske architecture

AutoCAD SHX Text
As instruments of service, all designs, ideas and information mation shown on these drawings are and shall remain the   property of Jim Fenske No part thereof shall be copied, disclosed to others, or used in connection with any work or project for which they have been prepared and developed without the written consent of Jim Fenske. Visual contact with these drawings shall constitute conclusive evidence of  acceptance of these restrictions.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-25524

AutoCAD SHX Text
______

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
jf

AutoCAD SHX Text
OMENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1617 Spruce St.

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, Ca.

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Robert and Kim

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
plan'g review



EXISTING NORTH ELEVATION:
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

NORTH
ELEVATIONS

A-6.0PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION:
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
+0.0' 1ST FIN. FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+26.0' RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+22.66' RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+8.33' T.PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
-1.5' FIN. GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+9.33' FIN. FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+17.33' T.PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4X OUTRIGGERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2X FASCIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 PIECE CLAY TILE ROOFING

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4X OUTRIGGERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2X FASCIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 PIECE CLAY TILE ROOFING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 PIECE CLAY TILE ATTIC VENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Noted

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-4-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet        of

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Number

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Drawing Started:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pre-Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Issued For

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD File No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bulletin

AutoCAD SHX Text
Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Issued:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, California 91030

AutoCAD SHX Text
111 Peterson Ave.

AutoCAD SHX Text
fenske@pacbell.net

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL.:  (626) 429-1021

AutoCAD SHX Text
jim fenske architecture

AutoCAD SHX Text
As instruments of service, all designs, ideas and information mation shown on these drawings are and shall remain the   property of Jim Fenske No part thereof shall be copied, disclosed to others, or used in connection with any work or project for which they have been prepared and developed without the written consent of Jim Fenske. Visual contact with these drawings shall constitute conclusive evidence of  acceptance of these restrictions.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-25524

AutoCAD SHX Text
______

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
jf

AutoCAD SHX Text
OMENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1617 Spruce St.

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, Ca.

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Robert and Kim

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
plan'g review



PL

A-6.2

EXISTING AND NEW
SOUTH AND WEST
ELEVATIONS

PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION:
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION:
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

EXISTING SOUTH ELEVATION:
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

EXISTING WEST ELEVATION:
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4X OUTRIGGERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAD WINDOWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2X FASCIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) SAND FINISH STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHT. MTL. GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 PIECE CLAY TILE ROOFING

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL SECTIONAL ROLL UP DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
+0.0' 1ST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
+26.0' RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+22.66' RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+8.33' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-1.5' FIN. GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
+9.33' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
+17.33' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND FINISH STUCCO TO MATCH (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLL UP ALUM DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAD WNDOS TO MATCH (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 PC. CLAY TILE TO MATCH (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIN. FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIN. FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAUX SPARK ARRESTORS/CHIMNEY: CLAY POTS SET IN MORTAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
108-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
00-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
+0.0' 1ST FIN. FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+26.0' RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+22.66' RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+8.33' T.PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
-1.5' FIN. GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+9.33' FIN. FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+17.33' T.PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND FINISH STUCCO TO MATCH (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTRIGGERS TO MATCH (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 PC. CLAY TILE TO MATCH (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) ATTIC ACCESS TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Noted

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-4-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet        of

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Number

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Drawing Started:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pre-Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Issued For

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD File No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bulletin

AutoCAD SHX Text
Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Issued:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, California 91030

AutoCAD SHX Text
111 Peterson Ave.

AutoCAD SHX Text
fenske@pacbell.net

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL.:  (626) 429-1021

AutoCAD SHX Text
jim fenske architecture

AutoCAD SHX Text
As instruments of service, all designs, ideas and information mation shown on these drawings are and shall remain the   property of Jim Fenske No part thereof shall be copied, disclosed to others, or used in connection with any work or project for which they have been prepared and developed without the written consent of Jim Fenske. Visual contact with these drawings shall constitute conclusive evidence of  acceptance of these restrictions.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-25524

AutoCAD SHX Text
______

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
jf

AutoCAD SHX Text
OMENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1617 Spruce St.

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, Ca.

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Robert and Kim

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
plan'g review



PL

CROSS SECTIONS

A-7.0SECTION A-A:
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

SECTION B-B:
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
+0.0' 1ST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
+26.0' RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+22.66' RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+8.33' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-1.5' FIN. GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+9.33' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
+17.33' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND FINISH STUCCO TO MATCH (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" SLAB ON GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2X ROOF RAFTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 PC. CLAY TILE TO MATCH (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIN. FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIN. FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
209

AutoCAD SHX Text
4X BEAMS PER PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. FTG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HDWD. FLRG O/ PLYWD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WNDO PER SCHED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" GYP. BD. THROUGHOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
+0.0' 1ST FIN. FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+26.0' RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+22.66' RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+8.33' T.PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
-1.5' FIN. GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+9.33' FIN. FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+17.33' T.PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND FINISH STUCCO TO MATCH (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTRIGGERS TO MATCH (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 PC. CLAY TILE TO MATCH (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) ATTIC ACCESS TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
209

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Noted

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-4-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet        of

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Number

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Drawing Started:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pre-Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Issued For

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD File No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bulletin

AutoCAD SHX Text
Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date Issued:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, California 91030

AutoCAD SHX Text
111 Peterson Ave.

AutoCAD SHX Text
fenske@pacbell.net

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL.:  (626) 429-1021

AutoCAD SHX Text
jim fenske architecture

AutoCAD SHX Text
As instruments of service, all designs, ideas and information mation shown on these drawings are and shall remain the   property of Jim Fenske No part thereof shall be copied, disclosed to others, or used in connection with any work or project for which they have been prepared and developed without the written consent of Jim Fenske. Visual contact with these drawings shall constitute conclusive evidence of  acceptance of these restrictions.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-25524

AutoCAD SHX Text
______

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
jf

AutoCAD SHX Text
OMENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1617 Spruce St.

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Pasadena, Ca.

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
Robert and Kim

AutoCAD SHX Text
owner review

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-8-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
plan'g review





Attachment 4 

Project Narrative  



NARRATIVE FOR 1617 SPRUCE STREET ADDITION 

 

The owner of 1617 Spruce St., Robert Omens, would like to add a 451 square foot addi on over the 

exis ng a ached one story garage that sits at the back of the exis ng two story single family dwelling.  

The new ridge of the addi on will align with the exis ng ridge of the home and the roofing will match 

the exis ng two-piece clay le that covers the current roof system.   

The siding, windows, fascia, gu ers, downspouts and paint for the addi on will all match the exis ng 

condi ons on the main house.  The owner would like to maintain the exis ng mansard roof currently 

over the garage and so the proposed walls for the addi on will sit just inside the parapet that the 

mansard abuts.   



Attachment 5 

Site Pictures  



SP
R

U
C

E 
ST

R
EE

T

EXISTING SITE PLAN:
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

PHOTO KEY FOR 1617 SPRUCE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE 50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE 175'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE 175'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE 50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHIMNEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAY TILE MANSARD ROOF TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALLS BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CONC. PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' CMU WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 5' W.I. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	CLAY TILE ROOFCLAY TILE ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	ASPHALT ROOF'GASPHALT ROOF'G

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	CONC. DRIVEWAYCONC. DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	GRASSGRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	PLANTERPLANTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 6' FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CONC. PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	GRASSGRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  12" DIA. JACARANCA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	CONC. PORCH/STEPSCONC. PORCH/STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	CONC. PORCH AND STEPSCONC. PORCH AND STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)	HEDGEHEDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Front Yard Set Back:  46'-4" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rear Yard Set Back:  52'-7" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Side Yard Set Back:  West (9'-8") 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max Ht. of Building:  22'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
New Lot Coverage: 2,063/8,750=23.6%%%  

AutoCAD SHX Text
Site Area:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAR = 2,600/8,750 = 30%%%       35%%% MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot Coverage

AutoCAD SHX Text
First Floor:     

AutoCAD SHX Text
Porches:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed:       

AutoCAD SHX Text
Garage:     

AutoCAD SHX Text
Side Yard Set Back:  East (5'-2") 



1



2



3



4



Attachment 6 

Materials Brochure  



 



 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 



Cultural Heritage Commission 
Agenda Report ITEM NO. ____ 

DATE: May 16, 2024 

FROM: Angelica Frausto-Lupo, Community Development Director 
Matt Chang, Planning Manager 

PREPARED BY: Robert (Dean) Flores, Senior Planner 

SUBJECT: Project No. LMR23-0001 is a request for a Landmark Historic 
Designation for a single-family residence located at 1209 
Indiana Avenue (Assessor’s Parcel Number: 5314-010-061). 
The City Council is the reviewing authority that makes the final 
determination for the requested Landmark Historic 
Designation. The Cultural Heritage Commission is to review 
and make a recommendation to the City Council. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Cultural Heritage Commission review and recommend 
Landmark Historic Designation for 1209 Indiana Avenue to the City Council.    

Background 

On September 7, 2023, property owners, Michael Emerling and Ruth Ballenger 
submitted an application for a Landmark Historic Designation for the single-family 
residence located at 1209 Indiana Avenue. The single-family residence was built in 
1911 and is an intact Swiss Chalet-Craftsman Bungalow. The subject property is listed 
on the South Pasadena Inventory of Cultural Resources in the city’s 2014 Historic 
Resource Survey (5S3); however, the subject property has yet to be formally 
designated or landmarked. A Historic Landmark Nomination report, documenting the 
history of the property, was prepared by the owners’ consultant, Deborah Howell-Ardila, 
and has been included as Attachment 1.  

On October 19, 2023, the request was presented to the Cultural Heritage Commission 
(Commission) and the Commission created a subcommittee, composed of Vice Chair 
Morrish and Chair Lopez as required by South Pasadena Municipal Code (SPMC) 
Section 2.63(c)(2). 

On February 8, 2024, the subcommittee conducted an on-site meeting with the 
homeowner to inspect the property.  

In February 2024, the landmark subcommittee determined that the property merits 
consideration by the Commission.  

6



Cultural Heritage Commission  1209 Indiana Avenue 
May 16, 2024 Project No. LMR23-0001 
Page 2 of 6 
  
 
Project Description & Analysis  
 
Originally built in 1911 for Charles Clark Gates and Pearl Gates by an unknown 
architect/builder but the submitted landmark nomination report describes the residence 
as one of South Pasadena’s outstanding examples of Craftsman architecture, with a 
Swiss Chalet subtype. The key characteristics of the subject home include: 
 

• Two-story mass and generally symmetrical design composition, 
• Complex roof form and detailing, with prominent medium-pitched front gable, with 

wide overhanging eaves resting on carved triangular knee braces with turned 
posts and purlins/dentils; roof eaves have uneven rakes, with a lower, longer 
expanse on the south elevation, 

• Elevated, partial-length porch with decorative wood posts, vertical, wood-plank 
ceiling, and low wood railing, 

• Sheathing materials, such as horizontal wood siding, wood shingles, 
• Grouped, multi-light wood-frame windows, with three-over-two and fixed panes 

on façade. 
 
Criteria for Historic Designation 
 
As stated in the report, the South Pasadena Municipal Code (SPMC) Section 2.63 – 
Register of Landmarks and Historic Districts – the designation criteria for landmarks 
shall include any or all of the following:  
 

1. Its character, interest or value as part of the heritage of the community;  
2. Its location as a site of significant historic event;  
3. Its identification (such as the residence, ownership, or place of occupation, etc.) 

with a person, persons or groups who significantly contributed to the culture and 
development of the city, state or United States;  

4. Its exemplification of a particular architectural style of an era of history of the city;  
5. Its exemplification of the best remaining architectural type in a neighborhood;  
6. Its identification as the work of a person or persons whose work has influenced 

the heritage of the city, the state or the United States;  
7. Its embodiment of elements of outstanding attention to architectural design, 

engineering, detail design, detail, materials or craftsmanship;  
8. It is either a part of or related to a square, park or other distinctive area which 

should be developed or preserved according to a plan based on a historic 
cultural or architectural motif;  

9. Its unique location or singular physical characteristic representing an established 
and familiar visual feature or a neighborhood;  

10. Its potential for yielding information or archaeological interest; or  
11. In designating a historic district, its significance as a distinguishable 

neighborhood or area whose components may lack individual distinction.  
 



Cultural Heritage Commission  1209 Indiana Avenue 
May 16, 2024 Project No. LMR23-0001 
Page 3 of 6 
  
 
The Historic Landmark Nomination report (Attachment 1) provides justification for one 
criterion: number 4. To continue with the designation of a historic landmark, only one 
criterion needs be established.   
 
Statement of Significance  
 
In the Historic Landmark Nomination report (Attachment 1), it notes that the property is 
eligible for local landmark listing under Criterion 4 of the Cultural Heritage Ordinance. 
The property displays all of the character-defining features identified as key for the 
Craftsman theme/Swiss Chalet subtheme in the Citywide Historic Context Statement: 
 

• Rectangular plan and compact, 2-story massing 
• Flat, usually symmetrical primary façade 
• Moderately pitched front gable roof with wide, overhanging eaves/rake, and 

exposed rafter tails 
• Wood shingle, horizontal wood siding 
• Wide porch, recessed or projecting 
• Second-story balcony with plank railing, usually with decorative cut-outs 
• Divided light casement or double hung wood windows 
• Decorative brackets and bargeboards 

 
Additionally, the report indicates that the property meets the integrity threshold defined 
in the City of South Pasadena Citywide Historic Context Statement. “An outgrowth of 
the Arts and Crafts movement, the Swiss Chalet style is a subtype of the Craftsman 
architectural style, which dominated residential design in South Pasadena (and beyond) 
through the early 20th century…Southern California, and Pasadena in particular, was a 
center of the American Arts and Crafts movement; the philosophy, aesthetics, and 
major proponents and practitioners all influenced South Pasadena,” (pg. 21). 
 
State of California Department of Parks and Recreation Primary Record 
 
Historic properties either retain integrity (that is, convey their significance) or they do 
not. Within the concept of integrity, the National Register criteria recognize seven 
aspects or qualities that, in various combinations, define integrity. The seven aspects of 
integrity are defined as follows:  
 

1. Location: the place where the historic property was constructed or the place 
where the historic event occurred.  

2. Design: the combination of elements that create the form, plan, space, structure, 
and style of a property.  

3. Setting: the physical environment of a historic property.  
4. Materials: the physical elements that were combined or deposited during a 

particular period of time and in particular pattern or configuration to form a 
historic property.  

5. Workmanship: the physical evidence of the crafts of a particular culture or people 
during any given period in history or prehistory.  



Cultural Heritage Commission  1209 Indiana Avenue 
May 16, 2024 Project No. LMR23-0001 
Page 4 of 6 
  
 

6. Feeling: the property’s expression of the aesthetic or historic sense of a particular 
period of time.  

7. Association: the direct link between an important historic event or person and a 
historic property.  

 
The subject property determined eligible for listing as:  
 
5S3 – Appears to be individually eligible for local listing or designation through survey 
evaluation.  
 
California Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR) Form 523 was prepared by Ms. 
Howell-Ardila and is included as Attachment 3. The designation of the proposed 
property will help promote the purpose of the Cultural Heritage Ordinance as it will 
preserve, maintain, and safeguard the City’s heritage and character, will reflect the 
phases of the City’s history, and will foster pride in the ownership of the City’s historic 
resources.   
 
Findings for Designation of a Landmark  
 
The Landmark Subcommittee recommends that the Cultural Heritage Commission 
make a recommendation that the City Council make the following findings pursuant to 
SPMC Section 2.63(a)(2) for the Historic Landmark Designation of 1209 Indiana 
Avenue:  
 
(A) That the designation of landmark or historic district is consistent with one or more 

of the purposes set forth in SPMC 2.58B;  
 
The designation of the Historic Landmark Designation for 1209 Indiana Avenuue 
is consistent with the purpose of the Cultural Heritage Ordinance for identification, 
protection, enhancement, and preservation of structures, sites, and areas that 
represent the City’s heritage and character. The home is characterized as a 
textbook Craftsman-Swiss Chalet style featuring wood siding and shingles, gable 
roof, overhanging eaves, exposed rafters, wide porch, second story balcony with 
decorative cut-outs, case and double hung windows, and decorative 
brackets/bargeboards. Thus, the designation of the proposed Historic Landmark 
Designation will help promote the City’s sense of place as it will preserve, 
maintain, and safeguard the City’s heritage and character, will reflect the phases 
of the City’s history, and will foster pride in the ownership of the City’s historic 
resources.  

 
(B) That the landmark meets one or more of the criteria for designation listed in 

subsection (b) of this section; 
 
The subject property was built in 1911 and the proposed landmark designation 
qualifies for designation under Criteria 4, which is fully detailed in the 
Subcommittee Report (Attachment 2). 



Cultural Heritage Commission  1209 Indiana Avenue 
May 16, 2024 Project No. LMR23-0001 
Page 5 of 6 
  
 
 
(C) That the landmark or historic district possesses historic integrity of location, 

design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, or association. 
 
The proposed landmark designation possesses historic integrity of location, 
design, setting, materials, workmanship, and feeling. The materials and 
workmanship can been seen throughout the two-story structure with its 
Craftsman/Swiss Chalet architectural style. As stated previously in this staff 
report, the subject home is a textbook example of its respective architectural style 
and was included in the City’s Citywide Historic Context Statement thereby 
exemplifying it as a key example of the architectural style. Thus, the 1209 Indiana 
Avenue residence is an excellent representative of said architectural style and will 
possess historic integrity of location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, and 
feeling.   
 

Environmental Analysis 
 
The designation of landmarks qualifies for an exemption under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15308, Class 8. Class 8 consists 
of actions taken by regulatory agencies, as authorized by state or local ordinance, to 
assure the maintenance, restoration, enhancement, or protection of the environment 
where the regulatory process involves procedures for protection of the environment. 
Construction activities and relaxation of standards allowing environmental degradation 
are not included in this exemption.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the Cultural Heritage Commission review and recommend 
Landmark Historic Designation for 1209 Indiana Avenue to the City Council.    
 
Public Noticing 
 
The public was made aware that this item was to be considered at a public hearing by 
virtue of its inclusion on the legally publicly noticed agenda, posting of the same agenda 
and reports on the City’s website. 
 
Next Steps 
 
The recommendation of the Commission will be presented to the City Council.  
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
If the property is designated as a landmark, the applicant has the opportunity to apply 
for a Mills Act Contract. A Mills Act contract allows a tax reduction (between 
approximately 40 to 60 percent) for a property owner who agrees to perform certain 
restoration and maintenance tasks over a 10-year period. Although the City will see a 



Cultural Heritage Commission  1209 Indiana Avenue 
May 16, 2024 Project No. LMR23-0001 
Page 6 of 6 
  
 
reduction in property tax revenue, the benefits of the program include economic benefits 
of conserving resources and reinvestment as well as the important role historic 
preservation can play in revitalizing older areas, creating cultural tourism, building civic 
pride, and retaining the sense of place and continuity with the community’s past. 
 
Attachments 
 

1. Historic Landmark Nomination Report 
2. Cultural Heritage Commission Subcommittee Report 
3. California Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR) Form 523 



ATTACHMENT 1 
Historic Landmark Nomination Report 

  



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 1 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

South Pasadena Cultural Heritage Commission 
  
 

Landmark/Historic District Nomination Form 

A. Property Identification  
 
Name of building or site Gates Residence 
Property address   1209 Indiana Avenue, South Pasadena  
Current ownership  Michael Emerling and Ruth Ballenger 
Owner address   1209 Indiana Avenue, South Pasadena, California 
Legal description  Assessor’s Parcel Number 5314-010-061 
Date of construction  1911 (Source: City of South Pasadena Citywide Historic  

Resources Survey) 
Original Owner   Charles Clark Gates 
Architect/Builder   N/A 
Original use  Single-family residence  
Present use    Single-family residence 
Other significant ownership  N/A 
 
Figure 1 Property Location, 1209 Indiana Avenue, South Pasadena 

 
Source: Los Angeles County Tax Assessor Records, modified by author 

1209 Indiana Ave.
(APN 5314-010-061)

In
di

an
a

Av
en

ue



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 2 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

B. Property Description  
 
Architectural style/period: Craftsman architectural style, Swiss Chalet subtype 
 
Construction materials: Wood-frame construction, sheathed in horizontal wood siding and 

wood shingles 
 
Historic Status/survey code: (1) South Pasadena Inventory of Cultural Resources: “5S3” California 

Historic Resources Status Code (“appears individually eligible for local 
listing through survey”); identified as individually eligible in all three City 
of South Pasadena historic resource surveys, as recently as 2015 

 
Summary of Character-Defining Features:   

• Large, hillside lot and setback from the street 
• Two-story mass and generally symmetrical design composition 
• Complex roof form and detailing, with prominent medium-pitched front gable, with wide 

overhanging eaves resting on carved triangular knee braces with turned posts and purlins/dentils; 
roof eaves have uneven rakes, with a lower, longer expanse on the south elevation 

• Elevated, partial-length porch with decorative wood posts, vertical, wood-plank ceiling, and low 
wood railing 

• Sheathing materials, such as horizontal wood siding, wood shingles 
• Grouped, multi-light wood-frame windows, with three-over-two and fixed panes on façade 

 
Narrative description, including significant exterior and interior architectural features: 

Constructed in 1911, 1209 Indiana Avenue is a highly intact, textbook example of a Craftsman-Swiss Chalet 
style single-family residence in South Pasadena.  

Roughly square in plan, 1209 Indiana Avenue occupies a slanted, hillside parcel; the home is set back by a 
raised lawn and berm. Two stories in height, the home rests on a raised concrete foundation and is capped 
with a prominent, medium-pitched, front-gable roof. As is typical for the Craftsman-Chalet style, much of 
the decorative detailing of the building centers on the character and detailing of the roof eaves. Features 
include wide overhanging eaves resting on triangular knee braces with turned, multi-color posts, 
decoratively carved bargeboards, and a low wood screen displaying perforations forming geometric 
patterns. The second story extends slightly beyond the first, with banded wood molding and carved faux 
purlins highlighting the division between second and first stories and emphasizing the horizontal axis.  

Exterior sheathing materials consist primarily of wood shingles and some horizontal wood siding. 

A partial length porch occupies the southern portion of the façade; the porch is elevated on low, concrete 
steps and sheltered beneath a flat roof with extended eaves, accented with faux purlins/rafter tails and 
intricately carved bolsters. The porch roof rests on decorative, turned wood columns with square post 
supports. A low wall with turned posts fronts the patio. Off the patio, a single wood door with one large, 
central light with metal framing provides access to the residence. 

The property’s Craftsman-Swiss Chalet style elements are seen in a variety of features, including the mass 
and scale of the property; the generous use of wood, including in exterior shingles, siding, and decorative 
accents at the roof eaves and front porch; the prominent, medium-pitched roof form; the roofline 



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 3 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

treatment (e.g., the use of wide eaves); screen with geometric perforations below the roof gable; grouped, 
multi-light wood-framed windows, among other features.  

The side elevations of the residence mirror the fenestration patterns and materials seen on the façade. 
The north elevation displays grouped wood-framed windows (including tripartite two-over-three frame 
casements and three-over-two double-hung windows) and a varied wall plane, with a square two-story 
projection and a one-story bay window providing depth. Along the concrete foundation of the home on 
the north elevation are several basement-level openings with simple wood frames.  

Similarly, the south elevation wall plane is broken up by a one-story projection with wood-framed 
windows, capped with decorative wood eaves. 

The rear elevation exhibits a small, square addition, also clad in wood shingles. A secondary entrance 
elevated on concrete steps is also located at the rear elevation. In the westernmost portion of the parcel 
is concrete patio and a concrete-clad retaining wall.  

Mature landscaping and trees further enhance the property. The property is in good repair overall. 
Alterations appear to be minimal and include a small, low addition on the rear elevation and potentially a 
second-story remodel that resulted in the addition of some small windows on the side and rear elevations. 

The photographs below provide a visual overview of the property and its existing conditions. 

Figure 2 Overview of sloped, hillside parcel, façade, northeast perspective 

 
 



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 4 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 3 Overview of façade, east perspective  

 
 
Figure 4 Overview of façade, southeast perspective 

 
 



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 5 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 5 North elevation, overview, northwest perspective (shows addition at rear elevation) 

 
 

Figure 6 South elevation overview, southern perspective (shows roof cross-gable and addition) 

 
  



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 6 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 7 North elevation and side yard, west perspective 

 
  



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 7 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 8 Swiss Chalet/Craftsman character-defining features on the façade, with decorative wood 
accents throughout the patio, second-story porch railing with geometric cut-outs, and wide wood roof 
eaves with decorative detailing, southeast perspective 

 
  



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 8 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 9 Detail of roof detailing and entrance porch, east perspective 

 
  



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 9 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 10 Detail, northern portion of façade, east perspective 

 
  



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 10 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 11 Tripartite wood windows and frames and wood-shingle siding, façade, east perspective  

 
Figure 12 Tripartite wood windows and flared second-story base marked with faux, carved purlins, 

façade, east perspective 

 



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 11 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 13 Corner of east and north elevations, northeast perspective 

 
  



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 12 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 14 North elevation bay window, wood shingles, and window detailing, north perspective 

 
 



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 13 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 15 Detail of wood shingles, south elevation, southwest perspective 

 
 



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 14 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 16 Detail of south elevation windows, triangular knee braces, and decorative carved brackets 
marking division between first and second stories, southwest perspective 

 



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 15 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 17 Overview of south elevation second story, south perspective 

 
Figure 18 Detail of porch steps, landing, and wood entrance door with side lights, east perspective 

  



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 16 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Additions/modifications  
Based on available data and visual inspection of the property, 1209 Indiana Avenue has few visible 
alterations and appears highly intact from its 1911 date of construction and period of significance.  

Given that 1209 Indiana Avenue originally belonged to a larger parcel facing Monterey Road (499 
Monterey Road), a limited number of building permits are available for the property. To date, no primary 
sources (including building permits or other documentation) have been identified to confirm the original 
date of construction or original owner; the Los Angeles County Tax Assessor lists a date of 1911 as the 
date of construction. 

Available sources, along with visual observation, indicate the following alterations: 

• Pre-1930: Addition of small two-story wing on rear elevation (source, Sanborn Fire Insurance 
Company map) 

• 1939: Construction of two-car garage (extant, noncontributing) (source, building permit #6887) 
• 1962: Electrical upgrades (source, building permit #49267) 
• 1979: Re-roof (source, building permit, number illegible) 
• 1992: Plumbing upgrades (source, building permit #013589) 
• 1996: Re-roof (source, building permit #017781) 
• 2002: Electrical upgrades/repairs (source, building permit #20555) 
• 2008: Mechanical upgrades/repairs (source, building permit #016215) 
• 2010: Electrical upgrades/repairs (source, building permit #026379) 
• 2014: Electrical upgrades/repairs (source, building permit #034084) 
• Unknown date: Some windows on the second story appear nonoriginal and might have been 

added with an attic conversion (source, visual observations; permits not available) 
 

Ownership History  

The original (and longest) owner of 1209 Indiana Avenue was Charles Clark Gates and his wife Pearl, who 
resided in the home for nearly 40 years, from 1911 until their deaths in 1950 and 1951, respectively. Gates 
was the nephew of well-known local philanthropist and lumber magnate Peter Goddard Gates, who 
bought property and settled in South Pasadena with his four brothers in the early 1900s.1 Wealthy, retired 
lumber manufacturers, the Gates brothers built a large estate around the area of 1209 Indiana Avenue, 
along Monterey Road, including a park, orchards, stables, tennis courts, and “even its own fire station.”2 
Based out of this large family complex at Monterey Road and “Gates Place” (as Indiana Avenue was named 
in the early twentieth century), South Pasadena became a summer getaway as well as home base for the 
extended Gates family members. 

Born in Illinois in 1879, Charles Clark Gates and his wife Pearl moved to South Pasadena in 1911 from St. 
Louis, Missouri.3 The residence at 1209 Indiana Avenue originally formed part of a larger parcel extending 
north to 499 Monterey Road, which is still occupied by a large Swiss Chalet-style home originally belonging 
to members of the Gates family, including Charles Clark Gates’ parents, Mr. and Mrs. Albert Hawkins 

 
1 Apostol, Jane. 1987. “South Pasadena: A Centennial History” (South Pasadena Public Library), p. 57. 
2 City of South Pasadena, Planning and Building Department. 2014. South Pasadena Citywide Historic Context Statement, p. 96.  
3 “Society,” 28 May 1911, Los Angeles Times. Available at ProQuest Historical Newspapers, Los Angeles Times. 



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 17 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Gates.4 The parcels were divided at an unknown date, after 1950, into separate lots in a configuration that 
mirrors the present property lines.  

Once they arrived in South Pasadena, Charles and Pearl Gates quickly became part of the small, local social 
scene, with their travels, social engagements, and family milestones amply covered in the local 
newspapers of the day. Following in the family footsteps, Charles Clark Gates also worked in the lumber 
industry, as an executive in the family’s lumber company, which included mills and branches in Arkansas 
(specializing in yellow pine and oak), Louisiana, and Alabama. In the obituary for Albert Hawkins Gates, 
who passed away in South Pasadena in 1914, the Forrest City Times of Forrest City, Arkansas, noted that 
Mr. Gates had been president of the Gates Lumber Company, based in Wilmar, Arkansas, and had 
accumulated a “fortune in the lumber mills, and had extensive interests on the Pacific coast.”5 

The homes of the Gates estate faced Monterey Road (including 499, 509, and 515 Monterey, among which 
only 499 Monterey is extant) and extended north along Indiana Avenue (including the extant residences 
at 1209 and 1215 Indiana Avenue, both of which were constructed in 1911). Until 1924, when the Gates 
brothers subdivided a large portion of the land extending northward, “Indiana Avenue” was named “Gates 
Place,” as noted above. The home at 1209 Indiana Avenue occupies a parcel that was originally part of a 
tract known as “Thomas Green’s Subdivision of South Pasadena Highlands,” filed in 1887. Prior to the 
Gates family arrival in the early 1900s, Gates Place/Indiana Avenue was known as “Belleview Avenue.” 
(The small cul-de-sac “Gates Place” that survives northeast of 1209 Indiana Avenue continues to reflect 
the family’s early presence in the neighborhood.)  

In terms of the family, one of Peter Goddard Gates’ best known philanthropic gifts was to the California 
Institute of Technology, in the form of a $200,000 donation in 1917 to establish the Gates Chemical 
Laboratories.6 Peter G. Gates passed away in 1925 at the age of 69; his nephew Charles was among the 
recipients of bequests made in the elder Gates’ will.7 In reaction to Gates’ death, Arthur Fleming, chair of 
the California Institute of Technology board of trustees, commented that “Pasadena and the California 
Institute of Technology [have lost] a valuable friend. Ever interested in those things which he believed 
essential to the welfare of his country, he gave generously to the case of education.”8 

In terms of Charles Clark Gates’ career, in addition to his role in the family’s lumber manufacturing 
business, he and two of the Gates relatives, Don S. and Don F., launched an ambitious venture in 1919 in 
cattle grazing. The acquisition also made the Gates “among the largest holders of cattle grazing acreage 
in America,” with a controlling interest in the Tehachapi Cattle Company, which owned thousands of head 
of cattle spanning 150,000 acres from Bakersfield to the Tehachapi Mountains.9 By 1940, Charles Clark 
Gates had retired. In 1942, he was among a group of business leaders honored as “Quarter Century Boys” 
in the Rotary Club of Los Angeles.10 The Gates’ had three children, Albert D., Edith E., and Louise, all of 
whom were residents of 1209 Indiana Avenue during the Gates family tenure in the home.  

 
4 “November Wedding Is an Outstanding Event,” 22 November 1927, Pasadena Evening Post.  
5 5 June 1914, “Death of Albert H. Gates: He Was One of the Pioneer Lumbermen of South Arkansas,” The Forrest City Times (Forrest City, 
Arkansas).  
6 “Peter Gates Dead in East: Brother in Pasadena Gates New from New York,” 14 July 1925, Los Angeles Times. Available at ProQuest Historical 
Newspapers, Los Angeles Times. See also “Gates Rites to Be Held in Pasadena: Body of Philanthropist to Be Brought Here from New York City,” 
14 July 1925, The Pasadena Post.  
7 “Southland Kin Aided in Gates Will: Thirteen Get Varying Bequests from Estate of Lumber Man,” 2 September 1925, Los Angeles Times. 
Available at ProQuest Historical Newspapers, Los Angeles Times. 
8 “Peter Gates Dead in East: Brother in Pasadena Gates New from New York,” 14 July 1925, Los Angeles Times. Available at ProQuest Historical 
Newspapers, Los Angeles Times. 
9 “Gates Family in Big New Cattle Deal,” 22 September 1919, The Pasadena Post. 
10 “Rotary Club Pays Tribute to Its 25-Year Members,” 21 March 1942, Los Angeles Times. Available at ProQuest Historical Newspapers, Los 
Angeles Times. 



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 18 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 19 1907 image of 515 Monterey Road, part of Gates family estate and home of retired lumber 
magnate, Don S. Gates; the residence was demolished in 1968  

 
Source: Rick Thomas, 6 December 2018, “Throwback Thursday: Anatomy of a Craftsman Take Down,” South Pasadenan 

Figure 20 Peter G. Gates residence, 1907, 509 Monterey Road; the residence was demolished in 1968 

 
Source: Rick Thomas, 6 December 2018, “Throwback Thursday: Anatomy of a Craftsman Take Down,” South Pasadenan  



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 19 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 21   Tract No. 8026, filed by Charles and Fred Gates in 1924, retained the large parcels facing 
Monterey Road (still part of Gates family estate) and subdivided land extending north 

 
Source: Los Angeles County Public Works Department, Land Records  

Parcel at Monterey Rd & 
Indiana Ave. marks location 
of Gates family complex



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 20 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

Figure 22   1209 Indiana Avenue, part of 499 Monterey Road and Gates family estate as of 1930 (left) 
and 1950 (right); map on right shows increased level of development through postwar era 

   
Source: Los Angeles Public Library, Sanborn Fire Insurance Map Collection; modified by author 

Discussion of Criteria 3 and 6 

As discussed above, 1209 Indiana Avenue is a surviving remnant of the Gates family estate, which included 
stately Craftsman-style homes at 499, 509, and 515 Monterey Road, and northward along present-day 
Indiana Avenue (known until the mid-1920s as “Gates Place”). Until at least 1950, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
formed part of one unified parcel with 499 Monterey Road. The east side of Indiana Avenue and parcels 
extending northward also appear to have belonged to the Gates family estate (though no buildings along 
the east appear extant).  

Extant remnants of the Gates family estate include 499 Monterey Road, 1209 Indiana Avenue, and 1215 
Indiana Avenue (which was owned by Don F. Gates and constructed in 1911, during a time when most of 
the surrounding hillside property belonged to the Gates family). 

Although the residence at 1209 Indiana Avenue is associated with Charles Clark Gates, and the Gates 
family was well-known in early twentieth-century South Pasadena, the strength of the association and 
Gates’ own professional achievements are not such that they confer eligibility on 1209 Indiana Avenue 
itself, as a single property, under Criterion 3 (“identification with a person, persons or groups who 
significantly contributed to the culture and development of the City, state or United States”) or Criterion 
6 (“identification as the work of a person or persons whose work has influenced the heritage of the City, 
the state or the United States”). Research has not indicated that, on his own, Charles Clark Gates, while 
he was a successful entrepreneur and lumber manufacturer in the family business, “significantly 
contributed to the culture and development” of South Pasadena or the heritage of the City.  

1209 Indiana Ave., part of 499 
Monterey Road as of 1930

1209 Indiana Ave., still part of 
499 Monterey Road as of 1950

1209 Indiana Ave., part of 499 
Monterey Road as of 1930

1209 Indiana Ave., still part of 
499 Monterey Road as of 1950



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 21 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

While research on the Gates family and its South Pasadena estate is beyond the present scope, it is 
recommended that subsequent research consider possible eligibility as an historic district for 1209 and 
1215 Indiana Avenue and 499 Monterey Road as the surviving elements of the Gates family estate.  

C. Discussion of Designation Criteria  
Please indicate rationale for qualification under one or more criteria in Section 2.63(B) of the South 
Pasadena Cultural Heritage Commission  

South Pasadena Landmark Criterion 4:  Its exemplification of a particular architectural style of an era of 
history of the City) 

As noted in South Pasadena’s Citywide Historic Context Statement, which utilized a photo of 1209 Indiana 
Avenue to illustrate the features of the style, the property is an intact, textbook example of the Swiss 
Chalet/Craftsman architectural style. The property is eligible for local landmark listing under Criterion 4 
of the Cultural Heritage Ordinance. The property displays all of the character-defining features identified 
as key for the Craftsman theme/Swiss Chalet subtheme in the Citywide Historic Context Statement:  

• Rectangular plan and compact, 2-story massing 
• Flat, usually symmetrical primary façade  
• Moderately pitched front gable roof with wide, overhanging eaves/rake, and exposed rafter tails 
• Wood shingle, horizontal wood siding 
• Wide porch, recessed or projecting 
• Second-story balcony with plank railing, usually with decorative cut-outs 
• Divided light casement or double hung wood windows 
• Decorative brackets and bargeboards 

In addition, with few visible alterations, the property meets the integrity threshold defined in the Citywide 
Historic Context Statement.  

An outgrowth of the Arts and Crafts movement, the Swiss Chalet style is a subtype of the Craftsman 
architectural style, which dominated residential design in South Pasadena (and beyond) through the early 
20th century. As noted in the Citywide Historic Context Statement, South Pasadena 

retains intact streets and neighborhoods, along with prominent individual examples, 
illustrating the importance of Arts and Crafts architecture and the role it played in 
residential development in the early 20th century. Southern California, and Pasadena in 
particular, was a center of the American Arts and Crafts movement; the philosophy, 
aesthetics, and major proponents and practitioners all influenced South Pasadena.11 

The Citywide Historic Context Statement provides additional context for this variant of the Craftsman style:  

The Swiss Chalet style – constructed primarily of stained wood, in which wide overhanging 
eaves and balconies helped integrate the outdoors as part of the living space – was 
compatible with the goals of the Arts and Crafts movement. The Chalet style Craftsman 
house usually consists of a single, rectangular two-story volume covered by front-facing 
gable roof. The primary façade is typically symmetrical and frequently features a wide 
porch topped by a second-story balcony. Porches and balconies usually have plank railings 
with decorative cutouts. Brackets and bargeboards are usually more decorative than 
those found in other variations of Craftsman architecture.12 

 
11 City of South Pasadena, Planning and Building Department. 2014. South Pasadena Citywide Historic Context Statement, p. 111.  
12 City of South Pasadena, Planning and Building Department. 2014. South Pasadena Citywide Historic Context Statement, p. 273.  



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 22 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

 
Figure 23 South Pasadena Citywide Historic Context Statement, with the Gates Residence at 1209 

Indiana Avenue as intact example of Swiss Chalet architectural style 

 
Source: Historic Resources Group, 2014, City of South Pasadena Citywide Historic Context Statement, p. 273 

273 
ARCHITECTURE & DESIGN 

FINAL ADMINISTRATIVE DRAFT 

City of South Pasadena 
Citywide Historic Context Statement  
HISTORIC RESOURCES GROUP 

Sub-Theme: Swiss Chalet Style 

The Swiss Chalet style - constructed primarily of stained wood, in which wide overhanging 
eaves and balconies helped integrate the outdoors as part of the living space - was compatible 
with the goals of the Arts and Crafts movement. The Chalet style Craftsman house usually 
consists of a single, rectangular two-story volume covered by a front-facing gable roof. The 
primary façade is typically symmetrical and frequently features a wide porch topped by a 
second-story balcony. Porches and balconies usually have plank railings with decorative 
cutouts. Brackets and bargeboards are usually more decorative than those found in other 
variations of Craftsman architecture. 

Character-defining features include: 

• Rectangular plan and compact, 2-story massing 
• Flat, usually symmetrical primary façade  
• Moderately pitched front gable roof with wide, overhanging eaves and rake, and 

exposed rafter tails 
• Wood shingle, horizontal wood siding, or cement plaster exterior wall finish, 

sometimes in combination 
• Wide porch, recessed or projecting 
• Second-story balcony with plank railing, usually with decorative cut-outs 
• Divided light casement or double hung wood windows, sometimes with diamond-

patterned lights 
• Decorative brackets and bargeboards 

Swiss Chalet: Extant Example 

	

1209 Indiana Avenue, Gates Estate 



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 23 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

In summary, as demonstrated in this nomination, 1209 Indiana Avenue meets the eligibility standards for 
local landmark designation under the “Architecture & Design” context, “Craftsman” theme, and “Swiss 
Chalet style” subtheme of the Citywide Historic Context Statement.  

The property’s principal character-defining features are as follows:   

• Large, hillside lot and setback from the street 
• Two-story mass and generally symmetrical design composition 
• Complex roof form and detailing, with prominent medium-pitched front gable, with wide 

overhanging eaves resting on carved triangular knee braces with turned posts and purlins/dentils; 
roof eaves have uneven rakes, with a lower, longer expanse on the south elevation 

• Elevated, partial-length porch with decorative wood posts, vertical, wood-plank ceiling, and low 
wood railing 

• Sheathing materials, such as horizontal wood siding, wood shingles 
• Grouped, multi-light wood-frame windows, with three-over-two and fixed panes on façade 

 



  

 
 
Gates Residence (1209 Indiana Avenue) Landmark Nomination Page 24 
Prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP  January 2024 

D.   Present Condition  
 
 Exterior Good/fair  

The exterior shows some signs of deteriorated wood sealants and features 
(such as the porch wall with geometric cut-outs on the second-story 
balcony), wood shingles and sheathing, in particular at wall joints and in 
some areas along the building foundation. In addition, the property requires 
repairs to the roof to remedy leaking. The distinctive carved, decorative 
features of the roof line, including brackets, bargeboards, purlins, rafters, 
and porch banister, will require Secretary’s Standards-compliant treatment 
and refinishing in the next several years, in order to protect and retain this 
character-defining feature. Some of the windows need repairs/repainting. 

 

 Interior  Good/fair  
  The interior retains original wood-plank floors, pocket doors, and other 

built-in features.  
 

 Site Good/Fair 
  The west portion of the parcel is marked by a concrete retaining wall, 

which marks the division of the residence and the undeveloped hillside lot 
extending west. The concrete retaining wall shows signs of cracking and 
water penetration and is in need of a geotechnical study and plan for 
stabilization. 

 

Neighborhood context The residence at 1209 Indiana Avenue represents a highly intact, distinctive 
example of the Swiss Chalet/Craftsman architectural style. The property is 
located in the foothills of South Pasadena and originally formed part of the 
Gates family estate, which spanned Monterey Road, from 499 to 515 
Monterey, and extended north on Indiana Avenue.  

 

E.  Proponents  
 
 Michael Emerling and Ruth Ballenger, owners 

Deborah Howell-Ardila, MHP, Historic Preservation Specialist 
 
F. Owner Consent (Although individual properties may be designated as South Pasadena historic 

landmarks or parcels within historic districts without owner consent, every effort should be made to inform 
owners of the advantages and opportunities designate and to secure owner support.)  If you, as owners, 
support the designation of your property as a landmark or a parcel in a historic district, please so signify in the 
space below:  
 

I/we certify that I/we am/are the owners of the property being hereby nominated for 
designation as a landmark or as a parcel within a historic district under the Cultural Heritage 
Ordinance of the City of South Pasadena, California and herby consent to said designation of 
the property as a landmark or parcel within a historic district.  
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________  Dated_________________   1/4/2024



ATTACHMENT 2 
Cultural Heritage Commission Subcommittee Report 

  



CHC Landmark Subcommittee Report 
 
 
SUBCOMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
Conrado Lopez, Chair 
Kristin Morrish, Vice Chair 
 
SUBJECT ADDRESS:  
1209 Indiana Avenue, South Pasadena, CA 91030 
 
INTRODUCTION:  
The City of South Pasadena received an application for a Landmark Designation for the home at 
1209 Indiana Avenue on August 27, 2023. At the meeting of the Cultural Heritage Commission 
(CHC) on October 19, 2023, a Landmark Designation subcommittee consisting of Kristin Morrish, 
Vice Chair, and Conrado Lopez, Chair were appointed to review the application. The Landmark 
Designation subcommittee reviewed the application materials and met with the property owner 
on site on February 8, 2024, and toured the property at that time. This report presents the 
Landmark Designation subcommittee’s recommendation on the ability of the proposed application 
to meet the designation criteria required for Register of a Landmark per South Pasadena 
Municipal Code (SPMC), Section 2.63(b)(1-11) explaining with brief facts the way in which the 
property was important to the local, state, or national history during the period significance. It 
would also include significant themes and historic contexts to which the property relates.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
As stated in the Historic Landmark Nomination report prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP, the 
subject property was built in 1911 for Clark Gates and Pearl Gates by an unknown architect. 1209 
Indiana Avenue is a highly intact, textbook example of a Craftsman-Swiss Chalet style single-
family residence in South Pasadena. Two stories in height, the home rests on a raised concrete 
foundation and is capped with a prominent, medium-pitched, front-gable roof. As is typical for the 
Craftsman-Chalet style, much of the decorative detailing of the building centers on the character 
and detailing of the roof eaves. Features include wide overhanging eaves resting on triangular 
knee braces with turned, multi-color posts, decoratively carved bargeboards, and a low wood 
screen displaying perforations forming geometric patterns. The second story extends slightly 
beyond the first, with banded wood molding and carved faux purlins highlighting the division 
between second and first stories and emphasizing the horizontal axis. 
 
CRITERIA AND STANDARDS FOR LANDMARK DESIGNATION: 
Criteria and standards for the designation of a landmark shall include any or all of the following, 
as applicable. The subcommittee has focused on the documentation that reflects a strong 
correlation for criterion 4:  
 

(1) Its character, interest or value as part of the heritage of the community:  
Not applicable.  

 
(2) Its location as a site of significant historic event: 

Not applicable.  
 

(3) Its identification (such as residence, ownership, or place of occupation, etc.) with 
a person, persons or groups who significantly contributed to the culture and 
development of the city, state or United States:  



1209 Indiana Ave. (LMR23-0001) 
Landmark Subcommittee Report 

Page 2 of 3 

 
Not applicable.  

 
(4) Its exemplification of a particular architectural style of an era of history of the city:  

According to the Historic Landmark Nomination report provided by the applicant, 1209 
Indiana Avenue exemplifies the Swiss Chalet/Craftsman architectural style. The 
property displays all of the character-defining features identified as key for the Craftsman 
theme/Swiss Chalet subtheme in the City of South Pasadena’s Citywide Historic Context 
Statement: 

• Rectangular plan and compact, 2-story massing 
• Flat, usually symmetrical primary façade 
• Moderately pitched front gable roof with wide, overhanging eaves/rake, and 

exposed rafter tails 
• Wood shingle, horizontal wood siding 
• Wide porch, recessed or projecting 
• Second-story balcony with plank railing, usually with decorative cut-outs 
• Divided light casement or double hung wood windows 
• Decorative brackets and bargeboards   

 
Additionally, the property meets the integrity threshold defined in the Citywide Historic 
Context Statement. An outgrowth of the Arts and Crafts movement, the Swiss Chalet 
style is a subtype of the Craftsman architectural style, which dominated residential 
design in South Pasadena (and beyond) through the early 20th century, “Southern 
California, and Pasadena in particular, was a center of the American Arts and Crafts 
movement; the philosophy, aesthetics, and major proponents and practitioners all 
influenced South Pasadena.”1  
 

(5) Its exemplification of the best remaining architectural type in the neighborhood: 
Not applicable.   

 
(6) Its identification as the work of a person or persons whose work has influenced 

the heritage of the city, the state or the United States:  
Not applicable.  

 
(7) Its embodiment of elements of outstanding attention to architectural design, 

engineering, detail design, detail, materials, or craftsmanship: 
Not applicable.  

 
(8) It is either a part of or related to a square, park or other distinctive area which 

should be developed or preserved according to a plan based on a historic cultural 
or architectural motif:  
Not applicable.  

 
(9) Its unique location or singular physical characteristic representing an established 

and familiar visual feature of a neighborhood:  
Applicable.  

 

 
1 City of South Pasadena, Planning and Building Department. 2014. South Pasadena Citywide Historic Context 
Statement, p. 111. 



1209 Indiana Ave. (LMR23-0001) 
Landmark Subcommittee Report 

Page 3 of 3 

 
(10) Its potential for yielding information of archaeological interest: 

Not applicable.  
 

(11) In designing a historic district, its significance as a distinguishable neighborhood 
or area whose components may lack individual distinction: 
Not applicable.  

  
SUBCOMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION ON LANDMARK DESIGNATION:  
In conclusion, pursuant to SPMC, Section 2.63, the Landmark subcommittee recommend that 
1209 Indiana Avenue be granted Landmark designation based on its consistency with Criterion 
4.  



ATTACHMENT 3 
California Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR) Form 523 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency  Primary #______________________________________________ 
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION  HRI #__________________________________________________ 
PRIMARY RECORD    Trinomial______________________________________________ 
       NRHP Status Code_____________________________________ 
    Other Listings_____________________________________________________________________ 
 Review Code________ Reviewer________________________ Date_______________ 
Page _1_  of  _19_  Resource name(s) or number (assigned by recorder)  Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
 
P1.  Other Identifier:  

*P2.  Location:  oNot for Publication   nUnrestricted *a. County  Los Angeles County 
 *b.  USGS 7.5’ Quad    Date:  
 *c.  Address  1209 Indiana Avenue City  South Pasadena Zip  91030 
 *e. Other Locational Data:  Assessor’s Parcel Number 5314-010-061 Block:  Lot:   
 

*P3a.  Description:   (Describe resource and its major elements.  Include design, materials, condition, alterations, size, setting, and boundaries.) 
 

Constructed in 1911, 1209 Indiana Avenue is a highly intact, textbook example of a Craftsman-Swiss Chalet style in South 
Pasadena. Roughly square in plan, 1209 Indiana Avenue occupies a slanted, hillside parcel; the home is set back by a raised 
lawn and berm. Two stories in height, the home rests on a raised concrete foundation and is capped with a prominent, 
medium-pitched, front-gable roof. As is typical for the Craftsman-Chalet style, much of the decorative detailing of the building 
centers on the character and detailing of the roof eaves. Features include wide overhanging eaves resting on triangular knee 
braces with turned, multi-color posts, decoratively carved bargeboards, and a low wood screen displaying perforations 
forming geometric patterns. The second story extends slightly beyond the first, with banded wood molding and carved faux 
purlins highlighting the division between second and first stories and emphasizing the horizontal axis. Exterior sheathing 
materials consist primarily of wood shingles and some horizontal wood siding. A partial length porch occupies the southern 
portion of the façade; the porch is elevated on low, concrete steps and sheltered beneath a flat roof with extended eaves, 
accented with faux purlins/rafter tails and intricately carved bolsters. The porch roof rests on decorative, turned wood 
columns with square post supports. A low wall with turned posts fronts the patio. Off the patio, a single wood door with one 
large, central light with metal framing provides access to the residence. (See Continuation Sheet, p. 3) 
  

*P3b.  Resource Attributes:  (list attributes and codes) HP2.  Single-family Property 
 
*P4. Resources Present:   nBuilding   oStructure   oObject   oSite   oDistrict   oElement of District   oOther 

 
P5b. Photo: (view and date)  
East (façade) elevation 
August 2023 
 
*P6.  Date Constructed/Age and 
Sources:  nhistoric 
1911; Los Angeles County Tax 
Assessor 
 
*P7.  Owner and Address: 
Michael Emerling and Ruth 
Ballenger 
1209 Indiana Avenue 
South Pasadena, CA 91030 
 
*P8.  Recorded by: 
Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP 
 
*P9.  Date Recorded: 
January 3, 2024 
 
*P10.  Survey Type: 
Landmark nomination 
 
 

*P11.  Report Citation: (Cite survey 
report and other sources, or enter “none”): South Pasadena Cultural Heritage Commission, Landmark/Historic District Nomination Form, 1209 
Indiana Avenue, South Pasadena, January 2024, prepared by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP, South Pasadena 
  
*Attachments: oNone  oLocation Map  oSketch Map  oContinuation Sheet  nBuilding, Structure, and Object Record 

oArchaeological Record  oDistrict Record  oLinear Feature Record  oMilling Station Record  oRock Art Record 
oArtifact Record  oPhotograph Record  o Other (list)  

 
DPR 523A (1/95) *Required information 

P5a.  Photo 

 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #__________________________________________ 
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#______________________________________________ 
BUILDING, STRUCTURE, AND OBJECT RECORD 
Page   2   of   19   *CHR Status Code_5S__________________________ 

*Resource Name or #:  Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
 
B1. Historic Name: Gates Residence 
B2. Common Name: 1209 Indiana Avenue 
B3. Original Use:  Single-family Residence   B4.  Present Use:  Single-family Residence 

*B5. Architectural Style:  Craftsman-Swiss Chalet style 
*B6. Construction History:  (Construction date, alterations, and date of alterations):  Constructed 1911 

According to available sources, the property was constructed in 1911. The property has few visible alterations and appears 
highly intact from its 1911 date of construction. The residence at 1209 Indiana Avenue originally belonged to a larger parcel 
facing Monterey Road (499 Monterey Road). Building permits, along with visual observation, indicate the following alterations: 
• Pre-1930: Addition of small two-story wing on rear elevation (source, Sanborn Fire Insurance Company map) 
• 1939: Construction of two-car garage (extant, noncontributing) (source, building permit #6887) 
• 1962: Electrical upgrades (source, building permit #49267) 
• 1979: Re-roof (source, building permit, number illegible) 
• 1992: Plumbing upgrades (source, building permit #013589) 
• 1996: Re-roof (source, building permit #017781) 
• 2002: Electrical upgrades/repairs (source, building permit #20555) 
• 2008: Mechanical upgrades/repairs (source, building permit #016215) 
• 2010: Electrical upgrades/repairs (source, building permit #026379) 
• 2014: Electrical upgrades/repairs (source, building permit #034084) 
• Unknown date: Some windows on the second story appear nonoriginal and might have been added with an attic 

conversion (source, visual observations; permits not available) 
 

*B7. Moved? nNo o Yes oUnknown Date:______Original Location:________________________________ 
*B8. Related Features:   None 
  
B9a.  Architect/Builder: Unknown    b.  Builder:  Unknown 

*B10. Significance:  Context/Theme: Architecture & Design | Craftsman Style/Swiss Chalet subtheme   Area: Residential  
Period of Significance:  1911 Property Type:  Single-family Residence  Applicable Criteria:  Landmark Criterion 4 

(Discuss importance in terms of historical or architectural context as defined by theme, period, and geographic scope.  Also address integrity) 
 
The Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue, meets South Pasadena Landmark Criterion 4, as a highly intact, textbook example of 
the Craftsman-Swiss Chalet style. As noted in South Pasadena’s Citywide Historic Context Statement, which utilized a photo of 
1209 Indiana Avenue to illustrate the features of the style, the property is an intact, textbook example of the Swiss Chalet/Craftsman 
architectural style. The property is eligible for local landmark listing under Criterion 4 of the Cultural Heritage Ordinance. (See 
Continuation Sheet, p. 3) 
 
B11. Additional Resource Attributes:  (List attributes and codes) N/A   

*B12. References:   
Apostol, Jane, 1987. “South Pasadena: A Centennial History” (South 

Pasadena Public Library) 
City of South Pasadena Building Permits 
City of South Pasadena, 2014, Citywide Historic Context Statement 
County of Los Angeles Public Works Dept, Land Records 
Los Angeles County Tax Assessor Records 
South Pasadena Public Library History Room Collection 
Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps, South Pasadena, 1906–1950 
 
B13. Remarks:   
*B14. Evaluator:  Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP 
*Date of Evaluation: January 2024 
 

DPR 523B (1/95)          *Required information 
 

Sketch Map 

 
 (This space reserved for official comments.) 

1209 Indiana Ave.
(APN 5314-010-061)

In
di

an
a

Av
en

ue



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #  
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#  
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial  

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information

Page  3  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 

*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila, MHP *Date:  January 3, 2024 x Continuation     o Update 

*P3a.   Description (continued):

The property’s Craftsman-Swiss Chalet style elements are seen in a variety of features, including the mass and scale of the 
property; the generous use of wood, including in exterior shingles, siding, and decorative accents at the roof eaves and front porch; 
the prominent, medium-pitched roof form; the roofline treatment (e.g., the use of wide eaves); screen with geometric perforations 
below the roof gable; grouped, multi-light wood-framed windows, among other features.  

The side elevations of the residence mirror the fenestration patterns and materials seen on the façade. The north elevation 
displays grouped wood-framed windows (including tripartite two-over-three frame casements and three-over-two double-hung 
windows) and a varied wall plane, with a square two-story projection and a one-story bay window providing depth. Along the 
concrete foundation of the home on the north elevation are several basement-level openings with simple wood frames.  

Similarly, the south elevation wall plane is broken up by a one-story projection with wood-framed windows, capped with decorative 
wood eaves. 

The rear elevation exhibits a small, square addition, also clad in wood shingles. A secondary entrance elevated on concrete steps 
is also located at the rear elevation. In the westernmost portion of the parcel is concrete patio and a concrete-clad retaining wall.  
Mature landscaping and trees further enhance the property. The property is in good repair overall. Alterations appear to be minimal 
and include a small, low addition on the rear elevation and potentially a second-story remodel that resulted in the addition of some 
small windows on the side and rear elevations. 

P5b. Photo (continued): (view and date) 

Overview of sloped, hillside parcel, façade, northeast perspective 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #   
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#   
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial   

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information 

Page  4  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila   *Date:  3 January 2024  x Continuation     o Update 
 
P5b. Photo (continued): (view and date)  
  
Overview of façade, east perspective  

 
 
Overview of façade, southeast perspective 

 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #  
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#  
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial  

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information

Page  5  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 

*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila *Date:  3 January 2024 x Continuation     o Update 

P5b. Photo (continued): (view and date)  

North elevation, overview, northwest perspective (shows addition at rear elevation) 

South elevation overview, southern perspective (shows roof cross-gable and addition) 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #   
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#   
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial   

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information 

Page  6  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila   *Date:  3 January 2024  x Continuation     o Update 
 
P5b. Photo (continued): (view and date)  
 
North elevation and side yard, west perspective 

 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #  
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#  
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial  

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information

Page  7  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila *Date:  3 January 2024 x Continuation     o Update 

P5b. Photo (continued): (view and date) 

Swiss Chalet/Craftsman character-defining features on the façade, with decorative wood accents throughout the patio, 
second-story porch railing with geometric cut-outs, and wide wood roof eaves with decorative detailing, southeast 
perspective 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #   
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#   
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial   

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information 

Page  8  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila   *Date:  3 January 2024  x Continuation     o Update 
 
P5b. Photo (continued): (view and date)  
 
Detail of roof detailing and entrance porch, east perspective 

 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #  
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#  
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial  

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information

Page  9  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila *Date:  3 January 2024 x Continuation     o Update 

P5b. Photo (continued): (view and date)  

Detail, northern portion of façade, east perspective 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #   
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#   
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial   

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information 

Page  10  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila   *Date:  3 January 2024  x Continuation     o Update 
 
P5b. Photo (continued): (view and date)  
 
Tripartite wood windows and frames and wood-shingle siding, façade, east perspective  

 
Tripartite wood windows and flared second-story base marked with faux, carved purlins, façade, east perspective 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #  
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#  
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial  

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information

Page  11  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila *Date:  3 January 2024 x Continuation     o Update 

P5b. Photo (continued): (view and date)  

Corner of east and north elevations, northeast perspective 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #   
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#   
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial   

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information 

Page  12  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila   *Date:  3 January 2024  x Continuation     o Update 
 
P5b. Photo (continued): (view and date)  
 
North elevation bay window, wood shingles, and window detailing, north perspective 

 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #  
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#  
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial  

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information

Page  13  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila *Date:  3 January 2024 x Continuation     o Update 

P5b. Photo (continued): (view and date)  

Detail of wood shingles, south elevation, southwest perspective 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #   
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#   
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial   

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information 

Page  14  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila   *Date:  3 January 2024  x Continuation     o Update 
 
P5b. Photo (continued): (view and date)  
 
Detail of south elevation windows, triangular knee braces, and decorative carved brackets marking division between first 
and second stories, southwest perspective 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #  
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#  
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial  

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information

Page  15  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila *Date:  3 January 2024 x Continuation     o Update 

P5b. Photo (continued): (view and date)  

Overview of south elevation second story, south perspective 

Detail of porch steps, landing, and wood entrance door with side lights, east perspective 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #   
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#   
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial   

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information 

Page  16  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila   *Date:  3 January 2024  x Continuation     o Update 
 
*B10. Significance (continued):   

Ownership History 

The original (and longest) owner of 1209 Indiana Avenue was Charles Clark Gates and his wife Pearl, who resided in the 
home for nearly 40 years, from 1911 until their deaths in 1950 and 1951, respectively. Gates was the nephew of well-
known local philanthropist and lumber magnate Peter Goddard Gates, who bought property and settled in South 
Pasadena with his four brothers in the early 1900s.1 Wealthy, retired lumber manufacturers, the Gates brothers built a 
large estate around the area of 1209 Indiana Avenue, along Monterey Road, including a park, orchards, stables, tennis 
courts, and “even its own fire station.”2 Based out of this large family complex at Monterey Road and “Gates Place” (as 
Indiana Avenue was named in the early twentieth century), South Pasadena became a summer getaway as well as home 
base for the extended Gates family members. 

Born in Illinois in 1879, Charles Clark Gates and his wife Pearl moved to South Pasadena in 1911 from St. Louis, Missouri.3 
The residence at 1209 Indiana Avenue originally formed part of a larger parcel extending north to 499 Monterey Road, 
which is still occupied by a large Swiss Chalet-style home originally belonging to members of the Gates family, including 
Charles Clark Gates’ parents, Mr. and Mrs. Albert Hawkins Gates.4 The parcels were divided at an unknown date, after 
1950, into separate lots in a configuration that mirrors the present property lines.  

Once they arrived in South Pasadena, Charles and Pearl Gates quickly became part of the small, local social scene, with 
their travels, social engagements, and family milestones amply covered in the local newspapers of the day. Following in 
the family footsteps, Charles Clark Gates also worked in the lumber industry, as an executive in the family’s lumber 
company, which included mills and branches in Arkansas (specializing in yellow pine and oak), Louisiana, and Alabama. In 
the obituary for Albert Hawkins Gates, who passed away in South Pasadena in 1914, the Forrest City Times of Forrest City, 
Arkansas, noted that Mr. Gates had been president of the Gates Lumber Company, based in Wilmar, Arkansas, and had 
accumulated a “fortune in the lumber mills, and had extensive interests on the Pacific coast.”5 

The homes of the Gates estate faced Monterey Road (including 499, 509, and 515 Monterey, among which only 499 
Monterey is extant) and extended north along Indiana Avenue (including the extant residences at 1209 and 1215 Indiana 
Avenue, both of which were constructed in 1911). Until 1924, when the Gates brothers subdivided a large portion of the 
land extending northward, “Indiana Avenue” was named “Gates Place,” as noted above. The home at 1209 Indiana Avenue 
occupies a parcel that was originally part of a tract known as “Thomas Green’s Subdivision of South Pasadena Highlands,” 
filed in 1887. Prior to the Gates family arrival in the early 1900s, Gates Place/Indiana Avenue was known as “Belleview 
Avenue.” (The small cul-de-sac “Gates Place” that survives northeast of 1209 Indiana Avenue continues to reflect the 
family’s early presence in the neighborhood.)  

In terms of the family, one of Peter Goddard Gates’ best known philanthropic gifts was to the California Institute of 
Technology, in the form of a $200,000 donation in 1917 to establish the Gates Chemical Laboratories.6 Peter G. Gates 
passed away in 1925 at the age of 69; his nephew Charles was among the recipients of bequests made in the elder Gates’ 
will.7 In reaction to Gates’ death, Arthur Fleming, chair of the California Institute of Technology board of trustees, 
commented that “Pasadena and the California Institute of Technology [have lost] a valuable friend. Ever interested in 
those things which he believed essential to the welfare of his country, he gave generously to the case of education.”8 

 
1 Apostol, Jane. 1987. “South Pasadena: A Centennial History” (South Pasadena Public Library), p. 57. 
2 City of South Pasadena, Planning and Building Department. 2014. South Pasadena Citywide Historic Context Statement, p. 96.  
3 “Society,” 28 May 1911, Los Angeles Times. Available at ProQuest Historical Newspapers, Los Angeles Times. 
4 “November Wedding Is an Outstanding Event,” 22 November 1927, Pasadena Evening Post.  
5 5 June 1914, “Death of Albert H. Gates: He Was One of the Pioneer Lumbermen of South Arkansas,” The Forrest City Times (Forrest City, Arkansas).  
6 “Peter Gates Dead in East: Brother in Pasadena Gates New from New York,” 14 July 1925, Los Angeles Times. Available at ProQuest Historical Newspapers, Los 
Angeles Times. See also “Gates Rites to Be Held in Pasadena: Body of Philanthropist to Be Brought Here from New York City,” 14 July 1925, The Pasadena Post.  
7 “Southland Kin Aided in Gates Will: Thirteen Get Varying Bequests from Estate of Lumber Man,” 2 September 1925, Los Angeles Times. Available at ProQuest 
Historical Newspapers, Los Angeles Times. 
8 “Peter Gates Dead in East: Brother in Pasadena Gates New from New York,” 14 July 1925, Los Angeles Times. Available at ProQuest Historical Newspapers, Los 
Angeles Times. 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #  
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#  
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial  

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information

Page  17  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila *Date:  3 January 2024 x Continuation     o Update 

*B10. Significance (continued):

In terms of Charles Clark Gates’ career, in addition to his role in the family’s lumber manufacturing business, he and two 
of the Gates relatives, Don S. and Don F., launched an ambitious venture in 1919 in cattle grazing. The acquisition also 
made the Gates “among the largest holders of cattle grazing acreage in America,” with a controlling interest in the 
Tehachapi Cattle Company, which owned thousands of head of cattle spanning 150,000 acres from Bakersfield to the 
Tehachapi Mountains.9 By 1940, Charles Clark Gates had retired. In 1942, he was among a group of business leaders 
honored as “Quarter Century Boys” in the Rotary Club of Los Angeles.10 The Gates’ had three children, Albert D., Edith E., 
and Louise, all of whom were residents of 1209 Indiana Avenue during the Gates family tenure in the home.  

Discussion of South Pasadena Local Criteria 3 and 6 (for association with significant individuals) 

As discussed above, 1209 Indiana Avenue is a surviving remnant of the Gates family estate, which included stately 
Craftsman-style homes at 499, 509, and 515 Monterey Road, and northward along present-day Indiana Avenue (known 
until the mid-1920s as “Gates Place”). Until at least 1950, 1209 Indiana Avenue formed part of one unified parcel with 
499 Monterey Road. The east side of Indiana Avenue and parcels extending northward also appear to have belonged to 
the Gates family estate (though no buildings along the east appear extant).  

Extant remnants of the Gates family estate include 499 Monterey Road, 1209 Indiana Avenue, and 1215 Indiana Avenue 
(which was owned by Don F. Gates and constructed in 1911, during a time when most of the surrounding hillside 
property belonged to the Gates family). Although the residence at 1209 Indiana Avenue is associated with Charles Clark 
Gates, and the Gates family was well-known in early twentieth-century South Pasadena, the strength of the association 
and Gates’ own professional achievements are not such that they confer eligibility on 1209 Indiana Avenue itself, as a 
single property, under Criterion 3 (“identification with a person, persons or groups who significantly contributed to the 
culture and development of the City, state or United States”) or Criterion 6 (“identification as the work of a person or 
persons whose work has influenced the heritage of the City, the state or the United States”). Research has not indicated 
that, on his own, Charles Clark Gates, while he was a successful entrepreneur and lumber manufacturer in the family 
business, “significantly contributed to the culture and development” of South Pasadena or the heritage of the City.  

While research on the Gates family and its South Pasadena estate is beyond the present scope, it is recommended that 
subsequent research consider possible eligibility as an historic district for 1209 and 1215 Indiana Avenue and 499 
Monterey Road as the surviving elements of the Gates family estate. 

Discussion of South Pasadena Landmark Criterion 4:  Exemplification of a particular architectural style 

As noted in South Pasadena’s Citywide Historic Context Statement, which utilized a photo of 1209 Indiana Avenue to 
illustrate the features of the style, the property is an intact, textbook example of the Swiss Chalet/Craftsman architectural 
style. The property is eligible for local landmark listing under Criterion 4 of the Cultural Heritage Ordinance. The property 
displays all of the character-defining features identified as key for the Craftsman theme/Swiss Chalet subtheme in the 
Citywide Historic Context Statement:  

• Rectangular plan and compact, 2-story massing
• Flat, usually symmetrical primary façade
• Moderately pitched front gable roof with wide, overhanging eaves/rake, and exposed rafter tails
• Wood shingle, horizontal wood siding
• Wide porch, recessed or projecting
• Second-story balcony with plank railing, usually with decorative cut-outs
• Divided light casement or double hung wood windows
• Decorative brackets and bargeboards

9 “Gates Family in Big New Cattle Deal,” 22 September 1919, The Pasadena Post. 
10 “Rotary Club Pays Tribute to Its 25-Year Members,” 21 March 1942, Los Angeles Times. Available at ProQuest Historical Newspapers, Los Angeles Times. 



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #   
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#   
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial   

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information 

Page  18  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila   *Date:  3 January 2024  x Continuation     o Update 
 
*B10. Significance (continued):   

In addition, with few visible alterations, the property meets the integrity threshold defined in the Citywide Historic 
Context Statement.  

An outgrowth of the Arts and Crafts movement, the Swiss Chalet style is a subtype of the Craftsman architectural style, 
which dominated residential design in South Pasadena (and beyond) through the early 20th century. As noted in the 
Citywide Historic Context Statement, South Pasadena 

retains intact streets and neighborhoods, along with prominent individual examples, illustrating the 
importance of Arts and Crafts architecture and the role it played in residential development in the early 
20th century. Southern California, and Pasadena in particular, was a center of the American Arts and 
Crafts movement; the philosophy, aesthetics, and major proponents and practitioners all influenced 
South Pasadena.11 

The Citywide Historic Context Statement provides additional context for this variant of the Craftsman style:  

The Swiss Chalet style – constructed primarily of stained wood, in which wide overhanging eaves and 
balconies helped integrate the outdoors as part of the living space – was compatible with the goals of 
the Arts and Crafts movement. The Chalet style Craftsman house usually consists of a single, rectangular 
two-story volume covered by front-facing gable roof. The primary façade is typically symmetrical and 
frequently features a wide porch topped by a second-story balcony. Porches and balconies usually have 
plank railings with decorative cutouts. Brackets and bargeboards are usually more decorative than 
those found in other variations of Craftsman architecture.12 

In summary, as demonstrated in the accompanying nomination, 1209 Indiana Avenue meets the eligibility standards for 
local landmark designation under the “Architecture & Design” context, “Craftsman” theme, and “Swiss Chalet style” 
subtheme of the Citywide Historic Context Statement.  

The property’s principal character-defining features are as follows:   

• Large, hillside lot and setback from the street 
• Two-story mass and generally symmetrical design composition 
• Complex roof form and detailing, with prominent medium-pitched front gable, with wide overhanging eaves 

resting on carved triangular knee braces with turned posts and purlins/dentils; roof eaves have uneven rakes, 
with a lower, longer expanse on the south elevation 

• Elevated, partial-length porch with decorative wood posts, vertical, wood-plank ceiling, and low wood railing 
• Sheathing materials, such as horizontal wood siding, wood shingles 
• Grouped, multi-light wood-frame windows, with three-over-two and fixed panes on façade 

 
11 City of South Pasadena, Planning and Building Department. 2014. South Pasadena Citywide Historic Context Statement, p. 111.  
12 City of South Pasadena, Planning and Building Department. 2014. South Pasadena Citywide Historic Context Statement, p. 273.  



State of California ¾ The Resources Agency Primary #  
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#  
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial  

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information

Page  19  of 19 *Resource Name or #: Gates Residence, 1209 Indiana Avenue 
*Recorded by Debi Howell-Ardila *Date:  3 January 2024 x Continuation     o Update 

*B10. Significance (continued):

South Pasadena Citywide Historic Context Statement, p. 273, with the Gates Residence at 1209 Indiana Avenue as 
intact example of Swiss Chalet architectural style 

273 
ARCHITECTURE & DESIGN 

FINAL ADMINISTRATIVE DRAFT 

City of South Pasadena 
Citywide Historic Context Statement 
HISTORIC RESOURCES GROUP 

Sub-Theme: Swiss Chalet Style 

The Swiss Chalet style - constructed primarily of stained wood, in which wide overhanging 
eaves and balconies helped integrate the outdoors as part of the living space - was compatible 
with the goals of the Arts and Crafts movement. The Chalet style Craftsman house usually 
consists of a single, rectangular two-story volume covered by a front-facing gable roof. The 
primary façade is typically symmetrical and frequently features a wide porch topped by a 
second-story balcony. Porches and balconies usually have plank railings with decorative 
cutouts. Brackets and bargeboards are usually more decorative than those found in other 
variations of Craftsman architecture. 

Character-defining features include: 

• Rectangular plan and compact, 2-story massing 
• Flat, usually symmetrical primary façade  
• Moderately pitched front gable roof with wide, overhanging eaves and rake, and 

exposed rafter tails 
• Wood shingle, horizontal wood siding, or cement plaster exterior wall finish, 

sometimes in combination 
• Wide porch, recessed or projecting 
• Second-story balcony with plank railing, usually with decorative cut-outs 
• Divided light casement or double hung wood windows, sometimes with diamond-

patterned lights 
• Decorative brackets and bargeboards 

Swiss Chalet: Extant Example 

1209 Indiana Avenue, Gates Estate 



Cultural Heritage Commission 
Agenda Report ITEM NO. ___ 

DATE: May 16, 2024 

FROM: Angelica Frausto-Lupo, Community Development Director 
Matt Chang, Planning Manager 

PREPARED BY: Robert (Dean) Flores, Senior Planner 

SUBJECT: 1209 Indiana Avenue – Mills Act Request 

Recommendation  
Staff recommends that the Cultural Heritage Commission appoint a subcommittee to review a 
request for a Mills Act Contract.   

Discussion/Analysis 
On August 27, 2023, a letter of intent to file a Mills Act application for the property located at 
1209 Indiana Avenue was filed with the City.  

As stated in the letter, prepared by applicant, the property is designated as a 5S3 (Appears to 
be individually eligible for local listing or designation through survey evaluation). The attached 
letter (Attachment 1) illustrates some of the proposed repairs. 

Staff recommends that the Commission appoint a subcommittee to review this request in further 
detail before the property owners prepare rehabilitation and restoration plans and maintenance 
program. 

Next Steps 
Planning staff will arrange a site meeting with property owner and the subcommittee to inspect 
the condition of the property and discuss any potential items for restoration that may be needed 
during the agreement. 

The appointed subcommittee will review the submitted materials and prepare a report to the 
Cultural Heritage Commission to make a recommendation to City Council. 

Fiscal Impact 
A Mills Act contract allows a tax reduction (between approximately 40% - 60%) for a property 
owner who agrees to perform certain restoration and maintenance tasks over a 10-year period.  
Although the City will see a reduction in property tax revenue, the benefits of the program include 
economic benefits of conserving resources and reinvestment as well as the important role 
historic preservation can play in revitalizing older areas, creating cultural tourism, building civic 
pride, and retaining the sense of place and continuity with the community’s past. 

7



Cultural Heritage Commission 1209 Indiana Avenue – Mills Act Request 
May 16, 2024 Page 2 of 2 
 
Environmental Analysis 
The Mills Act Contract qualifies for an exemption under the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines Section 15308, Class 8:  Actions taken by regulatory agencies, as authorized 
by state or local ordinance, to assure the maintenance, restoration, enhancement, or protection 
of the environment where the regulatory process involves procedures for protection of the 
environment. 
 
Public Notification of Agenda Item 
The public is made aware of this item by virtue of its inclusion on the legally publicly noticed 
agenda, posting of the same agenda and reports on the City’s website.  
 
Attachment: 

1. Letter of Intent from Property Owners  



ATTACHMENT 1 
Letter of Intent from Property Owners 



Michael Emerling and Ruth Ballenger 
1209 Indiana Avenue 

South Pasadena, California 91030  
(p) 626.824.1913   (e) mikeE@alumni.caltech.edu 

 

Matt Chang, Planning Manager; Mark Gallatin, Chair, Cultural Heritage Commission 
City of South Pasadena Planning & Building Department 
1414 Mission Street 
South Pasadena, CA 91030 
 
August 27, 2023 

Dear Mr. Chang and Mr. Gallatin: 
 
We are writing to express our interest in applying for the Mills Act for our home at 1209 Indiana Avenue, South 
Pasadena (APN #5314-010-061), an intact Chalet-Craftsman Bungalow constructed in 1911. Our understanding is 
that our home is listed on the South Pasadena Inventory of Cultural Resources but has not yet been formally 
designated on the Register of Cultural Resources. This finding of individual landmark eligibility for our property was 
confirmed in 2015 through the City of South Pasadena Historic Resources Survey update, which assigned a California 
Historical Resources status code of “5S3” to the property. 

Since purchasing the home in 2006, it has served as our family’s primary residence. Over the years, we have 
invested time and resources to maintain our home in good repair. However, several issues have emerged recently 
that ideally need attention soon, in particular due to the rains we experienced in 2023 (and with the upcoming El 
Nino weather pattern predicted for 2023/2024). Some of the issues include recent leaks in the roof which were 
particularly pronounced during the rains this last year. These leaks are evidenced by recent damage in the wood 
detailing in the front of the structure. Additionally, an existing retaining wall at the west side of our property, 
separating our house from a sloped, undeveloped hill sitting above the wall, shows signs of cracking and potential 
failure. During heavy rains, the wall does not prevent all water from passing through to our property, which is 
concerning for the site overall as well as for the distinctive wood shingles on our exterior walls, which extend down 
to the concrete foundation. 

We understand that our residence needs to be designated on the Register to qualify for the Mills Act program. To 
complete the landmark nomination, and to make sure our Mills Act workplan meets the City’s requirements, we 
have asked local preservation specialist Debi Howell-Ardila to prepare both applications. She has conducted a site 
visit and started a literature review for the property; based on this, Debi has shared her opinion that our home 
qualifies for designation as a distinctive, intact Chalet-Craftsman Bungalow and that, given the repair, rehabilitation, 
maintenance items needed, our home would be a very strong candidate for a potential Mills Act contract. 

We do understand that this Letter of Intent arrives late in the year to submit a Mills Act application (we just learned 
of the program recently), but we wonder if the City and CHC have discretion to expedite review of our application 
for this year. The Mills Act would help us address the pressing issues before us (repair/replace the roof to stop the 
leaks and wood damage, to study the best method for mitigating potential flowing water damage to the structure 
and address the retaining wall, and to plan for the rehabilitation/repairs and repainting of the wonderful original 
wood features on the exterior of our house), but we are concerned about waiting another year before being able to 
address these issues. The Mills Act program and property tax abatement would serve as a great help as we continue 
to maintain our property and address these time-sensitive issues. 

Following this letter, you’ll find a brief overview of the existing conditions of the façade of our house, along with a 
few images of the retaining wall and exterior materials overall. Thank you for your consideration. We look forward 
to hearing from you on next steps, and whether an expedited application process for 2023 might be possible. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Michael Emerling and Ruth Ballenger 

MichaelEmerling
Pencil

MichaelEmerling
Pencil



Appendix A 
Photographic Overview  
 

  



Vaughan Residence, 925 Palm Avenue, South Pasadena 
Mills Act Letter of Intent 
 
 

 

 
3 

Figure 1 1209 Indiana Avenue, northeast perspective 

 
 
Figure 2 1209 Indiana Avenue, southeast perspective 

 



Vaughan Residence, 925 Palm Avenue, South Pasadena 
Mills Act Letter of Intent 
 
 

 

 
4 

Figure 3 Detail, façade, 1209 Indiana Avenue, southeast perspective 

 
 
 



Vaughan Residence, 925 Palm Avenue, South Pasadena 
Mills Act Letter of Intent 
 
 

 

 
5 

Figure 4 Detail, façade and south elevation, 1209 Indiana Avenue, east perspective 

 
 
 
 



Vaughan Residence, 925 Palm Avenue, South Pasadena 
Mills Act Letter of Intent 
 
 

 

 
6 

Figure 5 Roof eave treatment and details, façade and south elevation, east perspective 

 
 
 



Vaughan Residence, 925 Palm Avenue, South Pasadena 
Mills Act Letter of Intent 
 
 

 

 
7 

Figure 6 Façade detail, east perspective 

 
 
 



Vaughan Residence, 925 Palm Avenue, South Pasadena 
Mills Act Letter of Intent 
 
 

 

 
8 

Figure 7 Overview of retaining wall, south perspective 

 
 

Figure 8 Detail of cracks and water penetration in retaining wall, south perspective 

 



Cultural Heritage Commission 
Agenda Report ITEM NO. ___ 

DATE: May 16, 2024 

TO: Cultural Heritage Commission  

FROM: Angelica Frausto-Lupo, Community Development Director 

PREPARED BY: Matt Chang, Planning Manager 

SUBJECT: 2024 Annual Commission Report 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Cultural Heritage Commission discuss and approve 2024 Annual 
Commission Report.  

Discussion 

The City Clerk’s Office recently provided information to all city commissions regarding the 
upcoming Annual Commissioner Congress scheduled for Thursday, June 20, 2024. The 
Commissioner Congress provides an opportunity for City Council to receive a year-end report 
from each commission on the accomplishments of the previous year and a workplan for the 
upcoming fiscal year. 

A draft 2024 Annual Commission Report for the Cultural Heritage Commission is provided as 
Attachment 1. 

The purpose of this item is for the Commission to discuss and finalize the Annual Commission 
Report to be presented at the Annual Commissioner Congress. 

Attachment 

1. Draft 2024 Annual Commission Report

 8



ATTACHMENT 1 
Draft 2024 Annual Commission Report 



 

 

1 
 

 

   

 
 

 

(DRAFT) 
 

Cultural Heritage Commission 

 

2024 ANNUAL  
COMMISSION REPORT 

City of South Pasadena 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

2 
 

Purpose Statement  
The Cultural Heritage Commission provides support to the City Council by 
preserving, maintaining, and safeguarding the City’s historic character. The 
Cultural Heritage Commission serves to encourage the maintenance and 
preservation of areas that are associated with a historic event, activity, or persons 
that contributes to the historic character of districts, neighborhoods, landmarks, 
historic structures, and artifacts. 
 
 
 



 

 

3 
 

Cultural Heritage Commission 
Conrado Lopez Commission Chair 

Kristin Morrish Commission Vice-Chair 

William Cross Commissioner 

Jeremy Ding Commissioner 

Scott Severson Commissioner 
 

Jack Donovan 
Mayor Pro Tem 

City Council Liaison 

 

Matt Chang                            
Planning Manager 

 

Staff Liaison 

Cultural Heritage Commission meetings are held every 
3rd Thursday of the month at 6:30 p.m. Meetings are 
held at 1424 Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA 
91030.  

 

 

 



 

 

4 
 

Accomplishments  
 

 
1. The Cultural Heritage Commission reviewed 23 applications for residential 

and commercial projects. The Chair and Vice-Chair of the Commission 
provided feedback and assisted property owners with their projects.  
Approximately 70 Chair Review applications were processed. 
 

2. The Cultural Heritage Commission reviewed a Landmark Historic 
Designation for a single-family residence at 1209 Indiana Avenue.  
 

3. Several CHC Ad-Hoc Committees were formed to assist property owners 
with projects, including, but not limited to, room addition projects, landmark 
applications, and Mills Act applications. 
 

 

 
 
 



 

 

5 
 

  

ANNUAL WORKPLAN 
FY 2024-2025 

(Cultural Heritage Commission) 



 

 

6 
 

 

Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Work Plan 
 

1. Coordinate with city staff to review and update the Cultural Heritage 
Ordinance to streamline entitlement application process and encourage 
housing production. 
 

2. Process three (3) Mills Act applications. 
 

3. Produce a window/door handout for historic properties for public education.  

 

 
 
 


	2024-5-16 CHC Agenda.pdf
	Item 3. COA-DRX Continue.pdf
	Item No. 4 - COA24-00003 - 1017 Magnolia St.pdf
	Item No. 5  - COA24-0005 - 1617 Spruce St..pdf
	COA24-0005 1617 Spruce St_Staff Report - Matt edit
	General Plan Consistency
	Development Standards
	(RE) Residential Estate Development Standards Compliance

	Attachment 1
	1. Conditions of Approval_1617 Spruce St.-Draft - Matt edit
	Attachment 2
	1617 SPRUCE ST
	Attachment 3
	Architectural Plans_1617 SPRUCE ST.  2-8-24
	OMENS 1-7-24-TITLE
	Sheets and Views
	TITLE


	OMENS 1-7-24-DR-WN
	Sheets and Views
	DR-WN


	OMENS 1-7-24-EAST ELEVS A6.1
	Sheets and Views
	EAST ELEVS A6.1


	OMENS 1-7-24-e) PLAN-3
	Sheets and Views
	e) PLAN-3


	OMENS 1-7-24-N) PLAN-4.1
	Sheets and Views
	N) PLAN-4.1


	OMENS 1-7-24-NORTH ELEVS A6.0
	Sheets and Views
	NORTH ELEVS A6.0


	OMENS 1-7-24-S & W ELEVS-6.2
	Sheets and Views
	S & W ELEVS-6.2


	OMENS 1-7-24-SECTIONS- 7
	Sheets and Views
	SECTIONS- 7



	Attachment 4
	NARRATIVE FOR 1617 SPRUCE ADDITION
	Attachment 5
	SITE PICS 1-8-24
	PHOTO KEY
	Sheets and Views
	TITLE


	1
	2
	3
	4

	Attachment 6
	PRODUCT BROCHURES 3-12-24
	CLAY TILE ROOFING
	STUCCO
	WINDOWS
	BACK DOOR


	Item No. 6 - LMR23-0001 - 1209 Indiana Ave.pdf
	Item No. 7 - 1209 Indiana Ave. Mills Act Request CHC.pdf
	Item No. 8 - 2024 CHC Annual Report.pdf
	CHC Staff Report
	Attachment Cover Sheet 1
	CHC 2024 Annual Report
	Purpose Statement
	Cultural Heritage Commission
	Accomplishments
	Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Work Plan





